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MORATORIUM ON THE LISTING PROVISIONS
OF THE ENDANGERED SPECIES ACT

TUESDAY, MARCH 7, 1995

U.S. Senate,
Committee on Environment and Public Works,

Subcommittee on Drinking Water, Fisheries
AND Wildlife,

Washington, DC.
The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:32 a.m. in room

406, Dirksen Senate Building, Hon. Dirk Kempthome (chairman of
the subcommittee) presiding.

Present: Senators Kempthome, Boxer, Bond, Lautenberg, Reid,
and Chafee [ex officio].

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. DIRK KEMPTHORNE,
U.S. SENATOR FROM THE STATE OF IDAHO

Senator Kempthorne. Ladies and gentlemen, I am going to hold
the meeting until Senator Hutchison arrives.

I'll now call the meeting to order.

I'd like to welcome and thank all of you for attending this hear-
ing this morning.
The Subcommittee on Drinking Water, Fisheries and Wildlife is

meeting today to hear testimony on Senate Bill 191, "The Farm,
Ranch, and Homestead Protection Act of 1995." S. 191 imposes a
moratorium on listing of species, designations of critical habitat
and the conduct of consultations until the Endangered Species Act
has been reauthorized. However, I understand we may be asked to

consider additional legislation as well.

I am pleased that we will hear this morning from Senator Kay
Bailey Hutchison who shares my keen desire to bring balance and
common sense to the Endangered Species Act. Reform of the En-
dangered Species Act is as important to my constituents in Idaho
as it is to Senator Hutchison's constituents in Texas.
We intend to hear testimony also this morning from Interior Sec-

retary Bruce Babbitt whom are we honored to have here this morn-
ing and from a panel of six Americans with experience working
with the Endangered Species Act. Also, I understand that Douglas
K. Hall, the Assistant Secretary of Commerce, will be available for

questions should any be addressed to the National Marine Fish-

eries Services.

I know all too well why this legislation has been introduced. My
own State of Idaho is suffering from interpretation and application

of the ESA that is far beyond the original intent of Congress. As
just one example of the economic influence of the law, Ajtnericans

(1)



pay for the effects of the Endangered Species Act every time they
buy a home. Lumber prices have increased sharply from $239 a
thousand board feet in the 1980's to $410 last year. A big factor
in this price increase is the sharp decline in timber harvested in

the Pacific Northwest. We used to harvest 10 billion board feet a
year and now we harvest just 3 billion annually. There is no doubt
that ESA restrictions on timber harvest is a huge factor in this de-
cline.

To keep these figures in perspective, lumber price hikes have in-

creased the cost of a single family home by thousands of dollars ac-

cording to the National Association of Homebuilders. These price
increases hit hardest at low-income and first-time home buyers.
While increased cost of materials is what all Americans pay

when considering new construction, the real tragedy is the effect of
the interpretation and administration of this law on individual
Americans who own property. The way the law is structured, the
principal conservation mechanisms were intended to built around
Federal actions and Federal lands. The private property has be-
come the focus in recent years.

What is the other side of this issue? This is the law that has con-
tributed greatly to the successful recovery of the bald eagle, the
brown pelican and the peregrine falcon. The ESA focused attention
on the plight of these species. Captive breeding, the ban on certain
kinds of pesticides, and the cooperative efforts by thousands of
Americans helped bring these species back from the brink of extinc-

tion.

Yet people across America are angry and fearful about how the
ESA is being administered. Some Americans have so much fear of
this law that they have called for its total and outright repeal.

Why do people fear the Act that has been described as the cen-
terpiece of American environmental law? Just last week in this

very room, we held a hearing about a court's injunction stopping
all logging, mining and grazing in six national forests. This ESA-
inspired, court-ordered injunction placed 10,000 Idahoans at risk of
losing their jobs.

It's not just Idaho or Texas that is suffering from the effects of
the Endangered Species Act. Every State in the Union has species
that are candidates for endangered or threatened status. Among
the States represented by this subcommittee alone, California has
977 candidate species being considered for listing; Nevada has 234;
New Jersey has 48; Connecticut has 23; Virginia has 151; North
Carolina has 189; Wyoming has 122; Missouri has 87. The listing

of these species and the resulting administration of the Act can
mean loss of jobs and harm to local economies in every State of the
Union.
What can be accomplished with a moratorium? I believe that in

this highly charged atmosphere, it can create a climate more favor-

able for a thorough and thoughtful discussion rather one that is

filled with fear and anger. I favor a moratorium that reduces the
rhetoric and gives us a forum upon which to write a sound law. I

support a moratorium on listings and critical habitat designations,

but I do not support a moratorium on section 7 consultations be-
cause those types of discussions I believe should continue.



Let me make it very clear that a moratorium is not a substitute

for complete review, reform and reauthorization of the Endangered
Species Act. The Endangered Species Act is now overdue for reau-
thorization. There's widespread agreement that reform is needed in

the ESA, so with science as the foundation, we can identify and
make informed decisions.

With that, I will turn to Senator Chafee, who is the Chairman
of the Environment and Public Works Committee. Senator Chafee?

OPENmG STATEMENT OF HON. JOHN H. CHAFEE,
U.S. SENATOR FROM THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND

Senator Chafee. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
First, I want to welcome Senator Hutchison here and Secretary

Babbitt.
Mr. Chairman, as you say, this is an extremely important hear-

ing and it addresses a serious and significant proposal presented
by Senator Hutchison which is the imposition of a moratorium on
a number of important activities under the Endangered Species
Act.

Under the current law, the Department of the Interior lists a
species as "endangered" when the best available scientific informa-
tion supports a finding that the species is in danger of extinction.

A "threatened" species is listed when the best available scientific

information tells us the species is likely to become endangered in

the foreseeable future. One of the most frequent criticisms directed

at environmental regulations as a whole is the suggestion that they
are not based on sound science. However, clearly, in this law, there
is a requirement for the use of the best science. It is important to

remember that the listing of a species sounds the alarm, the warn-
ing that our activities may eliminate another species from the com-
plex web of life on earth.

Senator Hutchison and I have agreed that her bill, S. 191, be
modified in several important respects and reintroduced as another
bill, which is S. 503. It would establish a moratorium 6 months
from the effective date, which would be today, March 7. In other
words, when this bill passes, it is going to be retroactive to March
7, 1995. I think that is very important and I agree with Senator
Hutchison on that point.

Second, we will limit the moratorium to listing determinations
and critical habitat designations under section 4 of the Act. In
other words, it will not cover section 7, the consultation section

that you mentioned, Mr. Chairman.
I encourage the witnesses to comment on the effects of a 6-month

moratorium on listings and designations of critical habitat, as well

as to what would be the effects of an open-ended moratorium. In
other words, suppose we had a moratorium that was in effect until

the reauthorization of the Act, or some time in the future.

Like you, Mr. Chairman, I'm concerned that we not be diverted
by a moratorium from the important task of reauthorizing the En-
dangered Species Act. Under your leadership, this subcommittee
plans to move the reauthorization bill this calendar year. As every-
one knows, I'm a long-time supporter of the Endangered Species
Act.



However, I recognize that many of the criticisms of the Act are
justified and new policies are needed. For example, we should pro-
vide better protection for the shrinking habitats on which a mul-
titude of threatened and endangered species depend; we should
provide options for private landowners that are more fair and more
flexible; we need to make better use of scientific expertise and
management abilities of State and local governments and other
public and private organizations.
Yesterday, Secretary Babbitt announced a package of administra-

tive reforms that address some of these issues. These reforms are
an example of the considerable flexibility already available under
the Endangered Species Act. I applaud and encourage what the
Secretary has done and encourage him to continue to explore inno-
vative alternatives for conserving listed species and their habitats
under the existing statute.

Despite the criticisms we often hear, it's important to remember
that the Endangered Species Act has fostered many successes. As
you mentioned, Mr. Chairman, the dramatic recovery of species
such as the American alligator, the peregrine falcon, the red wolf,
the piping plover, are the result of the Endangered Species Act and
I think it is important we remember these.
Although there are plentv of examples of a major conflicts be-

tween the savings of a listed species and proceeding with saving on
one hand and proceeding with development on the other hand,
there are still more examples where the needs of endangered and
threatened species,on one hand, and human activity on the other
hand, have been accommodated successfully.

Are the requirements of the Endangered Species Act causing
some hardships? The answer is yes. Could we do a better job of
minimizing these hardships and meeting the conservation needs of
imperiled species? Absolutely.

So, Mr. Chairman, I look forward to working with you to address
the problems with the Endangered Species Act.

Senator Kempthorne. Senator Chafee, thank you verv much.
Senator Reid, who is the ranking member of this subcommittee,

will be joining us a little bit later this morning.
With that, let me ask the Senator from California if she has an

opening comment and then we will also hear from the Senator from
Missouri.

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. BARBARA BOXER,
U.S. SENATOR FROM THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Senator Boxer. Thank you so much, Mr. Chairman.
This is a very important issue to me as well. As a matter of fact,

in my campaign, the issue was should we gut the Endangered Spe-
cies Act or should we reauthorize it? I was in favor of reauthorizing
it. My opponent said there was no need for it, so it was really a
major issue. Therefore, I am so appreciative of this opportunity to

comment on this issue.

I would ask, first, unanimous consent to place in the record this

article that appeared in the Washington Post, "Easing Protected
Species Rules Intended to Gain Support." It talks about what Sen-
ator Chafee, chairman of the full committee, referred to, that the
Administration is trying to reach some common ground on this. I



think it is very, very promising, and it is one reason I'm against
this moratorium; I think we're moving forward. So I'd ask that be
placed in the record.

Senator Kempthorne. Without objection, it will appear in the
record.

[The article follows:]

[From the Washington Post, March 7, 1995]

Easing Protected Species Rules Intended to Gain Support

(By Tom Kenworthy)

The CUnton Administration, trjdng to rebuild political support for the beleaguered

Endangered Species Act, announced yesterday it will propose new regulations giving

small landowners relief from some of the more onerous provisions of the 1973 law.

"We're saying small landowners should be exempted from conservation burdens

on the basis of fairness and biology," Interior Secretary Bruce Babbitt said. "Most

species won't survive on small tracts of land, and it's not fair to tie up small land-

owners."

Under the plan, most activities on single-household tracts of land, or those affect-

ing five acres or less, would be permitted to continue free of restrictions under the

Act if the land in question harbors threatened species. The broad exemption would

not apply if the land contains endangered species, which are defined as more likely

to become extinct than threatened species.

The proposed relief for small landowners was announced as part of a larger pack-

age of principles outlined by the Administration that Babbitt and D. Jeunes Baker,

undersecretary for oceans and atmosphere in the Commerce Department, said would

guide Administration policy and its approach to Congress's upcoming review of the

Endangered Species Act.

Baker yesterday called it a "more balanced and practical approach" to the task

of preserving biological diversity. "We know this Act can work for threatened and

endangered species," said Baker. "With these changes we are signifying our commit-

ment to making the Act work for the human species as well."

Babbitt and other Administration officials have been trying to demonstrate that

the Act, contrary to the assertions of poUtical opponents, allows flexibility in bal-

ancing the economic needs of people and the biological needs of threatened and en-

dangered species. To that end, the Administration has stepped up the pace of ap-

proving conservation plans that mix habitat protection and development.

The scramble to demonstrate that the Act is not a blunt instrument that costs

jobs and tramples on private property rights has assumed new urgency with the

election last fall of a Republican-led Congress that appears inclined to enact major

changes when the law is reauthorized.

"A lot of what has been going on the last 2 years is the beginning of a silent revo-

lution in how the legislation is administered," said George T. Frampton, Jr., assist-

ant secretary of interior for fish and wildlife and parks. "People are not aware on

the Hill that we have a program that . . . reconciles property rights with species

protections."

Among the principles outlined by the Administration yesterday for how the Act

should be rewritten and implemented were:

Using "sound and objective" science in making endangered species decisions, in-

cluding the use of peer review panels.

Providing private landowners with clear guidelines about the activities permitted

on land inhabited by threatened and endangered species.
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Giving States more management authority over endangered species, including ap-

proval of habitat conservation plans covering entire States.

At the same time, however, the Clinton Administration yesterday said it would
fight any legislative attempts to gut the law.

Senator Boxer. Mr, Chairman, I agree with the statements of
the full committee chairman and, as I understand, your statement
last week that the objective of the subcommittee is to reauthorize
a strong and effective Endangered Species Act. I do look forward
to working with all parties on both sides of the aisle to make sure
that we give this a careful and thoughtful examination so that we
have increased efficiency and approved protection for our planet's
many species.

Mr. Chairman, I believe deeply—as I believe the majority of
Americans do—that our Nation's long-term prosperity and the
equality of our citizens' lives are linked to the health of our envi-
ronment. Effective environmental laws make good economic sense.
I often say, if you can't breathe, you can't work, and we know that's

obviously true. When you look at what happened in Eastern Eu-
rope when the walls came down, they really couldn't even begin
until they had cleaned up some of the messes that had come before.

So we must protect the diversity of life in order to leave our coun-
try in a survivable condition for future generations and an effective

Endangered Species Act is critical to our success.

Let me say this. For California, this is a very important issue.

We are world famous for our natural beauty and diversity which
is the basis of our economic vitality. We have the largest number
of listed threatened and endangered species in the country and the
numbers are growing. Of the more than 100 species currently pro-

posed for listing, more than half, more than half, are from Califor-

nia.

Mr. Chairman, the Endangered Species Act has worked. I am not
saying it is perfect. I am saying it has worked. Under the Act,

many threatened and endangered species have been stabilized and
several have made remarkable comebacks from the brink of extinc-

tion. Where would the California condor be, the California grey
whale, and in many States, where would the bald eagle be, our na-
tional symbol, where would it have been without a strong Endan-
gered Species Act.

I want to say that in California, we lost the grizzly bear and
California once had so many grizzly bears that more than 200
places are still named after them, but these magnificent animals
went extinct because we failed to act in time. I wonder what would
have happened if we'd had this Endangered Species Act—we would
have had the grizzly bear. If we didn't have it, we wouldn't have
the bald eagle. It's pretty clear. This isn't some ideological argu-
ment; this is an argument based on fact. Today, the California griz-

zly is gone forever, a constant reminder of our ignorance and irre-

sponsibility.

Mr. Chairman, I want to work with you and the committee mem-
bers, and of course, other Senators who are interested in this to en-

sure that our reauthorization process is careful and thoughtful. Re-
cent actions taken by the House concern me greatly. We must not
legislate by anecdotes. As we know, all too often, anecdotes only



tell part of the story. I could give you one on one side, you could
give me one on another. We need to be better than that.

I want to give you an example. Critics of the Act charge that pro-

hibitions against disking to clear brush within the habitat of the
Stevens kangaroo rat led to the destruction of homes and property
during the California fire, the largest of 21 wildfires that stormed
Southern California in 1993. The Congress sought the truth and
enlisted the GAO to study the case. The GAO report concluded that
endangered species protections did not cause the destruction of

homes or other structures.

Mr. Chairman, we must find the truth in this debate and craft

positive approaches to these serious problems. During this debate,
opponents of Endangered Species Act will tell us that it is a law
out-of-balance which pits common people against exotic species

supported by a runaway bureaucracy. This debate should not really

be about humans versus other species, after all, we're all God's
creatures and must not be arrogant or we will lose in the end. The
ones to lose most will be our children. The Endangered Species Act
is about leaving our grandchildren and their grandchildren a world
that can support them. A species in decline is a symptom of larger
environmental problems that will surely lead to problems for all of

us. I think it's important.
Somebody makes fun of some species and they say, what's the

difference about that species? God created that species and God
created us, and we're all joined together. We must establish public

policies which ensure that we don t destroy what God has created.

The Endangered Species Act can work better if people come to-

gether to make it better and I know in this committee, we can do
that with your leadership and the leadership of Senator Chafee.

I believe it is foolish to delay taking action while problems go un-
resolved. That is why I strongly oppose this moratorium. A morato-
rium is an admission of failure and we must not fail in this endeav-
or. We must not take an action which will cause further decline of

our most critically endangered species. Why should we wait months
and months while we lose flora and fauna that may cure cancer
and Alzheimer's? We forget that the most promising cures of these
diseases exists in those plants. Why should we wait while species

die off?

Mr. Chairman, we must work diligently to reauthorize the ESA,
to fix it, to make it work for my communities and for your commu-
nities. A moratorium is a cover word for killing, killing these spe-

cies. Let us not admit failure, let us get to work and reauthorize
the Endangered Species Act and make it better.

Thank you.
Senator Kempthorne. Senator Boxer, thank you very much.
Senator Bond? '

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. CHRISTOPHER S. BOND,
U.S. SENATOR FROM THE STATE OF MISSOURI

Senator BOND. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
I congratulate you and the chairman of the full committee and

the ranking member for moving expeditiously on this matter. I wel-

come the author of S. 191, the distinguished Senator from Texas
before this subcommittee.
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Senator Hutchison and I co-chair a Regulatory Relief Task Force.
After review and consultation, the members of the task force deter-
mined what were the No. 1 to No. 10 top regulatory burdens on
Americans—individuals, businesses and communities. The Endan-
gered Species Act made No. 1 on the list.

Too many communities, too many individuals, too many areas,
too many enterprises have a spotted owl type problem. My State
of Missouri has a spotted owl type problem; it happens to be the
pallid sturgeon. The Federal Government, in an experiment to im-
prove the breeding habitat or the sex life of the pallid sturgeon, has
proposed we increase spring flooding on the banks of the Missouri
River and reduce the flows from upstream reservoirs during Octo-
ber and November, a time when the inland waterway system de-
pends on these flows for reliable, cost-effective movement of grain
and other commodities to deepwater ports for export. The plan is

Government-imposed flooding and Government-imposed destruction
of U.S. producers' lifeline to both foreign and domestic markets.
This, I'm afraid, is an all-too-typical case where the benefits of the
Government-chosen recovery plan are theoretical, but the economic
ruin is imminent. I believe we can look and find better ways of
achieving the goals without the burdens that would come along
with the plan.

A lot of people tell me in Missouri, they don't want the Govern-
ment to provide for them or guarantee them a job; they would be
satisfied if Government simply stopped needlessly eliminating jobs
they already have. They want the species protection law reform
also to account for the economic and social needs of human beings.

They want reliable science and they want to see some balance and
common sense injected into a law whose fundamental premise is

widely supported. This is Missouri's endangered species horror
story.

I don't feel it's necessary to demonize the law to justify changing
it. Clearly, this law needs to be changed. I believe that has been
recognized by the Department of Interior which has proposed
changes. Last week. Assistant Secretary Frampton told the House
Appropriations Subcommittee, "We know the Endangered Species
Act has problems, we are working to solve those problems." Yester-
day, the Department announced a series of fundamental changes.
I applaud the Department for its willingness to recognize the prob-
lem and to be part of the effort to reform the Act, but frankly, it

is a recognition that changes are needed.
The distinguished chairman has stated his desire for an expedi-

tious review and amendment of the Act as part of reauthorization.

That brings us to the purpose of this moratorium.
Mr. Chairman, somebody—maybe from my State, maybe from

someplace else—said, "When you've gotten yourself into a deep
hole, the first thing you have to do is stop digging." This is how
I characterize the bill being introduced by Senator Hutchison—I'm

pleased to be a cosponsor of it. The Senator from Texas wants to

restrain the Grovemment's shovel long enough to draft a reform
blueprint with the concurrence and involvement of the American
people. I think it prudent, Mr. Chairman, to give the American peo-

ple a breather from the burdens of the Act until Congress, the Ad-
ministration, environmental groups, and the American people have



the opportunity to let democracy work its will on the larger task
of reauthorization.

I congratulate the sponsor of the bill and appreciate the chair-

man's willingness to hold these hearings. I look forward to working
with the chairman, my colleagues, and with the Administration as
we do the important and difficult work of reforming the underlying
law.

Thank you.
Senator Kempthorne. Senator Bond, thank you very much.
Senator Lautenberg?

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. FRANK R. LAUTENBERG,
U.S. SENATOR FROM THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY

Senator Lautenberg. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of
the subcommittee.
My commendation as well for moving on this proposed legisla-

tion. I'm pleased to take part in a review of S. 191, the distin-

guished Senator from Texas' bill which would put a hold on admin-
istration of the Endangered Species Act until it's reauthorized.
Mr. Chairman, I fully agree with the statement that you made

at the hearing last week when you said, "Let's stay away from the
polarization and let's make it work." That's the general reference
to actions that we may take here. I think it applies. We need to

seriously review what's wrong with this Act, what's right and what
we can do to make it better.

I look forward to working with you throughout this process in the
spirit of full cooperation, but Mr. Chairman, I am concerned about
the impact of S. 191 and the effect it could have on endangered and
threatened species and on this subcommittee's thorough review of

the Act itself. Placing a moratorium on the listing of endangered
and threatened species and on the designation of critical habitats
will not make the problems go away.
The listing of an imperiled species is necessary to ensure that it

receives the protection of the Endangered Species Act. Each time
a species is listed, it sends out a warning signal that some part of

the ecosystem is in danger. There are currently 118 species that
have been proposed for ESA listing. This bill would render us pow-
erless to protect the future of these 118 threatened species.

Mr. Chairman, the process of listing endangered species is a nec-

essary step in maintaining our fragile ecosystems. It's critical for

medical and scientific progress. I think it's also important in defin-

ing our role as humans in the ecosystem in which we live.

S. 191 doesn't do anjrthing to further these goals. Passing this

bill would mean putting our heads in the sand for a few years and
when we come up for air at the end of that period, where would
we find ourselves—certainly, in my view, much worse off than we
are today. Our endangered species will still be endangered; the cost

of recovery will simply have increased and we will have learned a
very basic and dangerous lesson. The problems go away just be-

cause you ignore them.
Mr. Chairman, I want to work together in a bipartisan manner

to implement real reforms in the Endangered Species Act and I un-
derstand that the Administration has already begun to implement
reforms. I look forward to hearing from the Secretary of Interior on
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how these reforms are working. I'm particularly concerned about
the message that S. 191 would send to landowners. Instead of say-
ing that we're going to work together to find solutions, this bill

says to them, we have decided to ignore the ecosystem for the next
few years, so don't bother working to improve endangered species
protections. Sure, we may be back in a couple of months or a couple
of years, and surely, this situation will have deteriorated by then
and surely, recovery will be more expensive, but we'll worry about
it when the time comes because right now we're not thinking in the
long term.

I understand this bill is part of a legislative response to a per-
ceived desire of the American people to put a halt on burdensome
regulations, but a recent poll fund that 77 percent of the Americans
want to maintain the Endangered Species Act or even to strength-
en it. One only need look at the news and see the questions that
have arisen about the sudden death of lots of bald eagles; I watch
with interest what happens when we try to protect disappearing
fish species; and how anxious everybody gets when we see the de-

cline in the supplies of basic fish like cod, striped bass or rockfish,

as it's known. Everybody starts to worry about that and rightfully

so. We may be cutting off the very opportunity to feed ourselves
and to take care of the needs of future populations and also be-
cause I don't want to cheat my grandchildren out of some of the
wonders and some of the opportunities that I had as a child grow-
ing up.

The general public understands that the Endangered Species Act
enables us to take proactive steps that address threats to species

before the decline is irreversible. They want to save endangered
species before key components of our ecosystem are relegated to the
walls of natural history museums. We have a moral responsibility

to make sure that doesn't happen. I hope that my colleagues will

think long and hard about the dangers inherent in this action and
that we can work together to reform the Endangered Species Act
and not to retard it.

I thank you very much.
Senator Kempthorne. Senator Lautenberg, thank you very

much.
With that, I'd like to invite Senator Hutchison to come forward

and give us the benefit of her thoughts concerning S. 191 and S.

503, the bills she has authored.

STATEMENT OF HON. KAY BAILEY HUTCHISON,
U.S. SENATOR FROM THE STATE OF TEXAS

Senator Hutchison. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I think the interest shown by the participation in the hearing is

indicative of how hard-fought the issue is going to be and how im-
portant it is that we look at every aspect of reauthorization of the
Endangered Species Act. I think that makes it even more impor-
tant that we pass S. 191 because we need to take a time out as
we discuss these major issues to make sure that nothing happens
under the clearly flawed, I think, Endangered Species Act imple-

mentation. I hope that we can all come to an accommodation of a
reauthorization that would allow us to go forward without further

conflicts as we have seen.
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I'm pleased that Secretary Babbitt has now joined my call for

legislative overhaul of the Endangered Species Act. I'm certainly
willing to listen to his suggestions. He is correct that small land-
owners should not bear the burden of protecting species, but nei-

ther should ranchers and farmers. Endangered species protection,

if it is a worthwhile goal for society, then society at large, not just
the men and women who produce our food and clothing, must fairly

share the burden and the cost of species protection.

Reauthorization of the Act is made more difficult by the heated
public debate over individual listings of species and by overzealous
enforcement of the Act by the Fish and Wildlife Service. To make
a responsible debate of a reauthorization possible, it is time to call

a "time-out" on further listings.

In January, I introduced a bill, S. 191, to put the moratorium on
further listings with the cosponsorship of Senators Lott, Bums,
Cochran, Gramm, Grassley, Inhofe, Kyi, Nickles, Pressler and
Bond. In trying to meet the concerns of members of this committee,
yesterday, I introduced an alternative version that limits the mora-
torium to 6 months from today and omits the moratorium on the
consultation mandate. This assumes that we will move forward on
a quick basis so that the dates that we have set in the new bill

do not become really unfair to our intended compromise of a 6-

month moratorium.
The Federal Government will only be able to protect species

under the Act with proper direction from Congress and with full

support of the public. By restricting land and water use through
additional listings, the Fish and Wildlife Service is undermining
public support for the Act and is actually harming the cause of pro-

tecting species from extinction.

My bill will permit reauthorization debate to go forward without
further unconstitutional erosion of private property rights or fur-

ther damage to the economy and society of affected areas. Right
now, the Fish and Wildlife Service is proposing to list a species in

the Panhandle of Texas, the Arkansas River shiner, that has been
used for fish bait.

The listing of the Arkansas River shiner as an endangered spe-

cies in Texas, Oklahoma and Kansas is not necessary. There is a
shiner population in the Pecos River of New Mexico that is not at
risk and others may be established. With separate populations, the
shiner is not in danger of extinction. Its listing would subject
ground water and surface water in the Texas Panhandle, Okla-
homa and Kansas to control by the Fish and Wildlife Service.

Listing the shiner could have a profound impact on the Pan-
handle's surface and ground water supply. Water from the Ogallala
Aquifer serves the citizens of Amarillo and the surrounding areas.

If the shiner is listed, use of the aquifer could be cut back, causing
severe difficulties to the region's agricultural economy. Similarly,

use of surface water is essential to the farming communities sur-

rounding Amarillo and Lubbock; limitations on surface water use
could also harm their economies.
Water is scarce in the Panhandle. We cannot afford to give fish

bait more protection than people, but if the shiner is listed, it will

have more right to the water than the Panhandle farmers and
ranchers and the people of Amarillo, TX.
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My bill also puts a moratorium on the designation of critical

habitat so that property owners won't lose control of their land.
Designating critical habitat puts unjust limits on the use, market
value and transferability of property. The stigma of critical habitat
protection should not be imposed by a government that is claiming
to protect property as a constitutional right.

Last year, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, which enforces the
Endangered Species Act, proposed that up to 800,000 acres from 33
Texas counties be considered for designation as critical habitat for

the golden-cheeked warbler. This action held up land transfers,

construction, home and business lending in an area the size of
Rhode Island. It also made other environmental problems worse.
Landowners couldn't get permits to cut and clear juniper trees

—

which are known as cedar in Texas—even if the trees were on
rangeland, rather than in the creeks where the Warbler lives.

These cedars use tremendous amounts of water, the same water
that could recharge the Edwards Aquifer and protect the fountain
darter and four other endangered species that live in two springs
that flow from the Edwards Aquifer. Stopping cedar clearing also

increased pollen discharges and causes a disease known as "cedar
fever" in the hill country. This cedar tree pollen is dispersed
through the air and it looks like smoke. Thousands of people in

Central Texas are allergic to the pollen and lose work from head-
aches, fevers and nasal congestion. Cedar control is necessary not
just for land use, but for public health too.

After the public outcry forced the Interior Department to drop its

plan to consider 800,000 acres in Texas for critical habitat designa-
tion, Texas and Southwestern Cattle Raisers Association released
a study of the impact of endangered species concerns on property
values in Texas. The study found that over the last 5 years, the 33
counties most affected by endangered species lost $5 billion in rural
land value, while the State, as a whole, lost $23 billion in rural
land value. The lost in value in the 33 counties accounted for 22
percent of the State loss in land value. However, such counties
have only 13 percent of the State's land.

Land values in all Texas counties were affected by interest rates,

grain and livestock prices, in addition to endangered species. But
the fact that the loss in land value in the 33 anected counties ex-

ceeded the average loss in value for the rest of the State is one ob-

jective measure of the impact of endangered species listings on
rural land.

The failure of critical habiial designation plan didn't stop Fish
and Wildlife from trjdng. It then proposed a habitat conservation
plan for Travis County that would have permitted owners of single

family, residential lots to pay $1,500 to apply for a permit to con-

struct their home. Higher fees would have applied for development
by the acre; Fish and Wildlife thought that this was a good deal

because it was less expensive than the legal fees landowners were
incurring in fighting for their own private property rights. They
really were holding people up who bought a lot to build a home by
ransoming their constitutional rights.

It's no surprise that in the Texas and Southwestern Cattle Rais-

ers study, rural land values dropped more in Travis County than
in any other Texas County, $1.3 billion in the past 5 years. The
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Fish and Wildlife Service counts nine endangered species in Travis
County and is proposing to list the Barton Springs salamander to

round it off to ten.

I'm pleased that Secretary Babbitt stated yesterday that "Small
landowners should be exempted from conservation burdens on the

basis of fairness and biology. Most species won't survive on small

tracts of land and it;. ^lOt fair to tie up small landowners." I hope
that means that we won't see the Interior Department extorting

funds in Travis County anymore.
With about 300 candidate species in Texas, including 11 flies and

12 beetles, landowners in my State may face problems similar to

the golden-cheeked warbler problem again if new species are listed.

A moratorium will stop these species from being listed until after

Congress enacts new listing standards or 6 months from now. No
further losses of property rights or control of water supplies should
occur until Congress can put common sense back into species con-

servation.

I am discouraged to 1:ar that some people may be planning to

cast the endangered species debate as an effort to help only large

landowners. I don't need to talk about constitutional rights to tell

you how wrong that is. In Texas, 3,000 people turned out to talk

about critical habitat designation in towns where no more than
1,000 people live. That's not the turnout you get for an issue that

only affects the rich.

Rick Perry, our Texas Agriculture Commissioner, has heard from
thousands of farmers about the effect of the Endangered Species

Act on farmers. He's here today and will be able to tell you what
it means on a local level for the people who produce the raw mate-
rials for our food and clothing.

In sum, Mr. Chairman, I have not chosen to talk about what I

think should be in the Endangered Species Act reauthorization

today. I hope I will be able to do that when we have a bill on the

table. The 20 years of listings have achieved the primary goal of

protecting essential species from extinction. We now have more
than 900 species listed. The Fish and Wildlife Service has had ade-

quate time to carry out its primary responsibilities under the Act.

It has overzealously enforced the Act by expanding the definition

of a harm beyond Congress' intent, listing species without regard

to water supplies necessary for the health and safety of the people

and proposing habitat without taking economic concerns into ac-

count unless it was forced to do so by the people.

Congress, with its legislative and ove/?i At powers, delegates en-

forcement authority to administrative agencies. When those agen-

cies lose sight of Congress' intentions and lose their common sense,

only Congress and the President can set them straight. Now is the

time for Congress to review their actions and exercise its legislative

power to revise their instructions. Let's call a time-out on listings

until we can put endangered species protection back on track.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Senator Kempthorne. Senator Hutchison, thank you very much.
Senator Reid has now arrived. Before we go to a round of ques-

tions, let me ask Senator Reid if he has an opening comment?
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OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. HARRY REID,
U.S. SENATOR FROM THE STATE OF NEVADA

Senator Reid. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I apologize
for being late but it was unavoidable.

I appreciate your working with us on the series of hearings on
this issue, I'm grateful to you in that regard.

Mr. Chairman, today's New York Times forces me to divert from
my written statement. I grew up in Nevada and one of the families
that lived close to us was raised by a widow. They were all tough
kids, there were eight of them. These boys were the toughest kids
in the neighborhood and they became close friends. I played ball

with them all through school.

As I became an adult and we married, my friend, Don, the sec-

ond oldest boy in the family, had this son he was so proud of, a
little boy who was a good little baseball player. He hit a ball that
should have been a home run and he was coming around third
base, and when he slowed down and didn't run as fast as his dad
thought, his dad jumped all over him. Well, this little boy had leu-

kemia they found out shortly thereafter and he died quick, real

quick.

In the days when my children were young, childhood leukemia
was a death sentence for children. It's not now. Why? One of the
main reasons is they found a plant that cures childhood leukemia,
the periwinkle bush. I don't know what a periwinkle bush is but
I know that if Don Vincent's little boy had had the information we
have today, he'd be alive now.

I don't know really what we're doing here, Mr. Chairman. We
had one bill that we were going to talk about, S. 191, and my un-
derstanding is that there's been a new bill, S. 503, that the Senator
from Texas has introduced and that the hearing is now on this new
bill, is that right?

Senator Kempthorne. That is correct. I think Senator
Hutchison's testimony and the questions will clarify that but she
has made some modifications to S. 191.

Senator Reid. My statement, which I ask unanimous consent of

the committee be made a part of this record, indicates that we need
to do something about the Endangered Species Act. In fact, this

committee recognized it last year. Senators Baucus, Chafee and
Graham worked very, very hard on this and we got a long ways
down the road to revamping the Endangered Species Act. I ac-

knowledge to the Senator from Texas, we need to update and work
on the problems we have had with the Endangered Species Act.

I have to tell you, Mr. Chairman, I think that a flat-out morato-
rium is the wrong way to go on this. I'm willing to work with the
Senator from Texas and anybody else to reauthorize the Endan-
gered Species Act, to make it a more responsive piece of legislation,

but I am going to have to have a lot more information than I have
now as to why we should have a moratorium. I think it's the wrong
way to go, I think it sends the wrong message to everyone, includ-

ing those people who have problems with Endangered Species nov
like we have in Southern Nevada where we have listings already
It's not going to help those people. All it's going to do is send i

wrong message to everyone.
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I'll be happy to work with the majority the best that we can on
this but I think we're headed in the wrong direction with a morato-
rium.

I would ask again unanimous consent that my full statement be
a part of the record.

Senator Kempthorne. Without objection.

[The prepared statement of Senator Reid follows:]

Statement of Hon. Harry Reid, U.S. Senator from the State of Nevada

Mr. Chairman, I welcome the opportunity to begin the process of moving forward

to reform and enhance the overall effectiveness of the Endangered Species Act. Not

only do I believe that reform is essential, but I also believe it must be done as soon

as possible. Landowners all across my State of Nevada, from all types of industries,

homebuilders as well as homeowners voice a recurring theme—we need reform.

Clearly we must do more to ensure that the section 4 listing process is based on

sound science, make the consultation and HCP process more workable and efficient,

and provide greater flexibility to achieve the laudable goal of preserving species at

less cost to landowners. Fortunately, under the capable leadership of Senators Bau-

cus, Chafee and Graham, we as a committee made considerable progress last year

in moving toward real reform, we had a number of hearings that focused on ways

we could foster conservation of threatened and endangered species on public as well

as private lands and explored ways to create economic incentives for landowners.

The Administration, in response to its increasing awareness of the shortcomings

of the Act, yesterday published a 10 point proposal to improve the Act by making
it more fair, cooperative and scientifically sound. I hope Secretary Babbitt will high-

light some of these proposals during his remarks today.

The point is clear. All parties agree. We must reform this Act, and the sooner the

better. But this does not mean we should seek a quick fix. Instead we should har-

ness the current, almost universal support for reform, and use it to move toward

comprehensive reform. Because I believe this, I have some serious concerns about

S. 191 which seeks to amend the Endangered Species Act by imposing a moratorium

on section 4 listings and section 7 consultations.

I hope this hearing will help us answer some basic questions I have about S. 191.

Does this bill achieve the goals of making the Act more efficient, more workable

and less burdensome, or is this just a bandaid that masks the bigger underlying

problems, while letting the species problems get more acute and more severe? Will

this moratorium ultimately end up costing the taxpayers more to recover a species

that is further down the road to extinction than it would have been in the absence

of this moratorium? Do we want to take away the section 7 consultation, a part of

the Act that everyone seems to approve of? If we do this, doesn't this force an agen-

cy or a private landowner to go through the HCP process—a longer, more time con-

suming, more expensive and more cumbersome process.

Does this bill give relief to the parties that we intend to help? The moratorium

of listings under S. 191, as I understand it, would not give relief to landowners who
have specifies on their land that are currently listed. Instead, it would only give re-

lief to landowners who may have species that may be listed in the future, does the

bill take away the opportunity for implementing an emergency listing process as

provided in section 4? I am very concerned that we be able to maintain this provi-

sion, and would appreciate the panelists addressing how they view the legislation

impacting on this issue.

To sum up, I have serious concerns over this bill. I am concerned that the bill

will worsen the risk of species extinction, make recovery more costly and delay

meaningful comprehensive reform. Because of this, I hope that the committee will

continue to move forward on more comprehensive legislative reform.
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Senator Chafee. Mr. Chairman, could I just make one point?

Senator Kempthorne. Senator Chafee?
Senator Chafee. Senator Reid and I have discussed this and the

original bill that Senator Hutchison had was a moratorium until

the Act was reauthorized which was an indefinite point. She's

modified that so that it is a 6-month moratorium, starting fi-om

March 7, i.e., today. So it's not a major change fi*om the thrust of

the Act as you and I discussed. Indeed, in many ways I suppose
you could call it a cutback from the Act that you and I discussed.

Senator Hutchison. Mr. Chairman, if I could just respond to

that?
Senator Kempthorne. Senator Hutchison?
Senator Hutchison. It's certainly an accommodation to the con-

cerns of the chairman and other members of the committee on the
minority side. I am trying to work with the committee. Senator
Reid, and that's why I modified the bill to try to accommodate some
of the concerns that the chairman and the minority side had.
Senator Reid. I would ask unanimous consent that this article

that I referred to in the New York Times where they refer to the
periwinkle bush as curing childhood leukemia be made a part of

the record?
Senator Kempthorne. Without objection. I also place in the

record a statement by Senator Lieberman.
[The article and statement by Senator Lieberman follow:]

[From the New York Times, March 7, 1995]

Rx FOR Endangered Species Law: Empty Medicine Bottles

(By NataUe Angier)

Like a songbird twittering gamely in a thunderstorm, a group of environmental-

ists last week announced the start of a nationwide campaign to help keep the En-

dangered Species Act from having its wings clipped or its feathers plucked.

Speaking at a news conference here, members of the Endangered Species Coali-

tion, an alliance of 188 environmental, scientific and civic groups, described their

Medicine bottle campaign, an effort to urge Americans to send empty medicine vials

to President Clinton or their Congressional representatives. The gesture is intended

to underscore the importance of plant products and other wild sources to the Na-

tion's pharmaceutical offerings.

Speakers pointed out that almost half of the medicines and treatments used today

can be traced to plants, fungi and extracts from chemically endowed animals like

toads and fireflies. The Madagascar periwinkle has yielded what amounts to a cure

for childhood leukemia, they said, the Pacific yew tree has provided Taxol, a treat-

ment for breast and ovarian cancer, and nearly all prescription antibiotics were iso-

lated from molds and microbes.

Pleading against changes to the Endangered Species Act proposed in the Repub-

licans' Contract With America, Dr. Thomas Eisner of Cornell University, a re-

nowned biologist and chairman of the coalition, asked for what he called a "contract

with nature."

"Nature is a vast unknown," he said. "The most valuable data in the bank is as

yet untapped. The irony of the Endangered Species Act is that most species can't

be listed on it, because they have no name yet."

As an example of the potential of "the gene bank of nature," he passed around

a pungent sample of Lake Placid mint, once called scrub mint for its weedlike ap-
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pearance. Last year Dr. Eisner and his colleagues discovered that the plant was rich

with a natural insect repellent that deterred swarms of ants. Just within the last

couple weeks, he said, he and his co-workers. Dr. John Clardy and Dr. Ignacio

Chapela, found that the roots of the plant contained a powerful anti-fungal agent

with potential clinical value.

The need for such compounds is dire, Dr. Eisner said, particularly for those with

AIDS and other immune deficiencies, who are prey to many devastating fungal dis-

eases that current drugs cannot salve.

The Lake Placid mint, he said, is found only within 300 acres of a protected bio-

logical station of central Florida, where he does research. Were it not for its privi-

leged position, said Dr. Eisner, the little plant and its promise might have dis-

appeared long ago.

Also speaking at the meeting was Elsiine Forman, chairwoman of the World Hun-
ger Committee, who in May 1991 learned that she had ovarian cancer and was told

she had 6 months to live. Conventional chemotherapeutic drugs failed to help her,

but upon taking Taxol she went into remission and has now been symptom-free for

2 years. "Were it not for Taxol, I probably would not be alive today," she said. "The

drug gave me back my life."

Statement of Hon. Joseph L Lieberman, U.S. Senator from the State of
Connecticut

Thank you Mr. Chairman, for this opportunity to talk about what I regard as one

of the most important environmental laws in this Nation. I am opposed to S. 503,

the proposed moratorivun on implementation of the Endangered Species Act, even

with its limits on scope and duration. To the extent that opportunities exist to im-

prove the Act, and I believe they do, my strong preference is to do so through full

legislative reauthorization, such as we attempted in the last Congress through the

Baucus-Chafee bUl, S. 921.

I also believe we should work closely with Interior Secretary babbitt and NOAA
Administrator Baker in this process to benefit from lessons they have learned over

the last 2 years of implementing the Act. Secretary Babbitt provided "Guideposts

for Reauthorization" in his recent announcement that I believe are essential to our

deliberations.

In addition, we should encourage administrative improvements, such as those an-

nounced recently by Secretary Babbitt, as a thoughtful way to make the law work
better without legislation. These flexibility measures provide a major, but carefully

considered framework for change. They also demonstrate that the existing Act has

far more innovative potential than most of us realize. Some of the administrative

actions announced by Secretary Babbitt represent starting points that may require

further development or legislation to realize their full potential. Other fix known
glitches. We should foster and learn from this process of continuous, administrative

improvement.

By devoting this committee's limited time to reauthorization instead of a morato-

rium, and by working closely with Secretary Babbitt and Administrator Baker, we
will achieve the most expeditious and effective resolution of Endangered Species Act

issues. I am convinced that a moratorium will not address the issues. I am con-

vinced that a moratorium will not address the real changes needed under the Act,

and instead will become a distraction with severe and unintended consequences. We
cannot afford to waste time in this manner.

The Endangered Species Act is truly the last line of defense for many wild plant

and animal populations in this Nation— and many other places on earth. It is, nec-

essarily, one of our strictest environmental laws. Unfortunately, many species have

not survived even with this level of protection. I far too many cases, Federal laws
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or other actions intended to prevent species' decline have been inadequate, leaving

the Endangered Species Act as the last resort, the emergency room. The solution

to overflow in this emergency room is not to shut it down. This Act simply must
not fail. The consequence will be extinction of large numbers of plants and animals

with untold values.

The need for protection of rare plant and animal groups are simply enormous. Ac-

cording to the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (FWS), almost 4,000 populations are

candidates for listing as "threatened" or "endangered". As of February 9, 1995, all

necessary scientific and legal requirements have been completed for 296 of these;

they are ready for immediate listing. Despite this backlog, only about 800 species

have been listed nationwide, and 600 worldwide since the Act's inception—again,

compared to almost 4,000 candidates.

This list is large for three reasons. First, the other creatures we share this earth

with face absolutely unprecedented threats from our own activities. Our human de-

mands have never been greater. Our lack of attention has never been costlier. Sec-

ond, too often we have not supported the Act adequately with funding and adminis-

trative support. Only 12 species were listed during a 2-year periods in the Reagan
Administration, including a small crustacean in the National Zoo. Countless others

languished in the process, and the list kept growing. Third, too often we have failed

to exercise preventive measures that would have nipped population declines in the

bud for a fraction of the cost of recovery. Many Federal resource management laws

or other programs have not done what we intended to address population declines,

and we now are paying the price. An ounce of prevention is truly worth a pound
of cure.

The good news is that a strong, smart and comprehensive Endangered Species Act

can help resolve each of these problems.

When one considers the disasters we often start with, problems in implementing

the Endangered Species Act have been remarkably rare, and successes remarkably

common. We have a positive track record to build on. Where opportunities for im-

provement exist, I am committed to balanced, effective approaches. But there are

far too many patients in the emergency room, and far too many waiting, to impose

a moratorium. Instead, we should devote our time and energy to reauthorization of

a strong Endangered Species Act, and implementation of administrative changes to

address real and immediate needs.

We are all trustees of these precious resources, here for a limited time, and re-

sponsible for the next generation. Let's join together in the most effective and re-

sponsible way to meet this challenge.

Senator Kempthorne. Ladies and gentlemen, let's begin with
questions. Let's go ahead and use the timing clock.

Senator Hutchison, I've heard comments from some individuals

suggesting that the real intent of a moratorium is to be the perma-
nent solution with regard to the Endangered Species Act and that
as long as we leave that in place, we've effectively dealt with the
Endangered Species Act. Would you just comment on that? You've
stated it, but perhaps restate what your intent is?

Senator Hutchison. Yes. Mr. Chairman, I believe the Endan-
gered Species Act is a worthy Act. I think that the regulators have
gone beyond common sense and we need to take the time and make
sure that we don't throw out the possibility of saving periwinkle
bushes and grizzly bears and condors. There is a big difference be-

tween eagles and condors and grizzly bears and bait fish and
concho snakes and kangaroo rats. I think that we have to put some
common sense into it and I think we need to take the time to do
it.
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The reason that I have introduced the moratorium bill is so that
we will not continue to have these absurd uses of the Act during
the time that we are clearly going to change some of the intentions

of the Act. So I hope that we can come out with a bill that will get

100 percent support of the U.S. Senate, but until we do, I think it's

very important that we not continue to allow bait fish to hold up
the water supply of an entire region of our country. I think we can
take the time and debate and I think we should take the time and
give everyone a say in the debate on this issue.

Senator Kempthorne. Just for clarification, your new proposal
would put into effect a moratorium for 6 months effective as of

March 7, and also your new proposal does not extend the morato-
rium to the section 7 consultation process, is that correct? Could
you give me just your thoughts on that?

Senator Hutchison. Yes. It doesn't put a moratorium on con-

sultations, but it puts a moratorium on the consultation require-

ment in the original bill. We don't mind if consultations continue,

that's not the real focus of the bill. So we are certainly accommo-
dating of some of the fears on that one.

Senator Kempthorne. All right.

Senator Chafee?
Senator Chafee. I have no questions.

Senator Kempthorne. All right.

Senator Boxer?
Senator Boxer. Thanks, Mr. Chairman.
Senator Hutchison, you're moving in the right direction. Maybe

in a couple more weeks we won't have any moratorium whatsoever.
I'm very pleased to see that we're getting this moratorium down,
you've excluded section 7, but I have to say this. I find it very hard
to understand why you would find the need to do this.

You have in the chairman of this subcommittee someone you ob-

viously trust and work with; the full committee chairman is of your
party and has a long history in working with both sides. Do you
not trust this committee to come to grips with this problem? Should
we do a moratorium on every single Act that's up for reauthoriza-

tion?

Senator Hutchison. Senator Boxer, it's not the committee that

is in question here; it is the people that we have designated to im-

plement our decisions that I think have gone beyond what Con-
gress intended. It is not a moratorium on anything that the com-
mittee might do; it's a moratorium on the Fish and Wildlife Depart-
ment going beyond what I think Congress intended and what I be-

lieve Congress will reauthorize in the future.

Senator BoxER. I understand your point, but in essence, it is this

committee and others in the House side, and eventually a con-

ference committee, which is going to debate just those very ques-

tions. I think if every Senator just decided they didn't like a bu-

reaucrat and decided to put a hold on legislation, I don't think
that's the right way to go about it, but that's a disagreement that

we have.
Senator Hutchison. Well, Senator Boxer, there are going to be

moratoriums requested for many of the bills that will be up for re-

authorization.
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Senator Boxer. I understand. I would hope that those do not
pass over here on this side, but it's a reasonable debate for us to
have.
Do you know how many species would be stopped from becoming

listed by your moratorium?
Senator Hutchison. Yes. There are 118 species that could ripen

at any moment; 24 have just been added to the "preliminary find-

ings" level so that they could go to the "proposed" level, so that's

where we are, a total of 300. You know, there are several vari-

ations. There are candidates and then there are the findings and
there are the proposed, and then there are the listed.

Senator Boxer. What is the grand total that would be held up
by your moratorium, approximately 300?

Senator Hutchison. Well, if we don't have a moratorium, you
have 300 that could go into the next level. You have 118 that could
go immediately into listings.

Senator Boxer. So it's a pretty broad reach.
I wanted to comment on your point that you made when you said

you think the Act is important and you said there is a difference
between the bald eagle and the condor and the grizzly and some-
thing like the kangaroo rat. I wanted to make a point here because
these species that are so grand that we all agree should rightly

have been saved live in an environment that is quite connected. If

suddenly the grizzly doesn't find any prey and can't find anything
to eat, the grizzly is gone.
So for us to say, well, gee, these species up here are wonderful

but the ones down there are useless is a very dangerous course for

us to take because it is all connected. That is the message we learn
when we study the environment.
Have you ever heard of the Pacific yew?
Senator Hutchison. Yes, but I'm certainly not an expert. Per-

haps Secretary Babbitt could answer your question.
Senator Boxer. I know about the Pacific yew. I just didn't know

if you did, if you knew what it is used for?

Senator HUTCHISON. No.
Senator Boxer. Well, let me tell you. The Pacific yew is a plant

and it yields the drug taxol which is now the key to the treatment
of ovarian and breast cancer. I want to associate myself with the
remarks of Senator Reid. If we're going to be so cavalier about na-
ture, we're only hurting ourselves. I don't have to tell you because
you're a real fighter against breast cancer, that we lose 40,000
women a year to that disease and taxol right now is our main hope.

I would ask you why you have included plants in your morato-
rium?
Senator Hutchison. Because, Senator Boxer, I think what we

have to do is focus on a common sense approach and sometimes
these plants do affect the economy. There is a difference between
a blind salamander or a bait fish just being able to be part of na-
ture and a bait fish or a blind salamander that cuts off the water
supply of the tenth largest city in America. I think you have to

make a common sense distinction.

I think when it is a plant that will help cure cancer, there are
many ways to save that plant and encourage it without making it

stop the building of a reservoir. Those are the kinds of common
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sense things that I think we can put in the equation. I don't think
we had to break down the entire timber industry of the Northwest
to save a spotted owl. A spotted owl could have been saved in near-
by public lands.

Senator Boxer, If I might just reclaim my time because it's up,
I just want to say this. To me, it is the height of arrogance to turn
our back on nature and it is not a common sense approach because
when the yew tree, before it was discovered that it had the cure
here perhaps for ovarian-breast cancer, taxol, it was being chopped
down for its bark and there was a big hue and cry over it. Now
finally it is recognized.

So what could happen during this moratorium time is we could
lose some very precious gift and I would hope that you would have
faith and trust in this committee, and that we can get right to

work and resolve those problems because the common sense that
you talk about is necessary in this equation and I think we can get
at it other than through a moratorium which I think could go
against the health and safety of the people of the United States of

America.
Senator Kempthorne. I would note that Senator Hutchison is

not advocating the repeal of the Endangered Species Act. She is ad-
vocating that there be a 6-month moratorium and I believe that
Senator Hutchison will be a positive factor as we all share in a
good discussion as to that reauthorization of that Act which we
know needs to occur.

Senator BoXER. Mr. Chairman, if I might just respond. I know
that. I want Senator Hutchison to work with us, but I think a mor-
atorium is an abdication. She herself cited large numbers of plants
and species that would be put on hold. What if they're gone by the
time we get around to lifting it here. It may be easier just to say
at that time, oh, 6-month moratorium, let's extend it again. I think
it's just a bad habit to start when it comes to the ESA.
Senator Kempthorne. Senator Bond?
Senator Bond. Senator Hutchison, I would like to hear your com-

ments. Perhaps, as the witness, you might wish to comment fur-

ther. I do not believe your purpose is to see us lose any valuable
species. Would you characterize the moratorium as being an oppor-
tunity for this committee to exercise oversight in an area where
even those administering the Act realize that changes must be
made?
Senator Hutchison. I will just say that anything that is on the

list right now, has been on the list for a while and I haven't heard
any dire predictions of loss. I think it's just a matter of sajdng we
are going to rein in regulations that have gone beyond congres-
sional intent. To have some ripen now that goes beyond our con-

gressional intent, such as an Arkansas River shiner, which is a bait

fish, I think would be a tragedy.
Senator Boxer makes a very good point about nature, but what

about the people out there who have had drastic effects on their

property, their ability to build a home? People who bought residen-

tial lots to build their retirement homes are not able to do that be-

cause they find that they are in a designated Golden-Cheeked War-
bler area. I just think the effects on peoples' lives is not part of the
equation that is being used by Fish and Wildlife, and I think Fish
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and Wildlife needs more direction. I'm just saying, let's stop now
for 6 months while we do have the chance to debate this Act, which
I hope to be able to support because I do want to save endangered
species.

I think we can do a lot more innovative, common sense things
than we are doing now. Let me give you just one example. Almost
20 or 30 years ago, when the blind salamander was considered en-
dangered because the Edwards Aquifer was low because of a
drought, they took the blind salamander out, they put it in another
habitat. It grew and flourished; the Edwards Aquifer came back up
naturally; they put it back in and we went right along.

But this time when we have had a low aquifer, the blind sala-

mander is now being declared endangered and it is threatening the
water supply of the tenth largest city of America. There are court
orders and other things that the Endangered Species Act has fos-

tered, but that just doesn't make sense. There is a common sense
solution and that's what I hope we come to and I hope to be able
to work positively in that direction.

Senator Bond. Do you have some suggestions on changes that we
might make in the ESA to improve its effectiveness, its credibility

and make it less burdensome?
Senator Hutchison. Absolutely. I think we need to have a cost-

benefit analysis, not of the designation. No one wants to stop the
designation, but when you come then to what we do about it, I

think there has to be a cost-benefit analysis, whether we save a
concho snake and it cost $6 million to move a reservoir or we tear
down the timber industry of the Northwest for a spotted owl that
could have an alternative habitat, so I think cost-benefit analysis.

I think of making judgments scientific basis. I'm not sure that a
rat that is only different from the next species because its feet are
100 millimeters longer isn't just a mutation rather than a different

species, such that it would cause a man to be arrested and put in

prison because he might have run over one.

I think you could have alternative habitat designations so that
if there is public land nearby or other habitat that would not be
economically disordered, then you could move it if there is economic
disruption.

I think compensation for taking is going to be very important, for

instance if you lose the use of your land just as much if you can't

cut the cedar trees or if you can't use the water supply as if you
had a road running through it for which you would be paid. So
those are a few suggestions that I have.
Senator Bond. Thank you. Senator Hutchison.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Senator Kempthorne. Senator Bond, thank you very much.
Senator Reid?
Senator Reid. Mr. Chairman, I would hope that the result of this

hearing would be more of an incentive to expedite reauthorization

of the Endangered Species Act. I still say, unless I'm convinced to

the contrary, a moratorium is not the way to go.

For example, the Senator from Texas talks about a bait fish and
the Senator from California asked her, why did you list plants. In

this same article that is in this morning's paper, as an example of

the gene bank of nature, this scientist passed around a pungent
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sample of Lake Placid mint, once called scrub mint for its weedlike
appearance. Last year, Dr. Eisner and his colleagues discovered
that plant was rich with a natural insect repellant that deterred
swarms of ants, but they kept studying the plant and just within
the last couple of weeks, he and his coworkers—Dr. John Clardy
and Dr. Ignatio Chappella—found that the roots of the plant con-
tained a powerful antifungal agent with potential clinical value.
The reason this is important is not only for someone who has had

problems with a fungus but it deals with things like AIDS. The ar-

ticle goes on to say the reason this plant is important is the poten-
tial it has for working with patients with AIDS.

I simply say that I think a moratorium is not the right way to

go. As the Senator from Texas just said, everything that is cur-
rently listed, "has been for some time now," That's the whole point.

Why do we need moratorium then if they've been listed for some
time now?
One question. How do you propose Congress address the issue of

species that are proposed for listing that are highly endangered? I

assume we have to be concerned about those that may need imme-
diate attention if we're to save a species, and I assume that 6
months could be important to a particular species.

Senator Hutchison. First of all, let me say that what we're try-

ing to do is keep some of these on the proposed list from ripening.
That is the difference. There has been no showing that the Arkan-
sas River shiner is even really endangered. I think the scientific

basis is very much in question. I just think that the chances of
something coming up that's very new after we've already listed 900
is probably very small, but the danger of huge loss of property
rights and the inability to cut cedar trees which cause great health
hazards in my State, are very much real.

You can point out the periwinkle which obviously should be
saved and I want to save it but that's not what we're talking about
here. Senator Reid. We're talking about a 6-month moratorium so

that we have breathing room, so that we will not have people that
have to be sick because they can't cut cedar trees from their own
property.
Senator Reid. I would feel comfortable if we effected a morato-

rium in Texas and debated that issue rather than the whole coun-
try. If there are problems in Texas and there is reason for a 6-

month moratorium on a listing, then why don't we do that, but let's

not include the whole country.
Senator Hutchison. Senator Reid, I just happen to be more fa-

miliar with the horror stories in Texas, but I was in Los Angeles
2 weeks ago and the chairman of the Los Angeles Chamber of Com-
merce told me that there are two major issues that they are con-

cerned about in Los Angeles; one of which is the Endangered Spe-
cies Act. There are peoples' jobs at stake here. It's happening all

over America.
Senator Reid. But Senator Hutchison, it's the same in Nevada.

People are very concerned about the Endangered Species Act and
that's why I am glad I'm on this committee, and that's why I'm
glad we did work on it last year. I would hope that all your legisla-

tion is make us speed up the reauthorization. I again think that
a moratorium is the wrong way to go and I respect your reasons
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and feelings for this, but I feel the problems in Nevada are just as

complex as in Texas where we were ranked the fourth leading
State in the Nation for listings—California, Hawaii, Florida and
Nevada. So we've got a lot of problems, but I don't think we should
stop everything for 6 months. I think what we should do is in that
6-month period of time see if we can have a reauthorization.

Senator Kempthorne. Senator Hutchison, we appreciate very
much the proposal that you have placed before us and your com-
ments you've made. I was encouraged in the discussions and the

questions, one, that Senator Chafee, the full committee chair, has
made it very clear that the Environment and Public Works Com-
mittee has made reform of the Endangered Species Act a priority

for this year.

Also I heard consensus, I think, really from all members of this

subcommittee that everyone is supportive, that we will move on
this at an appropriate pace for the reform of the Endangered Spe-
cies Act.

I appreciate your proposal because I know how highly charged it

is in our respective States. People are fearful and in many cases,

angry over the implementation of the Endangered Species Act; and
though these feelings are not directed at a subcommittee or Con-
gress, the public is concerned about its implementation. I think it

would allow us, for that period while we move quickly for the re-

form, at an appropriate pace, that we can create an atmosphere
where we can lower the rhetoric and get on with the thoughtful,

thorough discussion of this.

Senator Boxer. Mr. Chairman, before Senator Hutchison goes, I

feel I have to say something because she raised Los Angeles which
is a small city in California. It goes to something that Senator Reid
said which is that is why I am on this committee because yes, the

issue of endangered species is very important to my State. Let me
tell you just how important.
Of the 118 species you talked about that are proposed for listing,

81 are plants. Mr. Chairman, I'd like you to hear this—81 are

plants; 70 of those plants are in California and you know how
many are in Texas? Zero.

I would hope if you're going to pursue this bill, since you've al-

ready watered it down somewhat, take another look at that side of

it because I can tell you right now, if you just look at the plants

and the potential, I would urge you since your interest is economics

and mine is as well, go visit Shaman Pharmaceutical, a venture

capital company in the Silicon Valley headed by a woman. Do you
know what the premise of Shaman Pharmaceutical is? They go to

the rain forests of South America and they study the plants and
the kinds of cures that are found by the witch doctors there; they

are called Shaman. She has started this company and it is most
successful. They've gone public, et cetera, and I would urge you to

understand something, that when we talk about economics, it cuts

both ways. There is a world of possibilities out there, but if we
don't save these species there is nothing out there.

So let's not abdicate our responsibilities, Mr. Chairman and rush

to mark up a moratorium. Let's rush to begin the reauthorization.

I think you've heard comments from everyone on this side, we're

ready to work with you. We had a chairman last year. Chairman
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Baucus, who worked with Ranking Member Senator Chafee and
they introduced the bill, as I remember it. I joined with them to

work on it. I think we can do this. We have Secretary Babbitt
ready to work with us and also it's very clear that we have some
problems with the Act, we all agree. We need to have this based
on science. When you get up here and say this isn't an endangered
species and that isn't an endangered species, I respect your opin-

ion, but I don't know that you come to us with the credentials for

that. I certainly don't come to you with the credentials to say what
is endangered and what isn't. We need science that we can all trust

and that's what I hope we will get to. I hope we will not go this

route, I hope we will go the route of reauthorization. I think we're
ready to do that.

Senator BOND. Let me say, I don't believe that Senator
Hutchison is claiming to be a scientist. I think that
mischaracterizes her testimony, and I really think it's not fair to

suggest that Senator Hutchison is proposing anything other than
using sound science. That is not the purpose of her bill and I would
hope the committee would not be misled.

Senator BoXER. I'm sorry. I was just responding to her comments
about the rat with the larger feet and her other comment that
dealt with the bait. She had made the statement.

Senator Kempthorne. Senator Boxer, I want to move along out
of respect for other witnesses, but much of the issues we're touch-
ing on is what we will return to in the hearings on the reform of

the Endangered Species Act. Senator Hutchison, I'll give you the
final word and then out of courtesy I'm going to invite you, if you
have the time, to join us here, and then we're going to move on
with the panel members.

Senator Hutchison. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would like to

just have the final word.
First, I want to make one correction. It was the fountain darter,

not the blind salamander, that was moved and restocked when the
Edwards Aquifer went down.
Senator Reid. I knew that. I was just going to see if you could

pick that up.

Senator Hutchison. Yes. I wanted you to know that I have some
scientific credentials here.

Second, I would just say to Senator Boxer's point, I would take
the same situation and have a different view. Everyone up here
has said that the Act is really in need of reauthorization. It is not
functioning in a way that everyone is satisfied with and, in fact,

all of us have some problems. It may be different problems, but
there are some problems. I think that, in itself, argues for the need
to shut down the implementation that we all admit is going in the
wrong direction in some ways and say, let's do this right and let's

not harm our economy, jobs, health, and private property rights as

we do change this Act so that it does reflect congressional intent.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Senator KEMPTHORNE. Senator Hutchison, we appreciate your ef-

fective testimony. Time permitting, you're more than welcome to

join us here.

Senator Hutchison. I will do that. Thank you very much.
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Senator KIempthorne. With that, let me invite the Secretary of
the Interior, Secretary Babbitt. Mr. Secretary, we appreciate your
being here with us and we look forward to your opening comments.

Senator Reid. Mr. Chairman, while he's settling in, can I just say
something?
Senator Kempthorne. Senator Reid?
Senator Reid. I'm going to have to leave here today. As you

know, we've had trouble working out the time for this hearing. I

think the witness panels you've put forward are appropriate and I

intend to work very closely with you on this issue and other issues.

You're an easy person with which to work and I'm grateful.

My not being here during the remainder of the hearing does not
indicate that I'm not extremely interested in what we do here today
and I have my staff covering what goes on.

Senator Kempthorne. Senator Reid, I appreciate that very much
and from that, I assume you do trust what we're doing here and
we will move forward, and you know you're in good hands.

Senator Boxer. I'm not leaving.

Senator Chafee. Mr. Chairman, could I just briefly say, Sec-
retary Babbitt, I took a look at your testimony and in it, you talk

about the indefinite moratorium. As you know. Senator Hutchison
has changed that to 6 months in the revision of her legislation.

Senator Kempthorne. Mr. Secretary, welcome.

STATEMENT OF HON. BRUCE BABBITT,
SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR

Secretary Babbitt. Mr. Chairman, committee members, thank
you. It's a pleasure to be back.

I have a written statement which, with leave of the committee,
I would prefer simply to submit and then very briefly summarize
some of my thoughts in response to the testimony and some of the
major points in my written presentation.

Obviously, I'm not here to support a moratorium proposal. I've

been at work in legislative bodies for many years throughout my
career and I must say that this is one of the more unusual ideas

I've ever seen presented, saying effectively as I see it, in order to

clear the decks, level the playing field, induce everyone to come to-

gether in a dialog, we're going to start by repealing the law or at

least major and significant portions of the law. It's a blunderbuss
approach that I simply don't see the logic for.

The section 7 issue I think has already been discussed. That
clearly would be a drastic mistake, no matter where one comes
from with respect to this Act. I must say I'm not entirely clear from
the colloquy during the testimony whether that proposal is on the
table, off the table, or somewhere in between.
Another example I would give you is right on to the logic of this

approach. We've talked about the species that are on this sort of

list that is at the end of the pipeline. I can tell you straight off the

top of my head that 75 percent of those species involve no private

property impacts or claims of any kind without any exception. The
reason for that is that 75 percent of the species that are at the end
of the pipeline awaiting our attention are plants. The Endangered
Species Act specifically provides that plants have no protection of

any kind on private land and therefore, the effect of this morato-
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rium is to take with zero justification from any part of this debate,
put them on hold, and say to the Fish and Wildlife Service that our
efforts with those plants, many of which have been put on the list

under court order, many of which are in small, shrinking, remain-
ing areas which have such potential—taxol has been mentioned,
periwinkle, and others—and there is no private property implica-
tion of any kind with respect to 75 percent of the species.

I make my point and with that, let me see if I can, not with-
standing my distaste for starting a debate by polarizing it into a
debate over a totally unnecessary moratorium, see if I may step
aside from that and offer you, in the spirit that I believe ought to

pervade this discussion, some reflections on where we have been
over the last 2 years that hopefully will illuminate to some degree
the debate as it moves forward. Most of my points are, in fact, en-
capsulated in the rather extensive document that was released yes-
terday.

When I came to this town in January 1993, I said to the Con-
gress and to the public the major difficulty with the Endangered
Species Act is that it hasn't been administered in an imaginative
way. Ever since its enactment in its current form back in 1973, it

has been administered in a passive, negative, reluctant, narrow-
minded way. I said I see a different Endangered Species Act. I see
one with a lot of flexibility and on my watch, I'm going to devote
my time to proving in action, in the field, in my deeds, not in my
arguments, but in my administrative deeds how it is that it can be
made to work and the potential that I think it has.

If I might, what I'd like to do is use just three examples for you
that illustrate, in my judgment, the ten new directions and guide-
posts for legislative change that I think are important.
My first premise was that we really ought to get out ahead of

regulations. We ought to view regulations as sort of an eleventh
hour approach, and we ought to be entirely proactive. The place
where I think we've done that with the most success is in the for-

ests of the southeastern United States. I would say frankly, the
reason we've been able to do that is because the private landowners
of the southeast saw the train wreck that occurred in Washington,
Oregon and the Northwest, and they were ready to try something
different. They saw then and see now, the possibilities in this Act.

That means that over the last 2 years, we have run up I think
a completely different pattern of cooperation in the timberlands of
the southeast. It began with an unprecedented agreement with the
Georgia Pacific Corporation applying to 6 million acres of land.

That's as much as the Federal land covered by the major parts of

the forest plan in the Northwest. It's a Rule 4(d) agreement; it did

not come about through litigation; it came about through negotia-

tion. Georgia Pacific is now managing its lands in a way that pro-

tect the red-cockaded woodpecker and has enabled us to go home.
We have followed up with agreements with the International

Paper Corporation, and with the Hancock Timber Company. Last
week, we announced an agreement with the Pinehurst Country
Club Group, a real innovative agreement. It is an agreement under
which the Pinehurst Country Club Group is improving the long leaf

pine habitat by clearing out the underorush and making it more
attractive for red-cockaded woodpeckers.
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They have a sign out at those country clubs saying this is one
threatened species we'd like to have on our golf course. Member-
ships are for free, you're all invited, and we managed to do that

under the Endangered Species Act. It's a threatened bird.

How did we do that? We took the provisions of the Act and said

in exchange for habitat enhancement, we'll make a deal that if you
decide you want to eject them and revoke their membership, give

us a little notice and we will show up and we'll see if we can find

them a membership in some other habitat. That's obviously a brief

explanation of a complex concept but the point I want to make is

we're under way, we're in the mainstream.
At the very time that you threaten us with this moratorium, I

think we can demonstrate to you that we are making more
progress and more innovation than at any time under the 20 years

of this Act.

The second of my three examples is this issue of the small land-

owner. I came to town in 1993 and I said it's unconscionable to

burden small landowners with these disproportionate require-

ments, the uncertainty, the incredible delay that crept into the sys-

tem largely as a result of this kind of passive, negative, constricted

view of the Act.

We began the small landowner process with a pledge that I made
out in the Pacific Northwest during the course of the timber plan.

I said to the folks in the Northwest, we're going to exempt the

small wood lot owners. I came back to Washington and Fish and
Wildlife Service said to me, how did you figure that out and I said,

I haven't but we're going to do it.

Several weeks ago, George Frampton went out to Washington to

announce the implementation of a 4(d) rule which exempts from
the requirements of the Act in virtually complete form every pri-

vate owner of a wood lot in the State of Washington of less than
80 acres. That in turn has given rise to the proposal that you see

in the document that we released yesterday saying that for threat-

ened species, we can now move to create an effective exemption for

single lot, home sites of 5 acres or less. Again, pretty complex, but
that's the bottom line. Under the Act, we can apply that small lot

owner exemption only if a species is threatened. I think that legis-

lative help that would expand that concept to endangerment would
be very helpful.

Again, I don't understand the logic of saving to us, just as we're

instream with all of this, stop because we'd rather just do nothing,

let the problems pile up, guaranteeing that by virtue of having

stopped and been forced to look the other way, the problems will

be not better, but worse. They won't go away, but we'll simply have
less flexibility to approach these kinds of solutions.

The third example I'd like to give you which I think is very im-

portant is illustrated by events in Florida, Texas, California, and
indeed across the country. That is the role of States and localities

under the Endangered Species Act.

What I found interesting when I came to town was that in its

administration, it has been totally unlike most Federal laws. I grew
up in Arizona politics and in State government where most Federal

laws were tasked in the context of Federal-State relationships and
Federal laws of all kinds—health, welfare, education, environ-
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mental, whatever—were always drafted with a lot of attention to

this role and normally, there would be some Federal money, some
Federal policies laid out and then an explicit mechanism by which
the States assumed a partnership role and often by delegation, the
actual lead in the administration of the law.

I was astounded to find that in 20 years, this had never taken
place under the Endangered Species Act. I went back and read the
Act and said, is that what Congress intended. I don't think so. It's

not very explicit but there are references to States—section 6 is an
example of that. So what I've done is taken this law and said, I

think we ought to move outward toward cooperating with States,
giving them a lead role wherever possible, working out the science,

the impacts, the listing decisions in an interactive way that is con-
sonant with the standards in the Act.

Fortunately, the State of California had an Endangered Species
Act which has allowed us to make a major, unprecedented delega-
tion under section 4(d) to the State for efforts that are now under-
way in southern California. We are moving in that direction in a
variety of other States. In many States, it's not as clear that the
States themselves have the authority to step up to meet this dele-
gation process, but it's unquestionably the correct way to go. I

think it is a most fruitful area for legislative attention.

Finally, a word about good science. As I listened to this debate,
all parties acknowledge the need for good science. I was especially
pleased to hear Senator Hutchison acknowledge that very strongly,
that listing decisions ought to be about science and I acknowledge
that we have some improvements to make there.

This issue was one of the major reasons that I organized the Na-
tional Biological Service because it is my strong belief that a major
step to good science is to distance the science from the people who
are making the regulatory decisions. Why is that? Well, that's be-
cause regulators are human beings and in any area of endeavor,
regulators tend to drift toward a view that sometimes runs ahead
of the actual scientific reality. The proper way in government to

deal with that issue is to set the science outside of the regulatory
framework. That's why I've segregated them over there and that's

why I went to Georgia and found a scientist who has never been
near a government regulatory agency, a guy named Ron Pulliam,
with a national reputation. I said your job is to produce science
that is at all times unimpeachable so that we can then move into

the regulatory quarrel which is very much a matter of attitudes,

of perceptions, of tradeoffs, and ultimately a matter for political

judgment by the Congress and the President.
In addition to that concept, this document takes us in the direc-

tion of increased and enhanced peer review. We need independent
assessments of the science that underlies listing decisions, we need
State participation, we need to put together a more formal struc-

ture which says to the State of Texas they have a superb parks and
wildlife unit. I spent 3 days with them down on the intercoastal
waterway a couple of weeks ago and I've got to tell you, these guys
are as good as any in the land. We need to make that relationship
work a lot better.

We also need to see, in light of the experience of the past 20
years, if we can define what level of scientific proof, if you will, we
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ought to attain prior to listing. We are working on some of those
issues right now and again, I think it's entirely appropriate for this
body to join in that endeavor.

So, Mr. Chairman, committee members, you've heard my views
on the moratorium, but apart from that, I think we are making a
great deal of progress. I think the time is ripe for the Congress to
reflect on that experience and to join together in seeing if we can
make this Act more efficient, more effective and more acceptable.
Thank you.
Senator Kempthorne. Mr. Secretary, thank you very much for

your comments.
I'm sure you've heard from a variety of people that say the En-

dangered Species Act is so flawed that nothing short of repeal
would be satisfactory. Yet, I've heard you say that you only needed
time to show that the Endangered Species Act is well and function-
ing and now we see some proposals which may encouragement.
What has brought about the change of your position?

Secretary Babbitt. Mr. Chairman, I don't think there has been
a change of position. I noticed that statement in a national news-
paper this morning. I think what I said when I came to town, if

taken fairly, was reauthorization, in my judgment, is not a priority.

I came to town in 1993 saying, look, why have a reauthorization
debate when we haven't really tried to make the Act work.

I come here today having been at it very intensively, out in the
muck, in the water, out on the ground, with the results that I have
outlined and J think that process now has created a body of experi-
ence that I can bring and I can now fairly say to you I'm here with
some suggestions grounded in my own hands-on experience rather
than just a philosophical debate and this is a lot riper issue for pro-
ductive reauthorization than it would have been 2 years ago.

Senator Kempthorne. So is it fair to say then that you too are
an advocate that we need to reform the Endangered Species Act?

Secretary Babbitt. Yes, I think the time is ripe and I think we
come to the table with some very helpful experience.
Senator Kempthorne. With regard to the proposed moratorium,

the issue before us, I understand the Department of the Interior is

under court order to establish judicially enforceable timeframes for

publishing those rules to list candidate species?
Secretary Babbitt. That's correct.

Senator Kempthorne. How many additional listings do these
court orders represent?

Secretary Babbitt. Well, Senator, it's an interesting topic for this

reason. The anchor court order requires us to list slightly over 100
species per year. I think it's 425 over about 4 years. That order
really comes out of the experience of the 1980's. In the late 1970's,

the Department was up to I think an average of 60 or 70 a year.
In the 1980's, the Department effectively laid a moratorium—this

is not the first time this proposal has come up—there was effec-

tively an administrative moratorium in the 1980's and in 1 year,

the listings went down to four. I think in some measure the court
order was a response to that.

To get to your question, in the absence of a court order, how
many would we be listing? I don't know that it would be signifi-

cantly different. I take exception to the court order because I dis-
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like, as an administrator, being told by a judge how to allocate the
resources that this Congress gives me—among them finishing up
habitat conservation plans, doing captive breeding, restoration ef-

forts. There's a whole series of them and all of a sudden, there's

a Federal judge standing in my office telling me what to do.

Senator Kempthorne. Many citizens would share that same con-
cern.

Mr. Secretary, will each of these have critical habitat designated
for them?

Secretary Babbitt. No, The critical habitat provision of this Act
is badly misunderstood by friend and foe alike. The whole require-
ment could be stricken from the Act and it would not affect the
function or the architecture of the Act at all for this reason. Critical

habitat was written into the section 7 process and I think it was
intended in some measure as a way of kind of defining, or at least

setting up a presumption, of the area within which the section 7

consultation would take place. It hasn't really operated that way
and section 7 can operate independently of it. I think that all of

us believe that concept really needs to be revisited. Certainly the
current Act mandates that it be done in the wrong order and the
requirement has been largely disregarded.
Senator KEMPTHORNE. My last question then is, how will this

moratorium affect the Department's ability to meet the court's re-

quirements?
Secretary BABBITT. I haven't thought very much about that and

the reason is that Congress retains the right to modify a court de-

cree. I would never come here and argue that you shouldn't do it

because there is a court decree. I'm a child of the legislative and
executive branches of government. The idea that I would sit here
and tell you a Federal judge doesn't want you to do this is some-
thing I would never do.

Senator Kempthorne. Thank you very much.
Senator Chafee?
Secretary Babbitt. At least so far, I am a child of the legislative

and executive branches.
[Laughter.]
Senator KEMPTHORNE. But you're aging well.

Secretary BABBITT. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
Senator Chafee. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Secretary, I would point out, I know you're opposed to this

moratorium, that the House has already passed a law providing
that all significant regulations be a moratorium until December 31
at the end of this year with the exception of the Endangered Spe-
cies Act which goes to December 31, 1996. Furthermore, that af-

fects all regulations whereas Senator Hutchison's provision deals

solely with the section 4, and indeed 4(a). So in a way, I'm saying
to you, count your blessings.

Secretary Babbitt. Senator, I hadn't thought of her as coming to

my rescue with the lesser of many evils.

Senator HUTCHISON. It could be so much worse.
[Laughter.]
Senator Chafee. So she's really doing you a big favor.

Let me ask you this, Mr. Secretary. I appreciate and admire you
for what you've done in connection with many efforts, and you and
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I have worked together in the past as you know on many things.

I want to express my appreciation for the leadership you've given
to the Department of the Interior and particularly, you and Mr.
Frampton and others in connection with the Fish and Wildlife ac-

tivities.

So you've worked out this arrangement with Greorgia Pacific or
the country club in South Carolina, but those activities aren't going
to be prohibited or delayed or slowed down by the moratorium
we're suggesting under Senator Hutchison's legislation?

Secretary BABBITT. That's correct. As long as section 7 is not im-
plicated, I concede that the management activities that relate to

species already listed, in the absence of something I don't know
about, will certainly continue.

Senator Chafee. That's right, and trying to reach arrangements
like you did with that tremendous acreage with Georgia Pacific,

you can proceed. That's an arrangement you did, I suppose, under
section 7, isn't it?

Secretary Babbitt. It's really under section 4.

Senator Chafee. It was a voluntary arrangement that you did
with Georgia Pacific?

Secretary Babbitt. It was, in fact, an application of section 4(d)

of the legislation, but your characterization I think is still essen-
tially correct.

Senator Chafee. So that it is clear, I'm supportive of Senator
Hutchison's effort here. She and I have worked together on this

and I believe that this is going to give us an impetus to get on with
the reauthorization of the Endangered Species Act. We're going to

be working closely with you on that, receive your suggestions, but
it's the kind of thing that is easy to put off because this committee
has a full load. Once the moratorium is passed, if indeed it is

passed by the committee and by the Congress, we will get right to

that reauthorization of the Endangered Species Act and try to do
a good job on it. Certainly, that is the goal that I have.

I know there have been some revisions in the bill since you origi-

nally looked at the proposal by Senator Hutchison, but you can still

go ahead with these unique arrangements you worked out with
large private landowners?

Secretary Babbitt. For the most part, yes. There might be some
exceptions. If a species is moving toward a listing decision, the
background of that proposed decision may, in fact, enhance the
ability to do some of the prelisting agreements, but I don't quarrel

with your generalization.

Senator Chafee. I must say the point I think you made about
the 75 percent of the prospective listings are plants that are on
Government lands. That is something that is important and I look

forward to discussing that with Senator Hutchison and see what
her thoughts are on that. I don't want to speak for her, but the

problem here doesn't come up with Federal Government lands, it

comes with the private landowners.
Thank you.

Senator Kempthorne. Senator Boxer?
Senator Boxer. Thank you very much.
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Picking up on that, I want to make sure I understood something
you said in your opening comments, that 75 percent of these list-

ings do not affect private property, correct?

Secretary Babbitt. That's correct.

Senator Boxer. I would then underscore what Senator Chafee
has stated and perhaps we can look at that a little more.

In your opening, Mr. Secretary, you said, "I don't understand
why this moratorium now that we're making some progress." I

agree with you. Again, Senator Hutchison has her stories and we
all have our stories. The story I like the best is what you did in

San Diego, Orange County and Riverside, not the bastion of liberal-

ism and you went in there and we had an endangered species
called the gnat catcher, a bird. You went in there, you set up a nat-
ural community conservation program. The people love it, the de-
velopers love it, everyone is part of it. The board of supervisors like

it; we're giving them funding. It's your ideal habitat preservation.
I would say to my friend. Senator Chafee, he puts a really nice

light on it. Yes, compared to what's gone over the other places, it's

a piece of cake, but it's still bad. The message that is going to go
out is "forget about it, don't come to the table." If I were a farmer,
a developer, I wouldn't come to the table with this conversation
going on over here. There is something called a conference commit-
tee and when you get this bill, which I oppose, the Hutchison bill

—

I hope we can make it better, I'll try to make it as good as it can
be—when it gets over to that conference committee and they've got
a moratoria, no exception until 1996, tell me what you think the
compromise between that will be—moratorium for 6 years, morato-
rium for 6 months? Generally, we split the difference around here
when it comes to dollars but I hope with the leadership of Chair-
man Chafee, we'll do a lot better on this, but I am very worried
about this situation.

You ask, why the moratorium? Let me tell you my opinion. This
is only my opinion and I am not sajdng it is anything but that. I

have no proof of that, this is my opinion. I've been around here a
long time. I've been in the House for 10 years. In my opinion, if

you went out and told the people you were going to kill the Endan-
gered Species Act, the people of this country would rise up. The
bald eagle, the condor, God's creations, no way. People would be
run out of office.

If you say things like, you don't like the way it's administered
and regulation, and moratorium, people say, oh, that's right, you
mean just stop it for a little while. So in my mind, it is an end run
around the Endangered Species Act and I don't think you need a
degree in political science to get it, that's what's going on here. It's

an unmitigated disaster and it will lead, in my opinion, to bad, bad
things and people will regret it. People will regret it because it has
to do with quality of life, it has to do with life-saving cures that
could come out of some of these plants. I don't see, again, why
we're putting a moratorium on plant designations. To me, it makes
absolutely no sense whatsoever.
What do we have to do around here to learn a lesson? The

loggers said, we're cutting down the yew tree, it's just bark, and
when we said, it has some properties, they said, oh, we're going to

cut it down anyway and then they finally came to the agreement.
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and maybe we have a cure for breast and ovarian cancer, and we
talked about childhood leukemia. So this isn't just a question of
some bureaucrat sitting in an office having a good time. If he's in
there abusing his authority, he's got to go. I think everyone is

agreed on that.

I think we have a Secretary of the Interior here who, by the way,
has taken some risks because neither side is always happy with
him because he tries to make things work. He's made it work for
the gnat catcher. He is saying that we can exempt small owners.
I think, Mr. Chairman, we've come a long way here.

I have one question about something going on in California. One
of the real horror stories involving the Endangered Species Act is

occurring right now in California. Ten years ago, MAXXAM, a large
Texas corporation, acquired Pacific Lumber, a small family owned
business in northern California. Pacific had been a good steward of
its 45,000 acres of redwood forest managing the land for a sustain-
able yield of lumber for 100 years.
MAXXAM was eager to pay off the junk bonds it had used to

purchase Pacific and began a program of rapid clearcutting that
saw half of the world's largest old growth redwood forest on private
land destroyed in less than a decade. The ESA has been the only
thing stopping MAXXAM from destroying the rest. In fact, a Fed-
eral court judge, recently imposed an injunction on further
clearcutting to protect a bird.

Now MAXXAM has announced that it will use a loophole in the
Federal Forest Practices Act to renew logging operations. This con-
tinues MAXXAM's pattern of sudden logging campaigns into sen-
sitive areas based on tenuous legal authority. In the past,
MAXXAM has completed its logging before the courts could inter-

vene. What I'm asking you is, can I have your assurance that your
department will do everything it can to stop illegal cutting before
it is too late for the headwaters forests?

Secretary BABBITT. Senator, we've been in discussion with
MAXXAM over that issue in California. We have by no means re-

solved the underlying issues but I believe that we do have an as-

surance from them that they will hold the status quo until this liti-

gation is worked out.

Senator BoxER. Thank you very much.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Senator Kempthorne. Thank you, Senator Boxer.
Senator Hutchison?
Senator HUTCHISON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Secretary, in your policy that you announced yesterday, you

said that you felt the small landowners, the single family lot own-
ers really did not significantly contribute to the problem and there-

fore, you were suggesting exemptions if there was a threatened
species. Yet the Valcones Canyonlands Plan which I call a $1,500
ransom that your people have proposed in Austin for Travis Coun-
ty, TX, does hit the very people that you have said it is your policy

to exempt.
I realize that you have made a distinction between threatened

and endangered, but nevertheless, your innovative use of the En-
dangered Species Act includes this $1,500 ransom for single lot

owners. I'm just wondering if you would abandon that Valcones
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Canyonland Conservation Plan in light of the spirit of your an-

nouncement yesterday?
Secretary Babbitt. Senator, we cannot, under existing law, aban-

don the Valcones issues. They relate to birds which have been list-

ed as endangered rather than threatened.
My own sense of the Valcones process is that notwithstanding a

fair amount of controversy to say the least, that plan has strong
support in the Austin community. It is not a plan which is an-
chored in a department proposal; this is a process and a plan which
has evolved out of a very comprehensive plan in Austin and the
surrounding areas of Travis County with tremendous community
support because what it is really about, in my judgment, is the
quality of life in the Austin community. It's about open space. It

is primarily, in the eyes of many people in that city, about the
urban configuration, the open space requirements, the quality of

life in Austin and it has enormous support that rides entirely inde-

pendent of the Endangered Species Act.

I think in that context, we've made a great deal of progress. I

think particularly the development community understands that

properly worked out, this plan is going to create value, it is going
to enhance the value of everyone's land including the individual lot

owners. That's been proven time and time again. That's really what
urban development plans and development charges for infrastruc-

ture are about, allowing development in a way that enhances and
creates new land value. I think it's something I'd like to discuss

with you in detail because I think it's absolutely clear that the
overall effect of the Valcones Canyonlands Conservation Program
is to create additional value and that landowners, every one of

them, will come out ahead in that process.

The difficulty, which I acknowledge, is that this thing has been
on dead center for too long. I understand the frustration because
it's not entirely satisfactory to say to someone, well, good develop-

ment procedures and history demonstrate that your land will be
worth more and they're saying, but in the meantime, I can't do
anything. I believe that's something we have to acknowledge and
we have to find a way to deal with expeditiously and to try to work
these plans in a way that it doesn't freeze peoples' options to put
their land in market or develop it for long periods of time, as unfor-

tunately has been the case here.

Senator Hutchison. Mr. Secretary, first of all, people were brow-
beaten, they were hiring lawyers so that they could build on their

own lots, they were forced to the table. I would not agree with your
proposition that there is support throughout the Austin commu-
nity. The proposal includes $10 million from Travis County that

they say they don't have and I would just say that you have en-

tered into a new policy announcement that came out yesterday that

basically said, single family lots should not be included in these

designations and should be exempt, and you are not prohibited by
law from abandoning that proposal.

I'm just asking you if in the spirit of what you announced yester-

day, you would be willing to say to the single lot owners in Travis
County that you are not going to continue pursuing that ransom
from them to be able to build on their land.
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Secretary Babbitt. Needless to say, I don't agree with the char-
acterization but the important thing in response to your question
is that it would require Federal legislation.

Senator Hutchison. No, it wouldn't because there has been no
authorization for this innovative proposal where you would seek a
$1,500 fee for people to build on their own lots. It would not take
legislation.

Secretary Babbitt. With all respect, Senator, I believe it would.
I believe that's a fair subject for discussion in the legislative reau-
thorization.

Senator Hutchison. No one in Congress has suggested to you
that you should start requiring people to pay fees to build on their
own property, so if you back away from it in the spirit of the policy

that you announced yesterday for single family lot owners, I would
think it would be consistent.

Secretary Babbitt. Senator, the Act, in its current form, requires
that to come out from under the sanctions of section 9 in a habitat
conservation plan, there must be a legally acceptable guarantee
that sufficient habitat has been protected to provide for the recov-
ery of the species.

There are various ways of looking at the land acquisition that is

necessary in order to do that. That has been the subject of an enor-
mous amount of planning and effort in Austin and Travis County.
Representative Pickle, for years up here, obtained Federal funds to

create a National Wildlife Refuge which anchors part of the pro-

tected area and substantially lessens the burden on the remaining
land.

A bond issue was successfully passed, or one did not pass.
Through a variety of things, we're about two-thirds of the way to-

ward the necessary acreage mandated by law to protect and have
the species comply with the recovery plan. We need about another
10,000 acres.

What the community of Austin, the development community and
all the people who have been so carefully engaged in this said was,
we can do the balance by a process known as mitigation and that
is, in exchange for freeing property from the restrictions of section

9, there will be a mitigation charge, not because a mitigation
charge is mandated by law, but because the restraints of section 9
cannot be lifted until there is a plan which says we're going to re-

cover the species on an adequate land base.

It was the community itself which said, now that the Federal
Government has acquired 10,000 acres of land, now that some of

the costs have been spread more broadly through the passage of a
bond issue, in the judgment of tne community and the people put-

ting this together, the best way to proceed the last step for the
final 10,000 acres is to apportion a mitigation fee in a way that is

laid out in the proposal.

I'd be willing to go back to the community in Austin and say,

would you be interested in restructuring the mitigation fees on dif-

ferent classes of propertyowners provided that you can meet the

mitigation targets that will enable us over the next decade or so

to put together the final component of the plan so that we have a
recovery plan that will work.
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Senator Hutchison. Mr. Chairman, my time is up and I appre-
ciate your letting me pursue this. I will not go further except to say
that the reason you don't have a plan is because so many people
are concerned about it. I think you have stated what's wrong with
this Act and what needs to be changed so that there is common
sense in the equation.
Thank you.
Senator Kempthorne. Mr. Secretary, let's go ahead and have

just a few more questions.

I'd like to pursue this discussion. You have referenced the safe

harbors—the agreement that you made with the private landowner
was that you would assure him that by his cooperation with you
now, he would be held harmless for any future instances of take
of endangered species. This is similar to your earlier reference to

the "deal is a deal" issue. What authority are you using for these
agreements?

Secretary BABBITT. For the "deal is a deal" agreement, I read the
Act to say that if we, on a multi-species basis, construct a habitat
conservation plan, we can meet the statutory requirement that we
have provided for as mandated by the Act, the recovery of the spe-

cies. It is a reasonable reading of the Act to say that if there are
additional mitigation requirements, that burden can be transferred
to the Federal Grovemment and we can effectively say it will be
met from the public sector because in the first instance, we have
met the requirements of the Act on a one-time basis as of that
time.
Senator Kempthorne. How have you made it clear that agree-

ments made between you, as the current Secretary of Interior, and
future Secretaries of the Interior will remain in place? Are they
binding?

Secretary Babbitt. Senator, I think so. We've had a lot of discus-

sion about this in some of the HCP processes. I read administrative
law and concepts of estoppel as saying that when an administrator
makes a settlement with consideration on both sides of the table

that has been worked out in public view through the procedures re-

quired, that really, as a practical matter, becomes binding and it

would be enforceable in court.

Senator Kempthorne. I understand that 4(d) rules can be used
for threatened species?

Secretary BABBITT. That's correct.

Senator KEMPTHORNE. But not endangered species?

Secretary BABBITT. That's correct.

Senator Kempthorne. And that they are central to your recent

announcements that you've made. Do you have sufficient authority

for 4(d) rules at this time or is further legislation needed?
Secretary Babbitt. I think in summary, as indicated in this doc-

ument, that we could, probably should, in a legislative reauthoriza-

tion rework the functioning of Rule 4(d). I would think it ought to

be possible to create a more graded set of responses. It's not clear

to me that it's really ideal to have a statute in which there are so

few distinctions between threatened and endangered. They are

really too close together. What it drives us to do is to say that in

all cases, the heavy presumption upon listing is that all of the re-

quirements of the Act, particularly the take provisions, come into
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place immediately until you can sort of carry the burden of peeling
them back.

I would think it would be good biology and good regulatory policy
to consider at least a sort of more graded, stair-stepped approach
to that.

Senator Kempthorne. If you will indulge me, I want to change
topics now for just a moment.
You and I have had previous discussions about the training

range that the Air Force has stated they need at Mt. Hope. Last
week, in front of the Armed Services Committee on which I serve,
Secretary Widnall of the Air Force said, "We're also in discussions
with the Department of Interior who need to be our partners in ei-

ther putting together this particular document or having them
issue their own document." The document that she's referencing is

the draft supplemental environmental impact statement.
Will your department cooperate with the Air Force so that this

statement can be completed and published?
Secretary Babbitt. Senator, I didn't come briefed to talk about

that. I'm not clear what the policy of the Air Force is at this par-
ticular point. We routinely cooperate with any Federal agency that
is doing an environmental impact statement.
Senator Kempthorne. Mr. Secretary, this has had high visibility

within the Administration, I know. We're just trying to get closure
on coming forward with a process for a draft supplemental EIS, so
again, attention you could give to it would be greatly appreciated.
The other thing I notice, and I see the yellow light here, in your

testimony, you said the Endangered Species Act is a warning light.

[Laughter.]
Secretary BABBITT. That's why I don't want the moratorium, it's

on red right now.
Senator Kempthorne. Well, how do we avoid it? I think everyone

would agree that if the Endangered Species Act would provide us
the warning light, that is extremely helpful, but how do we avoid
this Code 3 emergency light that seems to happen which then re-

moves all options?
Secretary Babbitt. Senator, I think there are a variety of an-

swers to that emerging out of this process. Again, good science.

There are a lot of negative responses to a document the National
Biological Service is now sending to press. It's an extremely inter-

esting document. It is a collection of papers characterizing sort of

in the longer view the relative condition of different types of land-
scapes in the United States. If you read it carefully, it's really in-

teresting because it's clear to me that some landscapes and some
ecosystems are doing very well, they are on the upswing. The red
is not uniform in color. There are a lot of yellows going to green
around this country. I think we need to use that information, not
in a way that sort of threatens that if you're red or yellow, there
will be dire consequences, but that we can look at that carefully

and proactively and ask while there is still time, what kinds of soft

decisions, if you will, can be made that will avoid the onset of the
crisis.

This multispecies concept is tremendously important. The State
of California is really doing first rate work in thinking of regional
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areas of the State and trying to analyze where the problems are
and what might be done way in advance of problems.
We're doing some cooperative work with a couple of the timber

companies in the southeast actually assessing landscapes. We've
reached a level of confidence with those timber companies that they
don't view that as negative at all. Their judgment is that in most
cases, at the end of the scientific process, they will have more op-

tions, they will have seen more ways to work the landscape. So I

think that is tremendously important, the multispecies issue.

Drawing States into a cooperative partnership in the administra-
tion of this Act is I think equally important because the States
have a sort of fine-grained view of much of the landscape, as appro-
priately they should.

Senator Kempthorne. I appreciate that.

Senator Chafee?
Senator Chafee. A quick question. I know we have six other wit-

nesses, Mr. Chairman, so I'll make this very brief.

Mr. Secretary, one of the things that comes up under the Endan-
gered Species Act is the so-called emergency listing. There is a pos-

sibility that we might incorporate that in this legislation. Again, I'd

like to discuss it with Senator Hutchison. How do you work the
emergency? I know the statute covers it, but are you familiar at all,

have you done any of that? I think none of us want to get into a
moratorium that is going to see a species eliminated, but on the
other hand, we'd be reluctant to have the word emergency apply to

anything that comes along. Could you briefly describe how you ar-

rive at the emergency designation? For instance, you've been there
2 years now, has anything come up under emergency since you've
been there that you can remember?

Secretary BABBITT. I can think of a couple. I can think of a mam-
mal in California; I can think of an intensive debate that we had
about the Alabama sturgeon.

Senator CHAFEE. Maybe you could submit the number of those
to the record because I don't want to put you on the spot. Is it

something you rarely use?
Secretary Babbitt. Very infrequently because frankly, reaching

the threshold of scientific work that's necessary to do that with any
kind of scientific integrity is something we really don't have the ca-

pacity to do very often.

Senator Chafee. Maybe you could submit a little statement of

how you use the emergency thing. We're going to be marking this

up in the subcommittee quite soon, so if you could submit that

rather quickly, we'd appreciate it.

Secretary Babbitt. Senator, I'd be happy to do that.

Senator Chafee. Thank you very much.
Senator Kempthorne. Thank you. Senator Chafee.

Senator Boxer?
Senator Boxer. Mr. Secretary, according to the Environmental

Defense Fund, I want to see if you and your people agree with this,

by the time you get down to listing a plant as endangered, the me-
dian population size of the plant at the time of the listing is less

than 120 individual plants.
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Secretary Babbitt, I wouldn't quote that as scripture, but I do
think it is indicative of the fact that these things have been left to
drift pretty close to the brink.

Senator Boxer. Mr. Chairman, I think it's important to note

—

I say to both of my chairman here, my subcommittee chairman and
my full committee chairman—although a 6-month moratorium may
not look harmful on the surface, we have to realize we're talking
about perhaps only 120 individual plants left and 6 months could
be sayonara in that situation. So again, I am very concerned about
this.

I keep using the plants, not that I feel any less strongly about
the other creatures, but I think it's clear when people talk about
common sense, it is stupid to destroy a plant that might cure a dis-

ease. It's just plain stupid.

I would like to say we're going to be hearing from Supervisor
Ken Peterson. I just read his remarks and they are quite humorous
as well as serious. He is very upset about the Endangered Species
Act. I think he should be encouraged by this conversation because
the main concern they have is that they feel their county, because
it is home to so many creatures and they do support preservation
of these creatures, they feel the creatures are kind of running the
county.

Secretary Babbitt. Which county is this?
Senator Boxer. Kern County. So when I look at your comments

today that were quoted in the Post, I view this in a very favorable
way. First of atll, the whole point that the small landowner will not
be impacted in the future should be some solace here.

Second, I want to ask you this. You say "Using sound and objec-

tive science in making endangered species decisions, including the
use of peer review panels," I think that is crucial because when I

was having my colloquy with Senator Hutchison, I don't feel that
I am capable of saying something is endangered, nor do I think any
Senator is unless they happen to be schooled in biology and even
then, being here we don't have time to continue our work.

I just think we have to, in fact, rely on experts and when you
talk about peer review panels, could you explain that, and com-
ment on this, the length of time to get an answer is sometimes a
problem. I spoke to one developer who said that he had no problem
doing whatever it was he was told to do, but the people enforcing
the law said, we'll just wait until an endangered species shows up.

I don't quite believe that but that was the feeling he had, that they
didn't find anything in the spring, so it was just a huge, long wait
to get an answer. So could you address how you would use these
peer review panels, who will be on them? Is this a new thing since

you announced it today and can you put a time certain so that a
family in Kern County, in Texas, or wherever they are, gets an an-
swer and we don't lose support of the Act?

Secretary Babbitt. Just a couple of thoughts. First of all, a word
about the importance of science. In most cases, if we look harder,
we find more. There's a wonderful example out in Nevada, the blue
butterfly, which was the subject of a petition. Ron Pulliam, working
actually with the State up at Reno, organized a little survey and
they came back 6 months later and said, there's plenty of these
folks. We just haven't done enough looking in Nevada.
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Senator Boxer. So in other words, sometimes when you find

more, it's not endangered. Is that your point?
Secretary Babbitt. I think in most cases, science shows us, good

science shows us more distribution and in most cases, more flexibil-

ity in terms of how we can respond with a recovery plan.

Peer review, what we're trying to do
Senator Boxer. You still didn't answer my question. So if you

say to a farmer, for example, we think something may be endan-
gered, we're not sure. How long is that window until you come
back?

Secretary Babbitt. The real window that I think is causing the
trouble, up to the time of listing, there is no problem. The thing
we have to work on is the listing decision is what causes the heart-
bum because it really does lay out the sanctions. Most Americans
respond to that by saying, "that's the law but how the heck do I

comply with it and how long does it go on?"
There is no time limit to resolution in the existing law. The rea-

son is that resolution really comes in two ways. One is through sec-

tion 7 affects how Government agencies respond not only on Gov-
ernment land but in terms of their functions everywhere. The prop-
erty may not be worth much if the Government withholds Federal
aid which is building the freeway or the water system.
The other direct one is section 9. The 1982 Congress passed this

section 10 amendment, which allows us to construct these habitat
conservation plans. By their nature, they take a lot of time—like

several years. What we are trying to do in the meantime is to take
a number of administrative directions, first of all, to say to every
landowner when we list, we're going to spell out the kinds of activi-

ties that are absolutely permissible. We haven't done that in the
past. I think it's important to say you can go ahead and continue
to farm your land, you can do the following kinds of development,
lay it all out.

If you add onto that the small landowner approaches we've been
talking about, we ought to be able to pop them out quickly on the
front end. That would leave them out quickly on the front end.
That would leave the larger landscape and large developers, timber
companies, and people who owned big tracts of land. That does
take time because it s very analogous to what local communities do
when they do development planning. They go through a process of

looking at the landscape, calling in all of their experts and going
through it. This process for large landowners is very analogous.

Senator Boxer. Because the time is up, could you quickly com-
ment on peer review. This is a new thing?

Senator Kempthorne. Senator Boxer, now you're stretching it.

Senator Boxer. I had asked a two-part question.

Senator Chafee. Mr. Chairman, I'm worried. We've got six wit-

nesses here and it's 11:45 a.m.
Senator Boxer. Could we just have a yes or no?
Senator KEMPTHORNE. Sure.
Senator BoxER. Is this a new thing, peer review panels?
Secretary Babbitt. In 20 words, if I may, Mr. Chairman. Peer re-

view is an accepted and crucially important part of all American
science which says the way you maintain the high quality and good
results is to invite other scientists who don't have a stake in it.
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Senator Kempthorne. Senator Hutchison has indicated that she
had no further questions.
Other questions we have, we'd like to submit to you for the

record. I know Senator Reid had some he definitely would like to
submit and too, Mr. Secretary, if you could sometime later this
week give me some indication on this other issue with the Air
Force, this cooperative issue.

I thank you very much for your input and for your time here this
morning.

Secretary Babbitt. Mr. Chairman, thank you. I look forward to
working with the committee.

[Additional responses to questions for the record follow:]
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Dear Mr. Chairman:

Thank you for your letter of March 13, 1995, and the opportunity to
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Additional Questions for Secretary Bruce Babbitt from Senator Chafee

Question 1. On ESA, generally: You alluded in your testimony to the fact that

there are provisions in the current Endangered Species Act (ESA) that, while under-

utilized in the past, provide potential basis for regulatory flexibility. One such provi-

sion is section 4(d), which confers authority to issue tailor-made special rules re-

garding "take" of threatened species to minimize adverse social and economic effects

while still providing for recovery of the species. It is my understanding that the re-

cently issued proposed 4(d) rule for the threatened northern spotted owl, for exam-
ple, calls for reduction or removal of ESA "take" prohibitions on some 70 percent

of previously affected private landowners in Washington State, and also contains a

special exemption for small landowners. What is the anticipated timing for issuance

of any final 4(d) rule for the owl? Also, please indicate where else you are using,

or plan to use, section 4(d) to provide relief to private landowners.

Answer. Section 4(d) of the Endangered Species Act grants the Secretary of Inte-

rior broad administrative discretion to promulgate regulations that he deems nec-

essary and advisable to meet the conservation needs of those species listed as

threatened. The Secretary may apply to a threatened species any or all of the prohi-

bitions against take that the Act makes expressly available to endangered species.

These provisions empower the Fish and Wildlife Service to promulgate a "special

rule" which adopts species-specific protective regulations for a given threatened spe-

cies.

When the spotted owl was originally listed in June 1990, the Service did not have
sufficient information about the needs of the owl to tailor-make a special rule on

take restrictions for the species. As an interim safety net, the owl was protected by
the blanket prohibitions against incidental take that are otherwise applicable to en-

dangered species. Relying now upon the Federal Forest Plan and other information,

the Service has proposed a special rule for the northern spotted owl in Washington
and California, which would relax those incidental take prohibitions that the Service

has concluded are no longer either necessary or advisable for the conservation of the

owl. The Service hopes to finalize this proposed 4(d) rule by the end of this fiscal

year.

The 4(d) rule contains an 80-acre exemption for small landowners. The Service

has determined, based on the location of both Federal and non-Federal owl sites and
habitat conditions, that the exemption as described in the proposed rule will have
a minimal impact on the conservation needs of the owl. This exemption applies only

to the northern spotted owl, and does not exempt landowners form restrictions for

other species.

In addition to the small landowner exemption, the proposed rule also provides for

a Local Option Conservation Plan through which medium-size landowners (up to

5,000 acres) can seek relief through a streamlined Habitat Conservation Planning

process, landowners with more than 5,000 acres can use the normal Habitat Con-

servation Planning process.

A 4(d) rule was issued for the coastal California gnatcatcher when it was listed

in 1993. The gnatcatcher special rule lifted restrictions associated with development

and land use planning processes conducted pursuant to the California Natural Com-
munity Conservation Planning Act of 1991. The 4(d) rule process also was used for

the Louisiana black bear. That special rule authorizes take that is incidental to nor-

mal forest management activities, so long as den trees are not damaged or de-

stroyed. The 4(d) process has been used to ease restrictions on other species such

as the grizzly bear, gray wolf and numerous fish species, but not specifically in con-

junction with private landowners. The Service currently is evaluating a nationwide

small landowner exemption process that would utilize 50 CFR 17.31 and 4(d) rules

to exempt certain described activities from the current take prohibitions.
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Question 2. Please elaborate on how ESA has affected, and is affecting private

property owners.

Answer. Effects of the Endangered Species Act on private property owners stem
from the restrictions of section 9 of the Act related to actions that affected listed

species and the obligations of Federal agencies to comply with section 7 of the Act
regarding actions they may be involved with on private lands.

For endangered animals, section 9 prohibits taking, including harming or

harassing; threatened animals are subject to either general "blanket" regulations

that prohibit the same actions prohibited for endangered animals or "special" regu-

lations that may be less restrictive. Similarly, endangered plants are subject to di-

rect statutory restrictions that prohibit removal, cutting, digging up, or damaging
or destroying in knowing violation of any State law or regulation or in the course

of any violation of a State criminal trespass law; threatened plants are subject to

similar protection under general regulations or may be subject to special regula-

tions. Over the past 2 years, the Service has taken many actions, some of which
are described in our March 6 docvunent, to improve the ESA. The Service has been
working to demonstrate that the Act can achieve its goals of protecting species and
their habitat while respecting the rights of private property owners. If private prop-

erty owners wish to take actions which would violate section 9, that is a project

which would kill, harm or harass a protected species, they are required to obtain

a permit provided for in section 10 of the Act. In the past 2 years, under section

10, more than 30 HCPs have been approved and more than 100 are being nego-

tiated, this is in contrast to only 15 HCPs being approved between 1983 and 1992.

In an effort to ease concern over possible ESA impacts on people living within a list-

ed species range, the FWS and NMFS will promptly identify activities that would

be permitted and those that would be prohibited in final listing rules. In addition,

for species listed as threatened, the FWS and NMFS will be proposing regulations

that would allow land use activities that result in incidental take provided such ac-

tivities have no lasting effect on the survival and recovery of the species. In particu-

lar, the following activities would not be regulated under this proposal:

• activities on tracts of land occupied by a single household and used solely for

residential purposes;

• one-time activities that affect 5 acres or less of contiguous property if that

property was acquired prior to the date the species was listed; and
• activities which are identified as negligible.

As a result of the new "no surprises" policy for HCPs which was announced last

summer by the Department of the Interior, landowners with approved HCPs will

be exempted from any additional requirements for species covered by the planes,

(both listed and not yet listed species) for the life of the plan. The Service also re-

cently promulgated a "safe harbor" rule to provide incentives for private landowners

to preserve and enhance red-cockaded woodpecker habitat. The agreement, devel-

oped for the Sand Hills region of North Carolina, promises that success in attracting

more woodpeckers to their property will not limit future development even if the

woodpeckers are later jeopardized.

Question 3. More specifically. Senator Hutchison has expressed concerns about the

private-property effects that might arise from making final a proposed rule that

would list as endangered the Arkansas River Shiner, a small fish found in the Ca-

nadian River in New Mexico, Oklahoma, and Texas. The proposed listing (published

August 3, 1994) states the shiner is at risk due to habitat destruction and modifica-

tion form stream dewatering, and water quality degradation. If the Arkansas River

Shiner listing is made final, are there any private activities that are likely to be

prohibited or restricted?

Answer. The Arkansas shiner has been extirpated from about 80 percent of its

historical range as a result of the kinds of habitat alterations referred to in the
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question. The listing proposal is a response to that decline. Some statements have

been made to the effect that listing of the shiner would lead to reduced availability

of water from Lake Meredith on restrictions on use of water from the Ogallala aqui-

fer. The Fish and Wildlife Service, however, has no authority or wish to regulate

the use of ground or surface water. The Service likewise does not envision seeking

releases from Lake Meredith unless water levels in the reservoir improved consider-

ably, and then only if uncontracted water were available, the biological need were

evident, and local communities were to support the action. At present, releases from

Lake Meredith could do little to facilitate recovery of the Arkansas River shiner.

The Canadian River floodplain for several miles below Lake Meredith is dry and
choked with mature woody vegetation. Thus any releases would not restore the

floodplain to preimpoundment conditions. Additionally, the Arkansas River shiner

continues to exist below Lake Meredith where sufBcient quantities of water exist.

The Service recognizes that there is very limited hydrologic connection between the

Ogallala aquifer and the Canadian River in Texas. Consequently, the Service has

no intention of restricting private landowner's water rights if the shiner is listed.

The Service believes that the long-term goals of agricultural and municipal water

users, directed toward conserving the scarce water resources of the area, would ben-

efit the shiner.

Question 4. Also, please project the likely economic effects if the current proposed

rule to expand the geographic scope of the listed jaguar to include portions of Texas

were made final.

Answer. The jaguar was originally listed as an endangered species in 1972 under

one of the predecessors of the Endangered Species Act. At that time one list was
maintained for native wildlife and another for foreign species. For technical reasons,

when these two lists were combined under the 1973 Act the jaguar retained listed

status only outside U.S. territory, although several States are within the species'

historic range. It was to correct this artificitd and anomtdous situation that the

Service proposed include those States with historic range in the publication "Endan-

gered and Threatened Wildlife Plants" (50 CFR 17.11 and 17.12) for the jaguar. Al-

though the proposal is often portrayed as an attempt to list a tiny remnant popu-

lation of the species within the U.S., in actuality fewer than 5 individual jaguars

are known to have crossed the border into the U.S. in the past 20 years, primarily

in southern Arizona. The Service is proposing to fill a small gap in the protection

that has been afforded to the jaguar under U.S. law for over two decades. The prin-

cipal effect of extending listed status would be to prohibit shooting of jaguars if they

appear in the southwestern States. We anticipate no effect on legal hunting or agri-

culture in those States.

Question 5. You alluded briefly in your testimony to the rather negligible effects

listed plants have a private property owners. Please explain your position in this

regard further, especially as it relates to any such potential effects arising from pri-

vate actions that require some Federal involvement, and thus, which may be subject

to certain requirements of section 7 of the ESA.

Answer. The take (harm to include killing) of threatened endangered plants on

private property is not prohibited by the Endangered Species Act of 1973 (as amend-

ed), provided the take does not violate any State laws or occur as a result of an

activity funded, authorized, or carried out by a Federal agency. If an activity on pri-

vate property involves a Federal agency, it is the Federal agencj^s responsibility to

ensure the activity will not jeopardize the continued existence of a listed species or

adversely modify or destroy designated critical habitat. If the Federal agency deter-

mines that the activity may adversely affect a listed species or adversely modify

critical habitat, the Federal agency is obligated to consult with either the Fish and

Wildlife Service and/or the National Marine Fisheries Service, depending on the spe-

cies of plants involved. As a result of the consultation, it is possible the activity
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might need to be modified to avoid adverse effects to species or habitats. Very rare-

ly, an activity might not be funded or authorized because it would jeopardize a spe-

cies or destroy critical habitat without any reasonable and prudent alternatives.

Question 6. Please clarify the current status, under the ESA framework, of the

swift fox, and also state whether the species is likely to be listed imminently under

the Act.

Answer. On March 3, 1992, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (Service) received

a petition form Mr. Jon C. Sharps to Ust the swift fox {Vulpes velox) as an endan-

gered species in the northern portion of its range, if not its entire range. The Serv-

ice, in its 90-day finding published in the Federal Register (59 FR 28328) on June

1, 1994, found that the petition presented substantial information and began the 12

month review to determine if the swift fox needed the protection of the Endangered

Species Act.

On February 15, 1995, the Biodiversity Legal Foundation and Mr. Jon C. Sharps

filed a complaint with the Denver Federal District Court seeking to compel the

Service to issue a 12-month finding regarding the status of the swift fox throughout

its range. On June 12, 1995, the Service found the listing of the swifl fox over the

historic range of the species was warranted but precluded. This 12-month finding

was published in the June 16, 1995, Federal Register.

Question 7. In your testimony, you stated that species that otherwise would be

protected under the ESA by being listed might go extinct during a listing morato-

rium. If a moratorium bill allowed for emergency listings to go forward, would that

prevent, or at least appreciably reduce the likelihood of, species becoming extinct

during any moratorium period?

Answer. Emergency listing is a seldom-used process that may be applied to a spe-

cies that is experiencing a significant, and usually unexpected, threat to its contin-

ued existence. Emergency listing may be applied when the normal timeline involved

with the standard listing process under section 4 of the Act would not be responsive

enough. Circumstances surrounding the use of the emergency listing process result

in a species listed as endangered. Section 4(b)(7) of the Act, which addresses emer-

gency listing of species, limits the duration the emergency listing may be in effect

to 240 days and this period begins immediately upon publication of the rulemaking

in the Federal Register. Because a emergency situation exists, no time is permitted

for a public review and comment period. After 240 days, the listing determination

ceases to have force and effect unless the standard listing process is completed and

a rulemaking identifying the species as threatened or endangered has been com-

pleted.

Relying on the emergency listing option of section 4 of the Act during a morato-

rivmi on rulemaking to keep species from going extinct would not be a viable solu-

tion. The emergency would likely not be over or resolved at the end of the 240 day

period and the Service would not be able to proceed with a listing. Also, if species

were allowed to decline to the point that emergency listings were necessary, their

status would be so precarious that recovery would be extremely difficult. If a species

is threatened to the point of needing the protection of the Act, the best time to list

the species is before it reaches a point of being endangered. The flexibility of the

Act can best be used for threatened species and it is easier to recover threatened,

rather than endangered, species.

Question 8. How many species would likely be affected by a 6-month moratorium?

Please provide the subcommittee with a list of the species currently proposed for

listing, that Ukely would be affected by a 6-month moratorium on listing and critical

habitat designations.

Answer. The following is a list of the 93 proposed species that would likely be neg-

atively impacted by a moratorium on listing:
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Proposed Species Potentially Affected by a Moratorium

Date Proposed Common Name (ScientHic Name) - Stales

05/08/92 Sheep, Peninsular bighorn (Ow's canadensis cremnobates) - CA. Mexico.

05/08/92 Lane Mountain ( = Coolgardie) milk-vetch [Astragalus jaegerianus) - CA.

05/08/92 Coachella Valley milk-vetch [Astragalus lentiginosus var. coachellae) CA.

05/08/92 Shining ( = shiny) milk-vetch [Astragalus lentiginosus var. micans) CA.

05/08/92 Fish Slough milk-vetch [Astragalus lentiginosus var. piscinensis) - CA.

05/08/92 Sodaville milk-vetch ^Astragalus lentiginosus var. sesquimetralis) - CA.NV,

05/08/92 Peirson's milk-vetch [Astragalus magdalenae var. peirsonii] - CA.

05/08/92 Triple-ribbed milk-vetch [Astragalus tricarinatus) CA.

11/20/92 Arizona willow ( = White Mountains willow) [Salix arizonica) - AZ.

1 1/30/92 Braunton's milk-vetch [Astragalus brauntonii) - CA.

11/30/92 Conejo dudleya [Dudleya abramsii ssp. parva] - CA.

11/30/92 Marcescent dudleya [Dudleya cymosa ssp. marcescens) CA.

11/30/92 Santa Monica Mountains dudleya [Dudleya cymosa ssp. ovatifolia] CA.

11/30/92 Verity's dudleya [Dudleya verity/) - CA.

1 1/30/92 Lyon's pentachaeta [Pentachaeta lyonii) - CA.

11/30/92 Hartweg's golden sunburst, [Pseudobahia bahiifolia) - CA.

11/30/92 San Joaquin adobe sunburst [Pseudobahia peirsonii) - CA.

12/17/92 Wahane ( = Hawane or lo'ulul [Pritchardia aylmer-robinsonii) - HI.

03/23/93 None [Amaranthus brownii) - HI.

03/24/93 Loulu [Pritchardia remota) - HI.

03/24/93 None [Schiedea verticillata) - HI.

08/03/93 Gulf moccasinshell [Medionidus penicillatus) - AL.FL.GA

08/05/93 Fleshy owl's-clover [Castilleja campestris ssp succulenta) CA.

08/05/93 Hoover's spurge [Chamaesyce hooveri) - CA.

08/05/9.3 Colusa grass [Neostapfia colusana) CA.

08/05/93 San Joaquin orcutt grass [Orcuttia inequalis) CA.

08/05/93 Hairy ( = pilosel orcutt grass [Orcuttia pilosa) CA.

08/05/93 Slender orcutt grass [Orcuttia tenuis) - CA.

08/05/93 Sacramento orcutt grass [Orcuttia viscida) CA.

08/05/93 Greene's orcutt grass [Tuctoria greenei) - CA.

08/18/93 Snake, northern copperbelly water [Nerodia erythrogaster neglecta) - IL,IN,KY,MI,OH.

08/18/93 Snake, Lake Erie water [Nerodia sipedon insularum) OH, Canada.

09/24/93 None [Coccoloba rugosa) - PR.

10/01/93 Del Mar manzanita [Arctostaphylos glandulosa ssp. crassifolia) - CA.

10/01/93 Encinitis baccharis ( = Coyote bush), [Baccharis vanessae) - CA.

10/01/93 Orcutt's spineflower [Chorizanthe orcuttiana) - CA.

10/01/93 Del Mar sand aster [Corethrogyne filaginifolia vat. linHolia) CA.

10/01/93 Short-leaved dudleya [Dudleya blochmaniae ssp. brevHolia) CA.

10/01/93 Big-leaved crownbeard [Verbesina dissita) - CA, Mexico.

10/06/93 Winkler cactus [Pediocactus winkler!) - UT.

11/29/93 Lizard, tiat-tailed horned [Phrynosoma mcallii) - AZ,CA, Mexico.

01/06/94 Splittail, Sacramento [Pogonichthys macrolepidotus) - CA.

02/02/94 Frog , California red-legged [Rana aurora draytoni) - CA, Mexico.

02/04/94 Whipsnake, ( = striped racer) Alameda [Masticophis lateralis euryxanthus) - CA.

02/04/94 Butterfly, Callippe silverspot [Speyeria callippe callippe) - CA.

02/04/94 Butterfly, Behrens silverspot [Speyeria zerene behrensii) - CA.

02/17/94 Salamander, Barton Springs [Eurycea sosorum) - TX.

02/18/94 None [Gesneria paucHlora) - PR.

03/23/94 Talussnail, San Xavier [Sonorella eremita (Pilsbry & Ferris. 1915)) A2.

03/28/94 Parish's alkali grass [Puccinellia parishii) - AZ.CA.MT.NM.
04/20/94 Stebbins' morning-glory [Calystegia stebbinsii) CA.

04/20/94 Pine Hill ceanothus [Ceanothus roderickii) - CA.

04/20/94 Pine Hill flannelbush [Fremontodendron decumbens) - CA.
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04/20/94 El Dorado bedstraw [Galium calilornicum ssp. sierrae) CA.
04/20/94 Layne's butterweed [Senecio layneae) CA.

05/10/94 Grasshopper, Zayante band winged ITrimerotropis infantilis) CA.
05/10/94 Beetle, Santa Cruz rain [Pleocoma conugens conjugens) CA
05/10/94 Beetle, Mount Hermon June [Polvphylla barbala) CA.
05/10/94 Golden paintbrush [Castilleja levisecta) OR.WA, Canada (B.C.).

05/18/94 Spindace, Virgin [Lepidomeda mollispinis mollispinis) - AZ,N\/,UT.

06/27/94 None {Delissea undulata] - HI.

07/13/94 Jaguar, U.S. population [Panthera onca) AZ.CA,CO,LA,NM,TX
07/14/94 Eider, Stellers (AK breeding pop. I [Polysticta stelleri) AK, Russia

07/14/94 Elktoe, Cumberland [Alasmidonta atropurpurea (Rafinesque, 1831)1 • KY,TN.

07/14/94 Combshell, Cumberlandian {Epioblasma brevidens (I. Lea, 1831)1 - AL.KY,TN,VA.
07/14/94 Mussel, oyster [Epioblasma capsaeformis II. Lea, 1834)) - AL,KY.TN,VA.
07/14/94 Rabbitsfoot, rough [Quadrula cylindrica strigillata IB.H. Wright. 18981) KY,TN,VA.
07/14/94 Bean, Purple [Villosa perpurpurea (I. Lea, 18611) • TN.VA.
08/03/94 Shiner, Arkansas River (native pop. only) [Notropis girardi) - AR,KS,NM,OK,TX.
08/03/94 Mussel, fat three-ridge [Amblema neislerii [\. Lea, 1858)) FL.GA.

08/03/94 Slabshell, Chipola [Elliptio chipolaensis] AL,FL.

08/03/94 Bankclimber, purple [Elliptoideus sloatianus) (I. Lea. 1840)) - AL.GA.FL.

08/03/94 Moccasinshell, Gulf [Medionidus penicillatus] - GA.
08/03/94 Pocketbook, shiny-rayed [Lampsilis subangulata (I. Lea, 1840)) - AL,FL,GA.

08/03/94 Ochlockonee moccasinshell [Medionidus simpsonianus) FL,GA.

08/03/94 Pigtoe. oval [Pleurobema pyri/orme II. Lea, 1857)) - AL,FL.GA.

08/04/94 Butterfly. Quino checkerspot [Euphydryas editha quino l = E. e. wrightil) - CA. Mexico.

08/04/94 Skipper, Laguna Mountains [Pyrgus ruralis lagunae) - CA.
08/04/94 Fairy shrimp, San Diego [Branchinecta sandiegoensis) CA.

08/04/94 Cuyamaca Lake downingia [Downingia concolor vat. brevior) - CA.
08/04/94 Parish's meadowtoam [Limnanthes gracilis ssp. parishii) - CA.

08/23/94 Spring Creek bladderpod [Lesquerella perforata) TN.

09/09/94 Helianthus eggertii (Eggerts sunflower) AL,TN,KY.

10/04/94 Cirsium fiydrophilum vat. hydrophilum (Suisun thistle) CA
10/04/94 Cordylanthus mollis ssp. mollis (soft birds-beak) - CA
12/12/94 Cactus ferruginous pygmy-owl [Glaucidium brasilianum cactorum) - AZ. Mexico.

12/15/94 Allium munzii (Munz's onion] - CA
12/15/94 Atriplex coronata var. notatior ISan Jacinto Valley crownscalel - CA
12/15/94 Brodiaea tilifolia (Thread-leaved brodiaea] CA
12/15/94 Navarretia fossalis (Spreading navarretia) • CA
12/19/94 Lasthenia conjugens (Contra costa goldfields) - CA
12/19/94 Navarretia leucocephala ssp. pauciflora (few-flowered navarretia) - CA
12/19/94 Navarretia leucocephala ssp. plieantha (Many-flowered navarretia) - CA
12/19/94 Parvisedium leiocarpum (Lake county stonecrop) - CA

Total = 93 Species

Proposed Critical Habitat

Potentially Affected by a Moratorium

Date Proposed Common Name (Scientific Name) - States

06/20/92 Marbled murrelet {Brachyramphus marmoratus marmoratus) - CA.OR.WA.
09/30/92 Gulf sturgeon [Acipenser oxyrinchus desotoi) AL,FL,GA,LA,MS.

12/02/93 Louisiana black bear {Ursus americanus luteolus) - LA.

12/01/94 Lost River & Shortnose sucker [Deltistes luxatus) & {Chasmistes brevirostris) - CA.OR.

12/01/94 Mexican spotted owl • {Strix occidentalis luclda) - AZ,CO,NM,UT.
12/12/94 Cactus ferruginous pygmy-owl {Glaucidium brasilianum cactorum) - AZ.

Total = 7 Species
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Question 9. Do you interpret the language of section 2 of S. 191 to prevent or re-

strict any activities undertaken pursuant to the ESA prior to final listing, such as

publication of proposed rules on either the status of species or determinations of

critical habitat for listed species?

Answer. As written, the language in section 2 would not prohibit proposing species

for threatened or endangered status or proposed the designation of critical habitat.

However, the Act requires that within 1 year of a proposed rule being published in

the Federal Register, the Administration must publish a final finding on whether
listing or designation is warranted. The only exception is if substantial disagree-

ment about the accuracy of data used to support the finding exists. If so, the finding

can be delayed another 6 months.

It is possible that if the Service proceeded with proposing species for listing or

habitat for critical habitat designation, the moratorium could prevent a finding

being finalized within the 12 month period. This would place the Service in the posi-

tion of being out of compliance Avith the Act and a subsequent finding to list a spe-

cies or designate a habitat as critical could be challenged as not being done within

the statutory timeframes set forth by the Act.

Question 10. It would seem that the species that would be most directly affected

by any moratorium on listing determinations are currently on the list of Category

1 candidate species. These are species for which substantial information exists to

wsirrant listing as either threatened or endangered. As of 1992, there were approxi-

mately 400 Category 1 candidate species. How many species currently are on the

Category 1 list and, although the status of each species obviously differs to some
degree, generally how you would characterize the level of risk facing species that

have made it onto the list if their listing were to be delayed by a moratorium?

Answer. As of April 1, 1995, there are 211 plants and 85 animals classified as Cat-

egory 1 candidate species. The Service strives to list species based on a ranking sys-

tem where the most threatened are proposed for listing first. Therefore, the species

currently proposed for listing will generally be in greater need of protection than

Category 1 candidate species. In addition, the status of proposed species—oft^n in-

cluding the location(s) and preferred habitat(s)—has been published for public com-

ment. If the protection of the Endangered Species Act is delayed, vulnerability of

proposed species is increased. The habitat of proposed species could be deliberately

destroyed during the moratorium without violating the take provisions of the Act.

Some species—such as turtles and orchids—are highly esteemed by collectors. When
such species are proposed for listing, their value often greatly increases and collec-

tion pressure will likewise increase.

The next set of species at risk are those Category 1 species which are declining

due to significant, imminent threats. Another set of species at risk are those whose

status may change for the worse during the moratorium. Such a change could be

prompted by private or Federal actions or by stochastic events such as hurricanes

or floods.

Additional Question for Secretary Bruce Babbitt from Senator Reid

Question: I understand the Administration released a proposal to improve the En-

dangered Species Act by making it more fair, cooperative and scientifically sound.

Can you tell us about the highlights of the proposal and how they would fit in with

S. 191. And if in your opinion given these changes, whether we need any legislation,

and if so, what would you propose? How would S. 191 solve any of the problems

associated with the Act?

Answer. In the past year the Administration has taken a number of steps to im-

prove the implementation of the Endangered Species Act. These initiatives have
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consisted of several announcements. The first proposal consisted of six policy state-

ments published July 1, 1994, in the Federal Register.

• Cooperative Policy for Peer Review in Endangered Species Act Activities—Policy

to clarify the role of peer review in endangered species activities undertaken by the

Service.

• Cooperative Policy on Information Standards under the Endangered Species Act

Activities—Policy to establish procedures, and provide criteria and guidance, to en-

sure that decisions on endangered species issues made by the Service represent the

best scientific and commercial data available.

• Cooperative Policy for Endangered Species Act Section 9 Prohibitions—Policy to

establish a procedure at the time a species is listed as threatened or endangered

that identifies, to the maximum extent practicable, those activities that would or

would not constitute a violation of section 9 of the Endangered Species Act.

• Cooperative Policy on Recovery Plan Participation and Implementation Under

the Endangered Species Act—Policy to ensure the involvement of all appropriate

agencies and affected interests in a mutually developed strategy to implement recov-

ery actions and minimize the social and economic impacts of the actions.

• Cooperative Policy for the Ecosystem Approach to the Endangered Species Act—
Policy to encourage the incorporation of ecosystem considerations in Endangered

Species Act actions regarding listing, interagency cooperation, recovery, and cooper-

ative activities.

• Cooperative Policy regarding the Role of State Agencies in Endangered Species

Activities—Policy to clarify the role of State agencies in endangered species related

activities undertaken by the Service.

In August, 1994 the Administration announced a "No Surprises" policy. The policy

assures landowners and stakeholders that enter into a Habitat Conservation Plan-

ning agreements with the Service, that when the Plan is finalized the Service will

not require additional land or funding for species or habitats at a future date.

In addition, on December 21, 1994, five drafl polices developed jointly by the Fish

and Wildlife Service and the National Marine Fisheries Service were published in

the Federal Register for public comment.

• Developing Habitat Conservation Plans (HCPs). A draft handbook has been de-

veloped to provide consistent and simplified procedures for agency personnel as they

work with private landowners who are applying for incidental take permits under

section 10 of the ESA.
• Managing petitions. Draft guidelines on petition management more rigorously

define those species and actions which may be petitioned under the ESA. The draft

guidelines also provide guidance on timeframes for responding to petitions and noti-

fication of petitioners.

• Conserving species that are candidates for listing. The guidelines set out stand-

ards for prioritizing candidate species and mechanisms for taking actions benefiting

candidates thereby reducing threats and potentially avoiding listing.

• Consulting with other Federal agencies. A draft handbook would provide consist-

ent procedures for consultation, under section 7 of the Act, with other Federal agen-

cies on endangered species issues.

• Defining "populations" of vertebrate species eligible for listing. The draft guide-

lines would gmde the evaluation of distinct vertebrate populations for listing,

delisting, and reclassification under the ESA.

Most recently, the Administration promoted ten principles to guide the Adminis-

tration's effort for reforming and implementing the Endangered Species Act. The

Administration has identified the following specific measures which Congress could

take to fvirther improve the ESA:
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MINIMIZE SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE ACT

Restore the distinction between a threatened species and an endangered species.

Provide the flexibility to use, a wide range of administrative or regulatory incen-

tives, prohibitions and protections for threatened species.

TREAT LANDOWNERS FAIRLY AND PROVIDE THEM WITH CERTAINTY

Provide additional certainty to landowners who develop approved HCPs that pro-

tect non-listed species as well as listed species. Landowners who have provided for

the protection of these species or their significant habitat types under a HCP should

be assured that their land use activities will not be disrupted by the subsequent list-

ing of other species dependent upon the same habitat.

Allow certain small landowner activities which result in incidental take of species

to include endangered species and provide that incidental take activities undertaken

pvu"suant to an approved State conservation agreement will not be regulated under

the ESA.

EXPEDITE RECOVERY AND DE-LISTING OF THREATENED AND ENDANGERED SPECIES

Ensure that the recovery planning process articulates definitive recovery objec-

tives for populations; provides all jurisdictional entities and stakeholders an oppor-

tunity to participate in the process; seeks to minimize any social or economic im-

pacts that may result from implementation; emphasizes multi-species, habitat-based

approaches; is exempted from NEPA if the planning process is equivalent to that

required by NEPA; facilitates integration of natural resource and land management
programs at all jurisdictional levels; and identifies specific activities or geographic

areas that are exempt from or that will not be affected by the section 9 prohibitions

of the ESA concerning "take" of species covered by a plan.

Require that all appropriate State and Federal agencies develop one or more spe-

cific agreements to implement a recovery plan. Implementation agreements should

expedite and provide assurances concerning the outcome of interagency consulta-

tions under section 7 and ensure that actions taken pursuant to the agreement meet

or exceed the requirements of the ESA. Upon approval, the agreement should be le-

gally binding and incorporated into the recovery plan.

Designate critical habitat based on specific recommendations in recovery plans

and concurrently with recovery plan approval.

Reclassification should be done administratively based on criteria in a recovery

plan and should not be subject to the current process required for listing, de-listing

and changes in status of a species. De-listing should be triggered when the criteria

established by a recovery plan are met.

PROVIDE STATES OPPORTUNITIES TO PLAY A GREATER ROLE IN IMPLEMENTING THE ESA

Require the Secretary to concur with a State conservation agreement and suspend

the consequences under the GSA that would otherwise result from a final decision

to list a species if a State has approved a conservation agreement and the Secretary

determines that it will remove the threats to the species and promote its recovery

within the State. Suspension of the consequences of listing a species pursuant to an

approved State conservation agreement should be permitted at any point before or

after a final listing decision.

Require that special consideration be given to State scientific knowledge and in-

formation. Petitions would be sent to each affected State fish and wildlife agency.

Require the Secretary to accept a State's recommendation if it recommends against

proposing a species for listing or delisting unless the Secretary finds, after conduct-
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ing independent scientific peer review, that listing is required under the provisions

of the ESA.

Provide States the opportunity to assume lead responsibility for developing recov-

ery plans and any component implementation agreements. Establish mechanisms to

ensure participation by and coordination with each affected State in the develop-

ment of the recovery plan.

Authorize appropriate State agencies, as well as the Secretaries of Interior and
Commerce, to enter into voluntary pre-listing agreements with cooperating land-

owners to provide assurances that further conservation measures would not be re-

quired of the landowners should' a species subsequently be listed.

Provide a State with the opportunity to assume responsibility for issuing permits

under section 10(a)(2) for areas within a State which have been identified for such

assumption in an approved recovery plan or for which there is otherwise an ap-

proved comprehensive, habitat-based State program.

S. 191 advocates amending the Endangered Species Act of 1973 to place morato-

riums on the listing of species as threatened or endangered or designation of critical

habitat. Placing a moratorium on listing of species would work to make the Act less

flexible. By precluding the ability to protect species while they are threatened, op-

tions (such as section 4(d) rules) which can work to the benefit of private land own-

ers, would be not be available. If the species continued to decline to the point of

becoming endangered during the moratorium period, the measures that have to be

taken to recover the species become more stringent and the likelihood that these

more drastic measures could have an economic impact on private landowners would

increase.

S. 191 also proposed to place a moratorium on all section 7 activities. Section 7

is the process that allows projects that involve a Federal agency to proceed. By plac-

ing a moratorium on section 7 activities, any project that involved the funding, au-

thorization, or work by a Federal agency could not proceed without risk of violating

section 9, the prohibitions of take of listed animal species or destruction of des-

ignated critical habitat. Therefore, S. 191 would decrease the flexibility of the En-

dangered Species Act and place additional burdens on private land owners. Federal

assistance, usually in the form of funding or an authorization, might not be avail-

able to help private landowners.

S. 191 would not solve any of the problems associated with the Endangered Spe-

cies Act. The Administration feels that the Endangered Species Act is a fair law

that works to conserve the Nation's natural resources. Many of the problems that

existed with the Act are being resolved by increased public education and partner-

ships, by realizing the full flexibility of the Act, and by working to increase effi-

ciency in its implementation. Other problems could best be resolved by adopting the

changes identified by the Administration.

Senator Kempthorne. Thank you.

Let me say to all members of the panel which is a distinguished

panel, we are anxious to hear your comments because many of you
have the firsthand experience with this based on your background.
We will use the clock because there are six members of the panel.

As you see us approaching the warning light and then the red

light, I would just ask you to conclude your remarks and summa-
rize. Also, we will make a part of the record the statements that

you have submitted to us prior to this.

Again, we look forward to your comments. Let me begin with Dr.

David Wilcove, senior ecologist. Environmental Defense Fund.
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STATEMENT OF DAVID WILCOVE, SENIOR ECOLOGIST,
ENVIRONMENTAL DEFENSE FUND

Mr. WiLCOVE. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman and mem-
bers of the committee.

I'm pleased to present this testimony on behalf of both the Envi-
ronmental Defense Fund and the Society for Conservation Biology
which is a professional association of scientists who study the pro-
tection of biodiversity.

The gist of my message is that if S. 191 becomes law, it will have
some or all of the following consequences: some species may become
extinct, the cost and difficulty of saving other species will increase,

and we're going to lose the flexibility to design conservation plans
that balance the needs of endangered species with legitimate eco-

nomic activities.

These consequences stem from the sad fact that we tend not to

add species to the Endangered Species list until they are teetering
on the brink of extinction, and to delay their protection any fur-

ther, which is precisely what a moratorium would do, would make
a bad situation worse.

I'd like to describe a study that my colleagues and I recently pub-
lished in the scientific journal "Conservation Biology," one that
Senator Boxer has alluded to. We asked a simple question, "How
close to extinction are species when they are added to the Endan-
gered Species List?" So we looked at all plants and animals that
were added to the list between the years 1985 and 1991.
We discovered that half of all of the animals had total population

sizes of less than 1,000 individuals at the time they were listed.

This number is generally considered to be well below the level that
most conservation biologists would regard as minimally safe in the
short term.
With listed plants, the situation was even worse. Half of all

plants added to the Endangered Species List had total populations
of fewer than 120 mature individuals at the time of listing and, in

fact, there were 39 plant species that were listed when only 10 or
fewer individuals were known to be alive.

This study only covered species listed between the years 1985
and 1991, so in preparation for this hearing, we went back to the
Federal Register to find out whether species are still being added
to the list when they are extremely rare and the answer is unfortu-
nately, they are.

Just last year in 1994, for example, at least 17 Hawaiian plants
were added to the Endangered Species List with total known popu-
lations of 10 or fewer mature individuals. I would point out that
we cannot predict scientifically which if any of these species will

prove to have important medicinal properties or other useful prop-
erties.

Bear in mind that even under the best of circumstances, the list-

ing process can take as long as 2^2 years. When you're dealing
with species that are extremely rare, any further delays could quite

literally be fatal to the species involved. Other species, those that
are not down to just a couple of individuals, could become so rare
that only an expensive program of captive propagation could save
them, so we essentially run the risk of creating more high risk, ex-

pensive, conservation plans in a time of shrinking resources.
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Last, because rare species are likely to become even more rare
during the moratorium, we stand to lose some of the flexibility we
would have to craft conservation plans that will balance the needs
of the species with legitimate development activities. We lose this

flexibility because when a plant or animal is down to one or two
dwindling populations, there are really very few tradeoffs that can
be made that will both satisfy the conservation needs of the species
and allow the development activity in question to proceed.

In short, I don't believe that S. 191 solves any problems; I think
it creates additional problems.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Senator Kempthorne. Mr. Wilcove, thank you very much.
I'd like to ask each of the panelist to go ahead with your presen-

tation and then we will have questions we'll direct to any and all

of you. Also, just for clarification, we do have before us S. 503,
which modifies S. 191. It is a 6-month moratorium that is being
proposed and it does not include a moratorium on section 7 con-
sultations, just for clarification.

With that, Mr. Robert E. Gordon, director. National Wilderness
Institute.

STATEMENT OF ROBERT E. GORDON, JR., DIRECTOR,
NATIONAL WILDERNESS INSTITUTE

Mr. GrORDON. Mr. Chairman, my colleagues and I have spent a
great deal of time studying the implementation of the Endangered
Species Act and I appreciate the opportunity to discuss some of
that work with you today.
The organization I represent, NWI, is a private conservation or-

ganization that is dedicated to using sound, objective science for

the wise management of natural resources with members in all 50
States.

For several reasons, one of the many problems now plaguing im-
plementation of a responsible and effective Endangered Species
Program is the listing process. First, under the current program,
the evidentiary standards for listing are, in a word, BAD. I use the
word BAD because it is an acronym for the standards which, under
section 4, are "best available scientific and commercial data." The
problem with best available data, or "BAD" is that at best it's a
comparative word, thus the data need not be reliable, conclusive,

adequate, verifiable, accurate or even good.
As the number of listed species now approaches 1,000 with thou-

sands of official candidates in the wings, we're finding that the cur-

rent standards often lead to mistakes. For example, as a result of

the Indian Clam Shell Turtle's inclusion on Appendix I of CITES,
the Service subsequently listed the species as endangered. After

listing, rather than before, a literature review was conducted to see

if supporting evidence justified its current endangered status. No
such supporting data could be found and in a further attempt to

find supporting information, the Service then contacted turtle ex-

perts such as Dr. E.G. Moll. Moll stated that it was "Seemingly the
most common and widespread turtle in all of India. How it ever
made Appendix I of CITES is a big mystery."
The tumamoc globeberr>- is another example. It is one of the

most recent data errors delisted in 1993. After including this plant
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on the Endangered Species List for 7 years, Fish and Wildlife de-
termined "Surveys have shown tumamoc to be more common and
much more evenly distributed across its range than previously be-
lieved." Although never really endangered, during its 7years on the
list, this plan soaked up over $1,4 million in funds from the Corps,
BLM, DOD, NPS, the Forest Service, the Bureau of Indian Affairs,

the Bureau of Mines and the Bureau of Reclamation, and was the
basis for the Fish and Wildlife Service to issue a jeopardy opinion
on the Tucson Aqueduct.

It's difficult to know just how many species have been listed on
poor grounds but there is evidence to suggest that the number is

significant. In Fish and Wildlife's latest report to Congress, only
qualitative information about species is included. One species could
increase from five individuals to six and it could be called improv-
ing. Another could go from a population of 1 million to 999,999 and
be called declining. Clearly this information is not too useful with-
out also having quantitative data. According to the Service, we do
not even have a qualitative guesstimate for about 27 percent of the
listed species. This is an increase of 7.6 percent from the previous
report.

Furthermore, in a comprehensive review of 306 recovery plans,

many showed that there was little information about the status of

listed species. For example, the Cape crayfish, "Sufficient data to

estimate population size or trends is lacking." For the Kentucky
cave shrimp, "The very small estimated population size of the spe-

cies at the time of listing, approximately 500 individuals, made it

standout as being extremely vulnerable to extinction. Since the
time of listing, new populations have been discovered. Population
estimates range from approximately 7,000 to 12,000 individuals.

The painted snake coiled forest snail, "Information on the snail's

ecology and natural history is almost completely lacking."

Even species the Service calls recoveries were really mistakes.
The GAO reports that "Although officially designated as recovered,

the three species owe their recovery more to the discovery of addi-

tional birds than successful recovery efforts." The Rydberg milk-
vetch, a plant which was one of the only other supposed recoveries,

was delisted because "Further surveys turned up sufficient and
healthy populations," in plain English, another mistake.

Second, the listing of species which may not merit Federal pro-

tection because of the low standard of "BAD" is compounded by
poor criteria for determining endangered or threatened status. Sec-

tion 4 lays forth that a species may be listed because of, among
other things, "threatened modification of habitat or range, the in-

adequacy of existing regulatory mechanisms, or other natural fac-

tors affecting its continued existence." It could be argued that al-

most nothing escapes the first criteria, threatened habitat modifica-

tion. The second mentioned criteria is not a reasonable justification

for animals or plants which may be otherwise doing fine.

As regards the last mentioned criteria, it is a bit of an impossible
guideline for our current policy. For example, for one endangered
invertebrate, the Iowa snail, the current Government recovery plan
calls for conserving its remaining habitat until the next Ice Age.
A third problem with the current listing process is that a deci-

sion by the implementing agency not to list a species may be sub-
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ject to the challenge of a citizen suit as outlined in section 4 but
decisions to list cannot be challenged and parties successful in their
challenges to not list a species may receive attorneys fees in accord-
ance with section 11 giving the agency the incentive only to list.

The poor standard of lasting is exacerbated by poor criteria and
by a lopsided incentive to list species. When this process is set in

motion, it can and has resulted in enormous cost to the public
through expenditures of tax dollars and adverse impact on prop-
erties and business. Those who care for a responsible and effective

Endangered Species Program have a serious obligation to honestly
address the situation as these errors cause conflict, drain re-

sources, and plague the Act. Refraining from wrongly listing any
more species which may increase conflict between society and the
current program, as well as the expanded program that is already
performing poorly, seems to be a logical step to take until the many
problems inherent in the Act can be addressed during the reauthor-
ization process.

Thank you.
Senator Kempthorne. Mr. Grordon, thank you very much.
Mr. Richard Perry is Commissioner with the Texas Department

of Agriculture.

STATEMENT OF RICHARD PERRY, COMMISSIONER, TEXAS
DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Mr. Perry. Thank you, Chairman Kempthorne and members for

the opportunity to speak in support of S. 503, which would place

a moratorium on the listing of endangered and threatened species

until Congress reauthorizes the Endangered Species Act, and cer-

tainly to Senator Hutchison for not only carrying this very impor-
tant legislation, for the opportunity and invitation to be here.

I could talk for quite a spell about the problems that we face in

Texas with the ESA and specifically about the arbitrary enforce-

ment by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service in the way they carry
this out. I'll limit my remarks to why I agree that there must be
a moratorium on the listings. We have provided you with written
testimony and supporting material which will give you more detail

of the problems that Texans are facing.

In my opinion, Texas has been hit harder by the Endangered
Species Act than many States because 95 percent of our property
is privately owned and there is an awful lot of property in our
State. Because of our land mass, Texas has a variety of soils, cli-

mates and ground cover which leads to a diversity of wildlife and
habitat.

Texas currently has 67 species that are federally listed as endan-
gered or threatened. Each listing brings more regulations and re-

strictions on what a person can do with the property he or she
owns. Each restriction creates animosity which hurts rather than
helps promote species protection.

Just for reference, let me share with you a map. The colored

counties on this map are all home to at least one endangered spe-

cies which means the majority of Texans have one in their neigh-

borhood. Texans have fought several battles over the Endangered
Species Act recently and know all too well what these restrictions

can do. Central Texas has 33 counties affected by the endangered
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golden-cheeked warbler. Individuals as well as developers have
been prevented from building homes on their land. Two weeks ago,

Time magazine had an article that talked about one of those, Mar-
garet Richter, a 74-year-old State employee retiree in northwestern
Travis County. She had bought a piece of property, 30 acres there,

some years ago to assist and aid in her retirement. That land, in

1989, was carried on the rolls of Travis County for almost $1 mil-
lion and then in 1990, that land was designated as critical habitat
for the golden-cheeked warbler. That 30 acres today is on the tax
rolls in Travis County for $30,000. So much for her retirement.
Farmers and ranchers face restrictions on simple day-to-day

management decisions such as brush control and the number of
cattle they can run on their land. In 1991, another Margaret, this

time Margaret Rogers, an 87-year-old widow on a central Texas
ranch that had been in her family for years and years, received a
notification from the Fish and Wildlife Service of a $50,000 fine

that would be levied upon her for destruction of critical habitat.

While the Fish and Wildlife Service did come back and share their
admitted overreaction to that letter, they did tell her that before
she used anymore equipment to destroy any fence row, they needed
to call and ask them first.

The city of San Antonio and the farmers in the surrounding
counties have had their water supply threatened by a continuing
Sierra Club lawsuit aimed to ensure there is an adequate water
supply to protect two salamanders and two minnows that live in

the springs fed by the Edwards Aquifer. The Sierra Club has ex-

plicitly threatened to try to cut off water to military bases in San
Antonio which would eliminate 150,000 jobs and cut off Federal
funds to farmers in a three-county area to protect these species.

Those are just a few of the examples but they should begin to

give you an understanding of why we are certainly concerned about
more listings. We believe that habitat exists today because of good
stewardship by farmers and ranchers. Most producers take pride in

having wildlife on their land and are willing to do their part if it

makes sense, but it's the lack of common sense in the enforcement
of the Endangered Species Act that has Texans irate.

The U.S. Fish ana Wildlife Service wants to add the jaguar as
an endangered species under the Act despite the fact that it has
not been seen an3rwhere in Texas since 1948. Even the petition lists

notes the jaguar has historically only been an occasional wanderer
across Texas, yet Fish and Wildlife pushes on for the listing which
could restrict about 30 counties along the Rio Grande River.

The listing is being pushed by an environmental group from out-

side Texas that has no stake or accountability for the outcome of

its actions. The ease with which anyone, anywhere can petition to

add a species to the endangered list without regard for scientific

data or the economic restrictions that listing causes is an issue that
must be addressed in the reauthorization of the Act.

As a matter of fact, I was very pleased when Secretary Babbitt
talked about the superb—as a matter of fact, he called it one of the

best in the Nation—parks and wildlife systems and departments
that we have in the State. In the Texas Panhandle, the Fish and
Wildlife wants to add the swift fox to the endangered list. This is

despite the fact that that "superb, one of the best in the Nation,"
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Texas Parks and Wildlife Department biologists tell Fish and Wild-
life that biological information does not support a listing, yet 40
counties face restrictions if the swift fox is listed.

The Arkansas River shiner, which I will not go into, that Senator
Hutchison very clearly stated the case for it, is another example.
These listings, and particularly that listing on the bait fish of the
Arkansas River shiner, is quite horrifying because it would restrict

access to the Ogalalla Aquifer and 42 counties in the Texas Pan-
handle, which brings in over $10 billion worth of economic impact
in the agricultural community there, would be devastating. Ag pro-
ducers depend on that water for the produce, the food and fiber for

consumers all across the United States.

Fish and Wildlife sent a letter to concerned citizens saying it

didn't know if groundwater would be affected, didn't know how it

was going to protect the shiner. That's not an issue that we can
sign on to at this particular point in time.
What has happened in San Antonio in the Edwards Aquifer

where we have the tenth largest city in the United States in jeop-
ardy is a great example of what we see happening with this totally

irresponsible implementation of this Act in Texas.
Senator Kempthorne. Mr. Perry, if you could conclude your re-

marks. The Senator is remaining and we will probably ask you to

give us a little more detail at that point.

Mr. Perry. We support the wildlife system in Texas. There is no
doubt about it. I think if you'll give Texas farmers and ranchers
valid information, if you'll give them valid regulation, we certainly

can and will do all we can to support the wildlife system in Texas.
Thank you.
Senator KEMPTHORNE. Thank you very much.
Mr. William Snape who is the legal director of the Defenders of

Wildlife.

STATEMENT OF WILLIAM SNAPE, LEGAL DIRECTOR,
DEFENDERS OF WILDLIFE

Mr. Snape. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
My name is Bill Snape. I am counsel for Defenders of Wildlife

and I very much appreciate the opportunity this morning to testify.

Defenders believes the Endangered Species Act already possesses
the machinery to work but can be made to work even better. Al-

most every single conflict that arises under the Act, and we've
heard several this morning, I think can be attributed to a problem
related to implementation, not law. Still, the Act can and should
be reauthorized by Congress, but not with ad hoc legislative pro-

posals. I believe S. 503 is an ad hoc legislative proposal. The fact

that a new moratorium bill was dropped late last night hardly al-

lays my fears and, in fact, reinforces my greater fear that Congress
is taking this type of ad hoc approach.
Although the presumed purpose of S. 503 is to allow a regulatory

cooling-ofi period until Congress can analyze and reauthorize the

Act, in this case for 6 months, I believe S. 503 would actually make
species conservation efforts more costly and inefficient in the long

run. What the Act needs now is a comprehensive examination of

its purpose and mandate, not haphazard attacks on its various pro-

visions.
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The Act's stated purposes are to conserve listed species and the
ecosystems upon which they depend. That is now in the statute. If

Congress still supports these purposes, and I hope certainly that it

does, then I believe Congress should endeavor to understand the
degree to which species and ecosystems in this country are imper-
iled. This is ultimately a scientific question and I agree with Sec-
retary Babbitt that the National Biological Service could very much
help in this endeavor.

S. 503 should be rejected because I believe it avoids the tough
questions, forges no solutions, and makes effective conservation
needlessly more difficult. At first blush, it might appear that a list-

ing moratorium might provide regulatory relief for a program be-
leaguered by many proposed candidate species. However, a listing

moratorium would be an unwise response to a much broader ques-
tion about what the Act should be attempting to accomplish.
What is the moratorium's ultimate purpose? Is it to get the at-

tention of the Administration or the environmental community?
You have our attention. What would happen at the end of the 6
months? Would it just mean that those species that have been
backlogged would now need to be dealt with by the Fish and Wild-
life Service? What would happen in this freeze period to species?

If the issue behind S. 503 is how science is being applied during
the listing process, then Congress should debate this openly. If the
issue is what regulations occur after listing, then Congress should
debate this openly. However, to arbitrarily impose a moratorium on
all listings is not only a blatant attempt to place undue political

pressure on the Act, but I believe also a concession by this Con-
gress that it rejects the present purposes of the Act.

A moratorium on critical habitat designations is also the wrong
response. Whatever its intention, a moratorium on critical habitat
would not eliminate the need to protect habitat, would not make
species conservation anymore efficient or effective. Yet, a morato-
rium on critical habitat would rob the Federal Government of a
major tool in combating the habitat problem. Most noteworthy is

that the Act explicitly allows economic factors to be considered dur-

ing the process of designating critical habitat.

What is our solution? Instead of considering proposals that pos-

sess no identifiable long-term answers. Defenders suggests Con-
gress take a positive, proactive approach to species conservation.

Our recommendations I believe are relatively straightforward and
there are four of them.
The first is to prevent the need for listings. This is one of the

areas Mr. Perry was just talking about. I think what Texas needs
is a regional approach, a more ecosystem-based approach, a big pic-

ture approach to species conservation. I think part of the problem
in Texas, as it has been in California, is that the species-by-species

approach has made people very nervous. I think we need to step

back and really take a look at what we're trying to accomplish and
preventing the need for listings would do that.

The second recommendation is to provide certainty and incen-

tives to private landowners. Interestingly enough, S. 503 is aimed
at farmers and ranchers. I believe this year's reauthorization of the
Farm Bill, and particularly the Conservation Reserve Program,
provides huge opportunities to direct already existing Federal
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funds to purposes that would protect threatened and endangered
species, protect the prevention of erodible soil, protect riparian
areas. I think we can get a lot more bang for the buck than we're
presently getting. Certainly we should be trying to prevent the dis-

incentives that, again, Mr. Perry spoke of just recently.

I think we should expand the role of State and tribal govern-
ments. I think for too long they have not been as full and active
partners in this process as they should.
Last is something that cuts throughout all phases of implementa-

tion of the Act, we need sound science. We need to agree on what
the science is so that we can at least debate on the same page.

S. 503 makes no positive contribution to reauthorization. It does
not address the four items I just talked about. The bill should be
rejected for the bureaucratic confusion, the added cost, and the im-
mense inefficiencies it would create. During reauthorization, I urge
the subcommittee to avoid dwelling on whether to strengthen or
weaken the Act, but to make the Act more effective for humans
and wildlife alike.

Thank you.
Senator Kempthorne. Mr. Snape, thank you very much.
Mr. James Kraft is vice president of the Plum Creek Timber

Company. Welcome.

STATEMENT OF JAMES KRAFT, VICE PRESmENT, PLUM
CREEK TIMBER COMPANY

Mr. Kraft. Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and other members of
the subcommittee. Thank you for the opportunity to testify on S.

503.

As general counsel for Plum Creek, I have been intimately in-

volved with the Endangered Species Act and how it affects private
landowners. We manage approximately 2 million acres of
timberland in Washington, Montana and Idaho, which are home to

numerous listed and candidate species, including the northern
spotted owl, the grizzly bear which isn't extinct, and the bull trout,

to name a few.

Today, the subcommittee has heard from a number of witnesses
discussing the pros and cons of enacting a moratorium on the list-

ing of new species. I would like to take a step back from the ques-
tion of a moratorium and discuss the importance of ESA reform
and the interrelationship between a moratorium and substantive
legislative issues.

First, let me emphasize the obvious. A moratorium is not the ul-

timate reform that most would agree is needed. We at Plum Creek
are concerned that the linkage of a moratorium with congressional

action to reform the Act could actually create a disincentive to ac-

tual reform because the political pressure may be reduced and ulti-

mately reform may never get passed.
Today, Plum Creek manages its lands under the Act as it's writ-

ten. While the ESA has many imperfections, as I think everyone
here has acknowledged, we are trying to make it work on the

ground. I'd like to describe to major examples of what we've been
doing.

In the Spring of 1994, we began working with the Fish and Wild-
life Service, the Forest Service and the Montana Department of

92-533 - 95 - 3
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State Lands to devise a joint program to manage timber resources
and conserve grizzly bears. Just last Thursday, we announced that
a comprehensive agreement in principle had been reached.
The major elements of this agreement include protection of griz-

zly bear travel corridors, limitations on our own commercial timber
harvests and management, protection of streamside areas, and in-

tensive road management. In addition, it provides for ongoing mon-
itoring and research. The agreement covers nearly 370,000 acres of
intermingled ownership in northwest Montana and is based on the
state-of-the-art science.

In addition to our grizzly bear agreement. Plum Creek is working
to complete a multispecies habitat conservation plan that will cover
spotted owls and 17 other species in the 1-90 corridor in the Cas-
cades Region of Washington which if you're familiar with the Presi-

dent's forest plan, is the critical area for habitat conservation.

This HCP includes nearly 170,000 acres owned by Plum Creek
which comprises nearly half of our ownership in the State of Wash-
ington. This agreement, like the grizzly bear agreement, is based
on ecosystem principles and largely is built on the policy statement
that Secretary Babbitt announced earlier, a deal is a deal and
we're hoping that provides us with the certainty and assurance
that we can manage our lands in the future and still provide con-

servation benefits for species.

Projects such as the grizzly bear agreement and our Cascades
Multispecies HCP are really laboratories for everyone to see how
effective and how flexible the Act really is in practice. As we go
through these processes and they still need to be finished for the
HCP and we still need to go through NEPA and other processes for

the grizzly bear, I think we can provide insights to this committee
on how the Act can be reformed so that it works better for both
private landowners and species.

Congress has a unique opportunity this year to make needed re-

forms to the Act. As S. 503 moves forward, we urge you not to lose

sight of the bigger objective. Any moratorium must be carefully

crafted, particularly as it relates to section 7. I know that has been
dropped and we support that. We need to take into consideration

all of the objectives of ESA reform, including ongoing activities like

our two conservation programs that I described earlier so that we
don't preclude or stop species conservation and compliance efforts

that are currently underway.
Mr. Chairman, you have stated your commitment to enact an

ESA bill this year. Plum Creek fully endorses these efforts and I'm

encouraged by I think the consensus I've heard from people on both
sides of the table and from the environmental community to move
forward for ESA reform. We look forward to working with you and
other members of the subcommittee and committee as you begin
consideration of substantive legislation.

Thank you.
Senator Kempthorne. Mr. Kraft, thank you very much. Appre-

ciate your comments.
Mr. Ken Peterson is chairman of the Board of Supervisors of

Kern County, California.
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STATEMENT OF KEN PETERSON, CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS, KERN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Mr. Peterson. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman and mem-
bers of the committee. Thank you for the opportunity to testify

today.
My name is Ken Peterson and I'm chairman of the Board of Su-

pervisors of Kern County, California. I'd Hke to tell you how a well-

intentioned act of Congress is harming our economy and wasting
public resources and why I support a moratorium on the listing of
endangered species. I realize that has been modified. I think any
length of time would give us a breather, even if it is 6 months. I'd

prefer longer.

Kern County is 100 miles north of Los Angeles in the Central
Valley. We're about the size of Massachusetts with a little over
600,000 people. We're one of the Nation's top farm counties and we
are the leading U.S. oil-producing county. Kern County is also

home to 16 threatened or endangered species with another 73 can-
didate species.

Mr. Cnairman, Kern County is the Jurassic Park of the endan-
gered species, an experiment gone terribly wrong. Like the dino-

saurs in the movie, the many creatures protected by the Endan-
gered Species Act are beginning to run things in Kern County. I'd

like to remind the committee that we're the place where 24 armed
Fish and Wildlife agents descended in helicopters on a farmer and
arrested him and his tractor as he cultivated his land. It was zoned
agricultural. His crime was allegedly disking a kangaroo rat. By
the way, thousands of those kangaroo rats are killed daily on our
highways.

I support and preserve America's natural heritage, but it seems
like Kern County and California are bearing a lot of the burden.
ESA listings are being used to dictate private land use and impose
heavy regulatory burdens that are not based on sound science. Few
endangered species are recovering and humans are reeling from
the impact. I'd like to cite a fev,^ examples.
The Fish and Wildlife Service recently listed the southwestern

willow flycatcher as endangered. In Kern County, this bird lives in

a riparian area created when the Corps of Engineers dammed the
Kern River for flood control back in 1954, but now the Wildlife

Service can force the release of water so nesting areas behind the

dam do not flood, even though humans created this habitat in the

first place. If the lake can't rise with the spring runoff, the dam
will become a costly waste. The cost to farmers could reach over

$26 million per year.

I would like to remind this committee that Kern County is a
desert environment; water is our life's blood. Without water stor-

age, we don't have farming in Kern County.
In September, the Service listed the fairy shrimp as endangered.

Governor Wilson indicated that the Environmental Species Act has
reached a new low and I agree with that. This tiny and hardy ani-

mal is essentially a freeze-dried species dormant during long

droughts, then springing to life where there is standing water, even
if its a rut in the street. A 1978 paper by a graduate student
claimed this habitat has shrunk and this was the basis for the list-

ing of shrimp.
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rd like to also mention that if you are a property owner how do
you prove to the Service that there aren't any fairy shrimp on your
land? It's like trying to convince some people that Elvis is really

dead, it's a negative hypothesis and impossible.
According to the Wall Street Journal, it could cost citizens in the

Sacramento area an estimated $500 million in lowered property
value over the next 10 years and I don't see any difference for Kern
County.
The EPA recentlv told California farmers they must stop apply-

ing commonly used chemicals to control crop-eating rodents since
the rodenticide could also affect the San Joaquin fox and the Tipton
kangaroo rat. The California Department of Food and Agriculture
estimates that Kern County farmers alone will lose $73 million
each year if this ruling stands.
A water district had to build a $200,000 lizard fence for those

that have never heard of that before, to keep the endangered leop-

ard lizard out of the canal. We're not sure whether a single lizard

was saved, but that cost had to be tacked onto farmers' expenses.
A plan to treat and recycle oil field wastes on a 20-acre parcel

was held up by the Department of Fish and Game until 380 acres
of habitat were bought at a cost of $300,000. That's a mitigation
ratio of 19 to 1 for every acre used. I've got many, many more ex-

amples, but that's all I have time for.

We can expect more of this because hundreds more species are
in the pipeline. A 1992 out-of-court settlement requires the Depart-
ment of Interior to list some 382 new species, so it must act with-
out adequate scientific evidence or sound recovery plans. I don't

think Congress intended the courts to take such a large role in

shaping the endangered species law. Perhaps the original Act was
not written clearly enough. There are no clearcut scientific stand-
ards, there aren't any deadlines for recovery plans, the Act is prac-

tically silent on the question of economic costs and who should pay
them.

It's been said when you don't know where you're going, any road
will get you there. I don't think the agency really knows where
they're going with this Endangered Species Act. As debate on the
ESA goes forward, I am confident Congress will shape a better Act.

Until that happens, it makes sense to me that Congress should
halt ESA listings and I ask that the committee approve the S. 191
or its derivative.

Thank you very much for your time.

Senator Kempthorne. Thank you.
First, let me compliment all of you for your testimony, both the

written you submitted but also what you discussed here with us
this morning. I have questions I would like to ask of you.

Mr. Wilcove, let me begin with you. It would appear from your
testimony that our efforts have been ineffective in keeping species

from reaching the level where the protections of the ESA are need-
ed. My question is are there any other programs or laws in place

to prevent species from ever getting to the level where they are

candidates for listing?

Mr. Wilcove. I think an excellent example of that would be the
National Forest Management Act which has a provision that na-

tional forests must ensure viable populations of native vertebrates.
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In fact, I think it's fair to say that if the Forest Service, going back
a decade or so, had followed that regulation more, the spotted owl
situation may not have in a sense deteriorated into an endangered
species battle. So we have some. We could use more.
Another example would be on the BLM lands where there is a

policy of protecting viable populations of vertebrates and other spe-

cies. It would be advantageous to see that fleshed out more fully.

Senator Kempthorne. Mr. Gordon, how would you suggest that
we should obtain the data necessary to prevent listings that have
to be later withdrawn because we didn't have enough data at the
time of listing?

Mr. Gordon. I would suggest the most important thing to do
with that regard is address some of the qualifications and criteria

set forth in the law. I think the standard I mentioned, best avail-

able data, needs to be changed. Some other type of language needs
to be substituted that includes such standards as verifiable and
quantitative and sufficient to reach scientific conclusions, and also

some of the criteria for what is eligible for listing needs to be ad-

dressed. For example, I don't think that just because there isn't

some existing Federal regulatory mechanism, that should be a con-

sideration for listing something. The absence of regulatory power
over a species that may otherwise not have an)^hing adverse going
on in its population doesn't justify adding it to the Endangered
Species list.

Senator KEMPTHORNE. Mr. Perry, I appreciated the examples you
used and you referenced the woman named Margaret who I believe

was 78 years old. You said in 1990, the market value was roughly
$1 million on her land and it's now valued at $30,000. Is that ac-

tual? Has a county assessor made that statement?
Mr. Perry. That is correct. That is on the tax rolls of Travis

County today. Those are actual numbers and it is because that

property obviously does not have a value over $30,000. Quite frank-

ly, Ms. Richter said she hasn't found a fool yet who would pay her
$30,000 for it.

Senator Kempthorne. Mr. Snape, you caught my attention when
you referenced the farm bill, you referenced incentives and some-
how we ought to combine the two. Can you give me a little more
information on that. What can we do?
Mr. Snape. I'd be pleased and in fact, the Texas Farm Bureau,

among other Farm Bureaus has been interested in this idea. No
one has made any commitments yet, but there is a lot of interest

on this topic.

Basically, in the last 5 years since the reauthorization of the

1990 farm bill, a little less than $2 billion a year is spent on what
is called the Conservation Reserve Program which is a farm bill

program. There are other related conservation programs under the

farm bill like the Wetland Reserve Program, there's a Forest Stew-

ardship Program under the farm bill as well, but the Conservation

Reserve Program has the most amount of money.
What we have proposed is nothing draconian. It's a purely vol-

untary approach which would be to make threatened and endan-
gered species protection a criteria for receiving CRP money. It's to

provide that incentive for farmers who do want to do the right

thing, who are good stewards of their land, and to receive some
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payments that are already going out to protect habitat. It's an ex-

ample of a win-win approach, so that's my short answer. We have
more information we'd be happy to supply to you.

Senator Kempthorne. Grood. I'd appreciate that.

Mr. Kraft, you're with the Plum Creek Timber Company. You
have done things which I think go beyond what the law requires
you to do. It's been very progressive and innovative. How much ad-
ditional cost is that to the company and does it pencil out for you
but also then by undertaking this, similar to what Mr. Snape has
talked about, do you find that by improvements to the habitat that
may in fact make Plum Creek home to a particular species that
may be endangered, that you lose the use of your land ultimately
because you are now a host?
Mr. Kraft. With respect to your first question, we have commit-

ted at Plum Creek to what we call environmental forestry which
is designed to find a balance between environmental and economic
issues. Certainly in the two conservation agreements that I men-
tioned, if they don't pencil out, if they don't make economic sense,

we won't do them. There needs to be a balance.
I think with respect to the HCP that we've been working on for

over a year, we've had a team of 20 scientists working around the
clock to try to do the ecosystem analyses and so forth and ulti-

mately by the time we're done, we will spend probably a million

dollars putting that together.

At the same time, each owl circle today can include as much as
$20 million worth of timber and does not lead to necessarily good
conservation benefits for the whole ecosystem. So we're trying to

make it a win-win, minimize our costs and find an appropriate bal-

ance.

As to the question of if once you do conservation on your land
and your provide habitat and then let species locate on your prop-
erty, I think we've long recognized that there is a perverse dis-

incentive to doing what we're doing under the Act which I think
we have recommended be changed through the provision of positive

incentives. Certainly, the type of incentive that was just mentioned
is going in the right direction.

With our HCP, part of it is the need for a multispecies approach.
I think once we do one of these, we don't want to have to come
back when the next species, the next and the next is listed. So
what we're trying to do is provide for a balance of habitat rather
than trying to manage species by species.

When you do get to substantive reauthorization language provid-

ing the ability or more assurance that multispecies plans and free

listing agreements, that they actually be respected in the court

should we get challenged legally by whomever, if they will stand
up, that will be very helpful.

Those are some of the specifics and we can provide you with
other ideas that we've had in the past for providing incentives or

other technical language amendments to the Act.

Senator Kempthorne. Mr. Peterson, I will come back with a
question for you after Senator Hutchison has had a round of ques-
tions.

Senator Hutchison. I just have a couple of things. I would like

to ask my Agricultural Commissioner, Rick Perry, a question be-
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cause I think we've talked about some of the potential listings for

Texas that could ripen if we don't have a moratorium before we try

to put some parameters around the regulations. We talked about
the bait fish and the salamander. The jaguar I think is one of the
more interesting potential designations. The jaguar really came I

think through South America and as been seen in Mexico, but
there were rare sightings I think in the 1940's in Texas but noth-
ing since then. Probably a jaguar had wandered over from Mexico
into south Texas from time to time.

If there were a jaguar designation as an endangered species,

would you tell me some of the things that might be restricted on
property and how big an area and what impact that might have on
private property?
Mr. Perry. Senator, there is the possibility, and we have heard

Secretary Babbitt and others talk about the possibilities of what
might or might not happen to species and certainly on our side of

that battle, there are possibilities that restrictions could be placed
on those 40 counties from the standpoint of hunting, which is a
very important economic issue in south Texas in particular obvi-

ously from the impact of that creature's habitat and impacting its

range, livestock movements, the ranching end of it could be im-
pacted.

So there are literally multimillion dollar industries with the
ranching industry which is about a $6.5 billion direct sales indus-

try in the State of Texas of which South Texas is an important
part, and the wildlife industry could be impacted in a very negative

way. So from the economics, it could be staggering to the south
Texas region and quite frankly, a region that has some economic
stress at this particular point in time. Senator.

Senator Hutchison. It would take away the hunting lease poten-

tial to hunt anjrthing at all.

Mr. Perry. It could.

Senator Hutchison. For this animal rarely seen 40 years ago.

Mr. Perry. We haven't seen one since 1948.

Senator Hutchison. I would like to ask Supervisor Peterson a
question. I had the pleasure of being in your county recently and
found that you were the place from which the story came about the

farmer that I had heard about many times. It is one of the worst,

egregious errors I think the Fish and Wildlife has ever made.
I'd like to talk to you about the plant designation. It was men-

tioned here that possibly we would look at plant designations. A
plant designation for instance in a river bed would have an impact
even though it's not on private property, on water use. Also a plant

designation on a military base would possibly curtail the use or the

ability for the military to chop down a tree that might be on a rifle

range.
Would you speak to the issue of the plant designation or the po-

tential for taking that out of this bill?

Mr. Peterson. First of all, I've been very frustrated. There has

been proposed ten new listings in California; three of those are in

Kern County of new plant listings. We find the first thing that the

Wildlife Service and Department of Interior did is announce there

would be no impact to private property and we find that is entirely
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not true. There would be some rather drastic impacts to private
property as a result of this listing.

I think what I'm hearing today, what needs to be stated is the
fact this whole process is faulty in coming to these conclusions. We
had a hearing in Kern County on this issue and I attended and we
asked for a scientific basis for the endangered or threatened status
and these were done by people driving down the road and pointing.

I asked for maps designating areas and they have hundreds of
square of miles, dots. Scientific, they have no basis. They said,

that's why they're having hearings so they can get some scientific

basis.

I really don't think the burden of proof ought to be on the indi-

vidual, the private property owner since there is such an economic
disincentive to these listings. I'm not sure I got to the heart of your
question.

Senator HUTCHISON. You said there would be damage to private
property. Could you describe the things that might happen on pri-

vate property?
Mr. Peterson. I can give you an example of the San Joaquin

wooly thread (Lambertia congdonii). We have a housing area in

Lost Hills that was designed for farm workers, low income, and the
developer of that particular area was stopped because of what we
call a weed. For 3 years now, we have not been able to get that
project. We've written letters, we've asked, what do we need to do
to mitigate this? Will fertilizer help? We can't get the Department
to respond to us so this entire project is stopped 3 years now and
counting.
Senator HUTCHISON. Thank you. I just wanted to get that on the

record.

Did anyone else want to speak to the plant designation?
Mr. Gordon. Yes, I had a couple of comments. One, it was men-

tioned earlier that a large number of the listings to be held up
would be plants. A lot of those are covered by this lawsuit and I

think the Secretary of Interior has expressed some regrets before
that he's driven in this direction. So it would seem to me this

would be one way to alleviate that problem.
Two, there is often an impact on private properties in that the

Endangered Species Act under section 6 encourages States to pass
their own laws which often have higher standards. I think, for ex-

ample, in California, I'm not sure, but if the Federal list includes

a plant, it may automatically go on the State list and on the State

list I believe there is zero incidental take allowed.

Also, I'd like to mention that Secretary Babbitt said generally
when we look for more of these things, we find more. This should
be one of the reasons we should have a problem with the current
process. Every time we list one of these things by accident under
Fish and Wildlife Service's own estimates, it's about $100,000 just

in the paperwork of putting it on and take it off which is peanuts
here in Washington, but to the average taxpayer it's somewhat of

a waste.
As regards Senator Boxer's comments earlier on taxol, I'd like to

mention I think when it was initially discovered, the yew tree pro-

vided this chemical, there was an effort by some elements of the
environmental community to get it listed which may have hindered
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the development of the drug used to treat breast cancer and there
was a conflict between advocates of women's health and advocates
of enforcing the Endangered Species Act.

Mr. Snape, On the settlement in particular, all that settlement
said was that the Fish and Wildlife Service needed to propose those
species for listing and then it would make the determination
whether that species was going to be listed during the normal proc-

ess. In fact, 89 species that were on the original settlement were
eventually found not to be warranted, so all that settlement forced

the Fish and Wildlife Service to do was not to just throw every sin-

gle species into the candidate box but to make a decision one way
or the other. You may disagree with how that works but in terms
of what the settlement does, it has been a bit mischaracterized.
Mr. Kraft. I would like to just say that there are two other ways

even if there is no private land designated as critical habitat or if

the endangered plant or species is found solely on public land, pri-

vate lands are impacted to the extent that there is a Federal nexus
or connection. Anytime you need a Federal permit or there is Fed-
eral funding of some activity such as getting an access easement

,

to private lands, then there is a Federal action that the private

landowner is unable to get to his own property because he can't get

the permit or the access easement from the Federal Government.
Senator Hutchison. This has been very helpful on the plant

issue and thank you for indulging me.
Senator Kempthorne. Certainly. Gk)od question.

May I make this point first. I think one of the significant things

in addition to others that I think has come from this hearing is the

fact that there is now apparently unanimity that we will reform
the Endangered Species Act this year from all quarters. I think
that is significant. You would not have heard that a couple of years
ago.

The other thing I'd like to say is because of the quality of your
comments and your testimony, I would invite you that as we un-
dertake this process of reform of the Endangered Species Act, to

provide me comments, written comments of innovations, of changes
that you think ought to be made to the Act, also those areas you
think should not be changed. Again, based on the quality of what
I've heard from you, I would appreciate that. I think you would
play a helpful role.

Mr. Peterson, you said in your written testimony that the State

placed additional requirements beyond those of the ESA on projects

in Kern Countv. How did the State law interact with the Federal

ESA to cause this to happen?
Mr. Peterson. It works in conjunction and I think the State of

California has adopted a higher standard and actually made the

problem that much more complex. When you're dealing with some-
thing that lacks scientific background, actual hard case proof, I

can't believe some of the studies on the three plants in Kern Coun-
ty, the listing, they had people that drove down the street and
looked and that was their scientific basis for the best available

data.

I think the State is looking to the Federal for help in reforming

this. I think you will find the State of California will follow if they

see this because they are certainly hearing from us.



70

Senator Kempthorne. What would happen then if this passed so
that we did have this moratorium? What would that mean to the
relationship between the State law and the Federal law?
Mr. Peterson, It wouldn't affect the State law but it would cer-

tainly give us a lever to point at and ask our State to also follow
suit. I think it would be a tremendous example.
Senator Kempthorne. Mr. Snape, I think No. 3 on your list of

items was to extend State and tribal authority. How far would you
go? Would you allow the States to have jurisdiction?

Mr. Snape. Yes, I would allow the States to have a lot of jurisdic-
tion. What I find interesting about Mr. Peterson's remarks, and I'm
not familiar with everything that goes on in Kern County, is that
there certainly are a lot of problems but I think the solutions are
much broader than what Mr. Peterson just laid out. I am very en-
thusiastic about the opportunity to make State governments more
active partners in species conservation. I'll give you some examples
of where I think States can really do perhaps even a better job just
given their situation.

Three areas in particular. The first, which they are already sort

of doing but I think it needs to be more explicit and more formal,
is the management of candidate species. I think States should be
given the responsibility to manage for candidate species and, based
upon sound science, hopefully keep those species from becoming
listed. No one is against that objective.

The second thing I think States can do is take over recovery plan
actions. There is no reason why a good State agency can't more ac-

tively participate in actions that will lead to species recovery so you
can take the species off the list. I think that under section 6 of the
Endangered Species Act, States have not been encouraged to do
those tjrpes of actions.

Third, which I think deserves a lot more attention but something
I'll just throw out is that in some instances. States should be given
the authority for incidental take permitting authority. I think you'd
need to have uniform Federal standards, I think you'd need to

make sure that the program put in place actually is conserving spe-

cies, but in many instances, you are talking about the Federal Grov-

emment trying to manage species all over the country and the
State governments sometimes really are in the best position to do
what's best not only for people, but for the wildlife as well.

Senator Kempthorne. Mr. Perry, I understand you have a flight

you must catch. Do you wish to make any final comment?
Mr. Perry. I think we're right up to speed.

Senator Kempthorne. Thank you very much.
Mr. Gordon, in my opening comments, I referenced the bald

eagle, the brown pelican, the peregrine falcon, which we're very
proud of because the World Center for Birds of Prey is there in

Boise, ID. Can you give me any comments about exactly what role

did the Endangered Species Act have in the recovery and the role

other programs like captive breeding and pesticide regulations

played as well?
Mr. GrORDON. I'll just read to you from the current issue of Na-

tional Geographic that states "Because of the eagle's plight spurred
a ban on the metabolism warping pesticide, DDT, other imperiled
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species such as peregrine falcons and brown pelicans have bounced
back as well."

Also, along the lines of that, a recent issue of Audubon Magazine
basically credits the ban on DDT which was independent of and
unrelated to and preceded the Endangered Species Act as being the
primary factor for recovering eagles.

In the case of the Arctic peregrine falcon, when the announce-
ment was made last year that the Fish and Wildlife Service would
delist it, the Fish and Wildlife Service Director again attributed its

primary cause of recovery as the ban on DDT.
So in some of the cases where we have actually seen real suc-

cesses in terms of our wildlife populations that everybody is proud
of and happy to see, I think they are being overly attributed to the
Endangered Species Act rather than other factors.

Senator Kempthorne. Mr. Kraft, you head my question earlier
to Secretary Babbitt as to whether or not an agreement entered
into with the current Secretary of Interior is binding upon future
Secretaries or the Department of Interior. You're an attorney, do
you feel they are binding or does it pose any difficulties for private
owners in the future?

Mr. Kraft. We wouldn't do it if we didn't think it could be bind-
ing. It's never been tested in court. There are certainly those out
there who are going to challenge it and who don't want to see a
solution, who think they can negotiate a better deal. So I guess it

still remains to be negotiated in our particular case and exactly
what sort of assurances we end up getting and how much protec-

tion we have still needs to be determined. I don't think any court
has ever tested it and that is why I urge, as a part of reauthoriza-
tion, that there be specific language as opposed to relying on prin-

ciples of estoppel or administrative law which are indistinct and
certainly a judge could come in and make his own determination.
I think it would be helpful and strengthen the legal authority that
is there to provide for prelisting agreements and issuing incidental

take permits for species that are merely candidates.

Senator Kempthorne. Dr. Wilcove, I noted in your list of popu-
lation sizes included with your written testimony, most of the spe-

cies listed are island species. Aren't island species, for the most
part, limited to a single population by definition?

Mr. Wilcove. No, I don't think that's correct biologically. They
are often restricted to a single island but within that island, they
can be separated into a number of populations based on the topog-

raphy of the island, where the mountaintops and valleys are. It is

true though that you will find a higher proportion of endangered
species on islands than you will on mainlands.
Senator KEMPTHORNE. Mr. Peterson, I was interested in your

comments about the fairy shrimp. This appears to be a species that

is, as you indicated, not easy to inventory because certain condi-

tions have to happen before you're aware they exist. Have privately

financed surveys or data from nonprofessional observers, nonpeer
review data been accepted in the listing of this species?

Mr. Peterson. To my best information, it hasn't been. It's only

been selective biologists who have been able to comment. The paper
that I'm referring to was a graduate student paper.
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We had a situation out in Ridgecrest which is in the eastern end
of our county where we had a sewer pipe exposed and broken and
the flooding of effluent created a moist atmosphere. The people
there were blocked from repair because the fairy shrimp suddenly
appeared and here they had a health hazard that they needed re-

paired but that's how fast they rejuvenate. So it literally is some-
thing you wouldn't know until the moisture is added and they lit-

erally are everywhere.
Senator Kempthorne. Thank you.
Senator Hutchison?
Senator Hutchison. Mr. Chairman, I have no further questions.

I just appreciate your letting me ask questions, particularly the
plant issue was a question I had and the testimony helped me very
much. I thank you for indulging me on that and for letting me par-

ticipate.

Senator Kempthorne. Certainly. Thank you for being a part of

it and for all that you're doing on the issue.

Again, I thank the panel. You were an excellent group of individ-

uals to give us the benefit of your background and your knowledge.
The invitation is there. Please take me up on it to provide me your
thoughts and suggestions for the future with regard to the Endan-
gered Species Act.

With that, this hearing is adjourned.
[Whereupon, at 12:55 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned, to

reconvene at the call of the Chair.]

[Additional statements and material for the record follow:]
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104th congress
1st Session S.191

To amend the Endangered Species Act of 1973 to ensure that constitutionally

protected private property rights are not infringed until adequate protec-

tion is afforded by reauthorization of the Act, to protect against economic

losses from critical habitat designation, and for other purposes.

IN THE SENATE OF THE UNITED STATES

January 11 (legislative day, January 10), 1995

Mrs. Hutchison (for herself, Mr. Lott, Mr. Gramm, Mr. Grassley, and

Mr. XlCKLES) introduced the following bill; which was read twee and re-

ferred to the Committee on Environment and Public Works

A BILL
To amend the Endangered Species Act of 1973 to ensure

that constitutional!}^ protected private property rights are

not infringed until adequate protection is afforded by

reauthorization of the Act, to protect against economic

losses from critical habitat designation, and for other

purposes.

1 Be it enacted hy the Senate and House of Representa-

2 tives of the United States ofAmerica in Congress assembled,

3 SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE.

4 This Act may be cited as the "Farm, Ranch, and

5 Homestead Protection Act of 1995".
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2

1 SEC. 2. MORATORIUM ON DETERMINATION OF ENDAN-

2 GERED SPECIES AND THREATENED SPECIES

3 AND DESIGNATION OF CRITICAL HABITAT.

4 Section 4(a) of the Endangered Species Act of 1973

5 (16 U.S.C. 1533(a)) is amended by adding at the end the

6 following:

7 "(4) Moratorium.—Notwithstanding para-

8 graphs (1) and (3), during the period beginning on

9 the date of enactment of this paragraph and ending

10 on the effective date of the first subsequent reau-

1

1

thorization of this Act, the Secretary may not

—

12 "(A) determine that a species is an endan-

13 gered species or a threatened species under

14 paragraph (1); or

15 "(B) designate habitat of a species to be

16 critical habitat under paragraph (3).".

1

7

SEC. 3. AGENCY ACTIONS.

18 Section 7(a) of the Endangered Species Act of 1973

19 (16 U.S.C. 1536(a)) is amended by adding at the end the

20 following:

21 "(5) Moratorium.—Notwithstanding para-

22 graphs (1) through (4), during the period beginning

23 on the date of enactment of this paragraph and end-

24 ing on the effective date of the first subsequent re-

25 authorization of this Act, a Federal agency shall not

•S 191 IS
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3

1 be required to comply with paragraphs (1) through

2 (4).".

O

•S 191 IS
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104TII CONGRESS
1st Session S.503

To amend the Endang^ered Species Act of 1973 to impose a moratorium

on the listing of species as endang^ered or threatened and the desigrnation

of critical habitat in order to ensure that constitutionally protected pri-

vate property rights are not infringed, and for other purposes.

IN THE SENATE OF THE UNITED STATES

March 6, 1995

Mrs. Hutchison introduced the following bill; which was read twice and

referred to the Committee on Environment and Public Works

A BILL
To amend the Endangered Species Act of 1973 to impose

a moratorium on the Usting of species as endangered

or threatened and the designation of critical habitat in

order to ensure that constitutional^ protected private

property rights are not infringed, and for other purposes.

1 Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-

2 tives of the United States ofAmerica in Congress assembled,

3 SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE.

4 This Act may be cited as the "Endangered Species

5 Listing Moratorium Act of 1 995"

.
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2

1 SEC. 2. MORATORIUM ON DETERMINATION OF ENDAN-

2 GERED SPECIES AND THREATENED SPECIES

3 AND DESIGNATION OF CRITICAL HABITAT.

4 Section 4(a) of the Endangered Species Act of 1973

5 (16 U.S.C. 1533(a)) is amended by adding at the end the

6 following:

7 "(4) Moratorium.—Notwithstanding para-

8 graphs (1) and (3), during the period beginning on

9 March 7, 1995, and ending on September 7, 1995,

10 the Secretary may not

—

11 "(A) determine that a species is an endan-

12 gered species or a threatened species under

13 paragraph (1); or

14 "(B) designate habitat of a species to be

15 critical habitat under paragraph (3).".

O

•S 503 IS
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Statement of Hon. Kay Bailey Hutchison, U.S. Senator from the State of
Texas

listing moratorium for endangered species

Mr. Chairman, thank you very much for inviting me to appear here today. As you
are aware, the Endangered Species Act has become a substantial source of conflict

between people, employers, local and State governments, and the Fish and Wildlife

Service.

It is time to reauthorize the Act and to reexamine the Congress' intentions in pro-

tecting species. The Environment and Public Works Committee held hearings on the

Act last year, but did not report a reauthorization bill. It is my understanding that

hearings will begin again soon under Chairman Chafee and Subcommittee Chair-

man Kempthome's leadership.

I am pleased that Secretary Babbitt has now joined my call for a legislative over-

haul of the Endangered Species Act. I'm willing to listen to his suggestions. He is

correct that small landowners should not bear the burden of protecting species. But

neither should ranchers and farmers—endangered species protection is a worth-

while goal for society, and society at large, not just the men and women who
produce our food and clothing, must fairly share the burden and the cost of species

protection.

Reauthorization of the Act is made more difficult by the heated public debate over

individual listings of species and by overly zealous enforcement of the Act by the

Fish and Wildlife Service. To make a responsible debate over reauthorization pos-

sible, it's time to call a "time-out" on further listings.

In January, I introduced a bill to put a moratorium on further listings of threat-

ened and endangered species and on designation of critical habitat until reauthor-

ization can be completed. Senators Lott, Bums, Cochran, Gramm, Grassley, Inhofe,

Kyi, Nickles, Pressler, and Bond are co-sponsors. In trjdng to meet the concerns of

members of this committee, yesterday I introduced an alternative version that limits

the moratorium to 6 months from today, and omits the moratorium on the consulta-

tion mandate.

The Federal Government will only be able to protect species under the Act with

proper direction from Congress and with full support of the public. By restricting

land and water use through additional listings, the Fish and Wildlife Service is un-

dermining public support for the Act and is actually harming the cause of protecting

species from extinction. My bill will permit reauthorization debate to go forward

without further unconstitutional erosion of private property rights or further dam-

age to the economy and society of affected areas.

Right now the Fish and Wildlife Service is proposing to list a species in the Pan-

handle of Texas—the Arkansas River Shiner—that has been used for fish bait.

The listing of the Arkansas River Shiner as an endangered species in Texas, Okla-

homa, and Kansas is not necessary; there is a Shiner population in the Pecos River

of New Mexico that is not at risk, and others may be established. With separate

populations, the Shiner is not in danger of extinction. Its listing would subject

ground water (including the Ogalalla Aquifer) and surface water in the Texas Pan-

handle, Oklahoma, and Kansas to control by the Fish and Wildlife Service.

Listing the Shiner could have a profound impact on the Panhandle's surface and

ground water supply. Water from the Ogallala Aquifer serves the citizens of Ama-
rillo and the surrounding areas. If the Shiner is listed, use of the Aquifer could be

cut back, causing severe difficvilties to the region's agricultural economy. Similarly,

use of surface water is essential to the farming communities surrounding Amarillo

and Lubbock; limitations on surface water use also could harm their economies.

I
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Water is scarce in the Panhandle; we can't afford to give fish bait more protection

than people. But if the Shiner is listed, it will have more right to the water than
the Panhandle farmers and ranchers and the people of Amarillo.

My bill also puts a moratorium on the designation of critical habitat so that prop-

erty owners won't lose control of their land. Designating critical habitat puts urgust

limits on the use, market value, and transferability of property. The stigma of criti-

cal habitat protection should not be imposed by a government that claims to protect

property as a Constitutional right.

Last year, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service which enforces the Endangered Spe-

cies Act, proposed that up to 800,000 acres from 33 Texas counties be considered

for designation as critical habitat for the Golden-Cheeked Warbler. This action held

up land transfers, construction, and home and business lending.

It also made other environmental problems worse. Landowners couldn't get per-

mits to cut and clear Juniper trees, which are known as cedar in Texas, even if the

trees were on rangeland rather than in the creeks where the Warbler lives. But
these cedars use tremendous amounts of water—the same water that could recharge

the Edwards Aquifer and protect the Fountain Darter and four other endangered

species that live in two springs that flow from the Edwards Aquifer.

Stopping cedar clearing also increased pollen discharges—what's known in the

Hill Country as "cedar fever." Every November, the cedar trees' pollen is dispersed.

They send up clouds of dusty pollen that looks like smoke. Thousands of people in

Central Texas are allergic to the pollen, and lose work days from headaches, fevers,

and nasal congestion. Cedar control is necessary not just for land use, but for public

health, too.

After public outcry forced the Interior Department to drop its plan to consider

800,000 acres in Texas for critical habitat designation, the Texas and Southwestern

Cattle Raisers Association released a study of the impact of endangered species con-

cerns on property values in Texas.

The study found that over the last 5 years, the 33 counties most affected by en-

dangered species (with 20 listed species present) lost $5 billion in rural land value,

while the State as a whole lost $23 billion in rural land value. The loss in value

in the 33 counties accounted for 22 percent of the State loss in land value. However,

such counties only have 13 percent of the State's land.

Land values in all Texas counties were affected by interest rates, grain and live-

stock prices, and other factors, in addition to endangered species. But the fact that

the loss in land value in the 33 affected counties exceeded the average loss in value

for the rest of the State is an objective measure of the impact of endangered species

listings on rural land.

The failure of the critical habitat designation plan didn't stop the Fish and Wild-

life Service from trjdng; it proposed a habitat conservation plan for Travis County

that would have permitted owners of single-family residential lots to pay $1,500 to

apply for a permit to construct a home. Higher fees would have applied for develop-

ment by the acre.

The Fish and Wildlife Service thought that this was a good deal because it was

less expensive than the legsd fees land owners were incurring in fighting for their

property rights. But what they were really doing was "holding up" people who
bought a lot to build a home on by ransoming their Constitutional rights.

It's no surprise that in the Texas and Southwestern Cattle Raisers Association

study, rural land values dropped more in Travis County than in any other Texas

County—$1.3 billion in the past 5 years. The Fish and Wildlife Service counts 9 en-

dangered species in Travis County, and is proposing to list the Barton Springs Sala-

mander, to round it off at 10.

I'm pleased to see that Secretary Babbitt stated yesterday that "small landowners

should be exempted from conservation burdens on the basis of fairness and biology.
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Most species won't survive on small tracts of land and it's not fair to tie up small

landowners." I hope that means we won't see the Interior Department extorting

funds in Travis County anymore.

With about 300 candidate species in Texas, including 11 flies and 12 beetles, land-

owners in my State may face problems similar to the Golden-Cheeked Warbler prob-

lem again if new species are listed. A moratorium will stop these species from being

listed until after the Congress enacts new listing standards. No further losses of

property rights or control of water supplies should occur until Congress can put

common sense back into species conservation.

Major changes need to be made to the Endangered Species Act:

First, the Act must require that economic and social impacts be addressed. Under

a new Endangered Species Act, a two-step process is needed. Listing a species could

be based solely on biological data, but before any restrictions on land use or regula-

tions are put into affect, their impact on the local economy must be considered

under a cost/benefit analysis. Sound environmental policy must preserve the deli-

cate balance between preserving natural resources and encouraging economic

growth to maintain public support for protection of species, and to create sufficient

wealth to fund conservation efforts.

Second, the existence of populations in other locations must be taken into account.

Our recent Congressional elections were a call for a return to common-sense in law-

making. I can't think of a clearer example of common-sense than putting drinking

water for people ahead of giving water rights to fish that aren't in danger of extinc-

tion.

To ask the citizens of the Texas Panhandle to reduce water for the benefit of a

minnow that is not in danger in an adjacent State is ridiculous. Americans are will-

ing to make sacrifices to aid the bald eagle and the grizzly bear, but will not and

should not be deprived of water for the benefit of minnows that aren't endangered.

Third, if avoiding extinction is truly the intention of those who argue for more

species protection, then the establishment of refuges must be permitted and encour-

aged. We have millions of acres of government land in national parks, national for-

ests, national wildlife refuges, national monuments, and elsewhere. Whenever pos-

sible, we should encourage development of endangered species populations on Fed-

eral Government land. We should also encourage fully voluntary conservation meas-

ures and private wildlife refuges with tax incentives, such as deductions for donated

land. Instead of ignoring opportunities to conserve species in refuges, we should en-

courage the creation of refuges—such as those created by the Nature Conservancy

with private funds and Federal assistance—and count such refuges among the habi-

tat available to species.

Fourth, the Act must provide that species "habitat modification," such as with-

drawing water from an aquifer, is not a "taking" of an endangered species. When
Congress passed the Act, it intended to stop intentional harms; it did not intend to

legislate droughts for cities and farms.

Finsdly, in addition to these common sense reforms, a critical element of reauthor-

ization is the enforcement of the Constitutional protection of the Fifth Amendment.

The Fifth Amendment provides that private property may not be taken without just

compensation. For too long the Federal Government has ignored this right by put-

ting more and more onerous restrictions on land use, while avoiding compensation

by leaving the landowner with a worthless title certificate. We must stop taking

property rights through new listings until we have the opportunity to give the Fish

and Wildhfe Service listing criteria that take economic and social concerns into ac-

count.

Property owners should not have to fight the government to build a new home

on their land, or hire lawyers to convince bureaucrats that their farming is in com-

pliance with regulations. Farmers in my State or yours should not live in fear of
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being treated like the farmer in California who was arrested in a government raid

for allegedly harming a kangaroo rat while he was plowing his field—a rat that is

an endangered species for one reason—its feet are one-one hundredth longer than

other, similar species that aren't endangered. Instead of seizing land and arresting

farmers, we should encourage private landowners to protect species and their habi-

tat with incentives rather than punish them with loss of use of their land.

I am discouraged to hear that some people may be planning to cast the endan-

gered species debate as an effort to help only large landowners. I don't need to talk

about Constitutional rights to tell you how wrong that is. In Texas, 3,000 people

turned out to talk about critical habitat designation in towns where no more than

1,000 people live. That's not the turnout you get for an issue that only affects the

rich. Rick Perry, our Texas Agriculture Commissioner, has heard from thousands of

farmers about the affect of the Endangered Species Act on farmers. He is here today

and can tell you what it means on a local level for the people who produce the raw
materials for our food and clothing.

In sum, Mr. Chairman, the 20 years of listings have achieved the primary goal

of protecting essential species from extinction—we now have more than 900 species

listed. The Fish and Wildlife Service has had adequate time to carry out its primary

responsibilities under the Act. It has over-zealously enforced the Act by expanding

the definition of a harm beyond Congress' intent, listing species without regard to

water supplies necessary for the health and safety of the people, and proposing

habitat without taking economic concerns into account until it was politically forced

to do so.

Congress, with its legislative and oversight powers, delegates enforcement author-

ity to administrative agencies. When the agencies lose sight of Congress's inten-

tions—and lose their common sense—only Congress and the President can set them
straight. Now is the time for Congress to review their actions and exercise its legis-

lative power to revise their instructions. Let's call a time-out on listings until we
can put endangered species protection back on track.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Statement of Hon. Bruce Babbitt, Secretary of the Interior

Mr. Chairman, thank you for inviting me to appear before the new Subcommittee

on Drinking Water, Fisheries and Wildlife to discuss legislation which would impose

a moratorium on listing and consultation under the Endangered Species Act. I look

forward to working with you and the other members of the subcommittee to con-

serve the Nation's fish and wildlife heritage.

The Endangered Species Act is one of the most innovative, wide-reaching, and im-

portant environmental law that has been passed in recent times. This hearing sig-

nals the start of a debate over whether to authorize continued spending on threat-

ened and endangered species. During this debate, the members of this body of the

Congress will decide whether the commitment to threatened and endangered species

is worth keeping. This body of the Congress will play an integral role in deciding

the fate of the Endangered Species Act.

That is why the Department of the Interior looks forward to this debate and the

opportunities to work with this subcommittee in reviewing those problems and how

they might best be solved. To this end, I am pleased to share with the subcommittee

this morning a 10-point package of improvements to the Endangered Species Act

which the Department has just announced that incorporates important administra-

tive policy changes we have already made under the existing law in the past 2 years

and identifies additional areas that could be addressed through regulatory or con-

gressional action.
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Mr. Chairman, it is hard to ignore the social and economic environment in which

the Congress will consider the Endangered Species Act. Our workforce is changing,

demanding higher skills at the very time our public education system is being chal-

lenged. We face pressing problems about health care costs and other competing eco-

nomic needs, particularly at the local level. Our demand on our natural resources

is increasing just at the time when those resources are being stretched to the limit.

We need to be careful that in our search for solutions to our problems that we
do not settle for short-term fixes, especially where they cause even more problems.

It is also important that we not scapegoat. The Endangered Species Act has been

blamed for everjrthing from homelessness to trade deficits. It is important to prop-

erly assign culpability. The Endangered Species Act did not cause the stresses that

we have placed on some of our fragile ecosystems. It is only when those ecosystems

begin to fail that we find loss of habitat and threats to the very survival of species.

The need to manage our resources wisely has always been there—for the benefit of

all human beings who rely on the functions they provide. The Endangered Species

Act is a warning light. When one species in an ecosystem's web of life starts to die

out, all species may be in peril. That includes us.

Mr. Chairman, we have strived to implement the Endangered Species Act in a

manner to help resolve or avoid conflicts between the needs of a species threatened

with extinction and the needs of our society. Despite the negative publicity about

a few cases, I believe the Endangered Species Act works. I believe the examples of

problems and conflicts associated with endangered species are rare given the num-
ber of species that are currently listed as threatened or endangered in this country.

We must find ways to resolve and prevent these problems and we are doing that.

In the Pacific Northwest, for example, we launched a number of initiatives to re-

store the ecosystem, while minimizing the Act's immediate impact on people and

their livelihoods. The Administration has developed a Forest Plan which will pre-

serve the northern spotted owl and support the timber communities in the Pacific

Northwest by providing a truly sustainable, long-term flow of timber from Federal

lands. That plan will help prevent other species from declining to the point where

they will need protection of the Act.

The Departments of the Interior and Commerce have joined with other Federal

agencies to help prevent species from becoming threatened 'or endangered. For ex-

ample, the Forest Service and the Fish and Wildlife Service recently entered into

a cooperative agreement to protect a rare species of salamander by stabilizing and

protecting its populations in a national forest so that it did not have to be listed

as threatened or endangered.

We have entered into three cooperative agreements with private timber compa-

nies to protect the red-cockaded woodpecker in the southeastern United States. Be-

cause these cooperative agreements benefit both the woodpecker and the timber

companies, four other companies are in the initial stages of negotiating similar

agreements with the department involving three additional States. The Fish and

Wildlife Service is also working on six habitat conservation plans in five Southeast-

ern States involving both industrial and non-industrial forest lands to provide addi-

tional protection to the red-cockaded woodpecker.

The Endangered Species Act has been responsible for improving populations of de-

clining species throughout the United States and has been the focus of international

conservation efforts. American alligators, the Pacific gray whale, Arctic peregrine

falcons, and brown pelicans no longer The bald eagle, peregrine falcon, grizzly bear,

eastern timber wolf, whooping crane, black-footed ferret, Columbian white-tailed

deer, and greenback cutthroat trout have been recovered fi-om the brink of extinc-

tion and are approaching recovery. California condors, gray wolves, and red wolves

have been returned to the wild and are improving dramatically. Each of these spe-
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cies is important in its own right and critical to the survival of its own ecosystem.

Collectively, their presence and their diversity enriches all our lives.

Despite these accomplishments, I am well aware of the controversy that sxir-

rounds this Act and of the honest desires of many to engage in a debate about

whether the Act should be changed to address problems that have arisen since it

was last authorized. But I believe our country needs to maintain its commitment

to conserve imperiled species for the benefit of future generations as well as our

own. Although our country has made considerable progress with endangered species

conservation over the past 20 years, our task is not complete. To ensure that threat-

ened and endangered species are protected and recovered, the Endangered Species

Act needs to remain the strong, effective conservation tool that is has been since

became the law of the land.

S. 191 is the wrong approach

Mr. Chairman, I want to address myself to the subject of this morning's hearing,

S. 191. This legislation would stop in their tracks the listing and the consultation

processes under the Endangered Species Act. Unlike most moratorium, which have

a finite term, this legislation would bring the Act to a screeching halt until some

indefinite time in the future when the Act itself may be reauthorized.

S. 191 is simply the wrong approach. It tries to apply a one-size-fits-all solution

to complex issues. If Congress believes that the Act needs to be changed, then we
should debate the problems and the alternatives to solve those problems. We should

not abdicate our responsibilities by largely repealing the Act or putting it on hold

indefinitely. Even worse, putting the Act on hold creates rather than solves prob-

lems.

S. 191 would suspend all listings determinations until the Act is reauthorized.

This means that no species could be listed, no matter how endangered it became

and no matter how certain that the species might become extinct. Species don't stop

declining when we stop listing. We would simply be putting off a problem that will

grow by our inaction. A moratorium cannot be placed on endangerment.

In fact, species could easily become extinct during this unknown period of time.

Certainly the condition of some, perhaps many, species will deteriorate, leaving us

with the likelihood of species that might have been listed as threatened, for which

a special nile could be developed to limit impact on landowners, but instead will

have to be listed as endangered, precluding such a favorable option. This approach

limits future options and makes the likelihood of recovery more uncertain and likely

more expensive. This is hardly the direction we want to go and hardly the best re-

sult for either the species or those who will be impacted by the ultimate listing deci-

sion.

S. 191 would also make it impossible for the Department to carry out its respon-

sibilities under the terms of two major settlement agreements agreed to by the Bush

Administration. These agreements set judicially enforceable timeframes for publish-

ing proposed rules to list certain high-priority candidate species.

More importantly, the listing ban would exacerbate existing problems. We need

only reflect on those two settlement agreements to demonstrate this. Part of the rea-

son we are under court order to list about 100 species this year are the self-imposed

listing slow-downs by the Department in 1981 and 1988.

The bill would also ban indefinitely the designation of critical habitat. Again, a

ban will not keep critical habitat from being degraded or destroyed, further imperil-

ing species. Furthermore, if the thinking behind the legislation is that we must slow

down designations to more properly consider all factors, the Act already provides for

the consideration of economic factors in designating critical habitat, and we are

doing so.

We are also concerned about the risk that some landowners might take actions

harmful to species in anticipation of a listing that might follow. This would espe-
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cially be true if the condition of many species actually deteriorated, as I have sug-

gested, merely because of the ban.

Perhaps even worse than the ban on listings under section 4 of the Act is the pro-

posal in S. 191 prohibiting indefinitely the consultation process under section 7 of

the Act. This proposal would relieve Federal agencies of their responsibilities under

the Act to conserve species, consult with wildlife agencies, and avoid jeopardizing

the existence of listed species. This is particularly alarming because it would not

only expose all threatened and endangered species to the risk of extinction, but

would represent a substantial retreat from the progress we have made to date in

the recovery of a large number of listed species. Also, federally authorized, funded,

or undertaken activities that would incidentally take an endangered or threatened

species would come to a halt because consultation is required to comply with section

9 of the Act. Therefore, the effect of a moratorium on section 7 activities would re-

sult in an indefinite delay in the issuance of Federal permits and licenses, the con-

struction of new Federal projects, and a myriad of other Federal activities that are

important to citizens throughout the country.

Proposals as sweeping as S. 191 seem to lead to unintended consequences. They

tend to sweep up situations never contemplated by their advocates and potentially

harm the very people they are designed to help. We must instead seek improve-

ments to the Act with open, creative, and innovative minds.

A better approach

If S. 191 is the wrong approach, you have the right to ask me what is the right

approach. First, I would emphasize again that we have already made dramatic im-

provements in the implementation of the Act. We have committed to making the Act

more effective and more efficient without creating the controversy that has sur-

rounded this important legislation since its inception. In the process, we have iden-

tified previously unexplored opportunities already contained in the Endangered Spe-

cies Act and have used them to resolve issues that have seemed intractable in the

past. At the same time, we have also examined approaches that have been used be-

fore to develop innovative solutions to endangered species recovery in cooperation

with private citizens. While doing so, we have discovered that the Endangered Spe-

cies Act provides a wide array of tools to resolve or avoid the apparent conflict be-

tween the needs of species threatened with extinction and the needs of our society.

We have also discovered that examples of successful Federal and private cooperation

to protect threatened and endangered species are more abundant than most people

probably would associate with the Endangered Species Act.

But we agree that more needs to be done. We have developed ten principles to

guide the Administration's effort for reforming and implementing the Endangered

Species Act. These policies address some of the persistent criticisms associated with

the way the Endangered Species Act is implemented and will continue my commit-

ment to avoid the conflicts that have surrounded the Federal Government's at-

tempts to protect threatened and endangered species over the past several years.

These policies will minimize the impact of the Act on private landowners, particu-

larly small landowners and provide them with more certainty on how they can com-

ply with the Endangered Species Act when a species is listed. These policies propose

new partnerships with State, tribal, and local governments. These policies address

concerns about the quality of the science that is used when implementing the En-

dangered Species Act. Finally, these policies will improve the process of recovering

threatened and endangered species and will enlist the participation of a broader

array of individuals to help develop these recovery plans.

They are as follows:

1. Base Endangered Species Act decisions on sound and objective science.

2. Minimize social and economic impacts.

3. Provide quick, responsive answers and certainty to landowners.



85

4. Treat landowners fairly and with consideration.

5. Create incentives for landowners to conserve species.

6. Make effective use of limited public and private resources by focusing on groups

of species dependent on the same habitat.

7. Prevent species from becoming endangered or threatened.

8. Promptly recover and de-list threatened and endangered species.

9. Promote efficiency and consistency.

10. Provide State, tribal, and local governments with opportunities to play a greater

role in carrying out the Endangered Species Act.

I'll briefly summarize our principles under several broad themes.

Minimize impacts on landowners

First, our principles identify administrative measures and legislative concepts to

minimize impacts on landowners. We believe that the Act must be carried out in

a manner that avoids unnecessary social and economic impacts upon private prop-

erty and minimizes those impacts that cannot be avoided. One method is our policy

directive that requires recovery planning to minimize these impacts and will involve

stakeholders in developing and implementing recovery efforts to make sure that

goal is achieved. Another is to address the concern of many, especially small land-

owners, regarding their uncertainty over the impact of listing on their activities,

such as clearing vegetation or selling a small homesite. Our policy directs, at the

time of listing, the identification of all known activities that are exempt from or that

will not be affected by the Act's prohibitions against the take of a listed species.

These policies will augment our "no surprises" policy whereby landowners who de-

velop an approved habitat conservation plan will not be subject to later demands
for larger land or financial commitment if the plan is adhered to—even of the needs

of a species covered by the plan increases over time.

The Congress could extend these proposals and provide even greater certainty to

landowners who develop approved habitat conservation plans that protect non-listed

as well as listed species. If they undertake actions under the plan which protect can-

didate species or habitat, the landowners would be able to engage in land use activi-

ties even if the candidate species or some other species dependent on that habitat

are subsequently listed. This would provide certainty for multi-species planning and

would greatly aid landowners concerned that their good deeds could be undermined

by a new listing.

Furthermore, we believe that the Act must be administered in a manner that

assures fair and considerate treatment for those whose land is affected by its pro-

grams. One way is to assure that Federal agencies fully meet their responsibilities

for conserving species in order to reduce impacts to private lands. We believe that

the section 7 moratorium in S. 191 would take us in the opposite direction.

We also will propose regulations that will allow land use activities by small land-

owners and landowners whose activities have only a negligible adverse effect on the

likelihood of the survival or recovery of a threatened species. Specifically, we pro-

pose that activities on land occupied by a single household and being used solely

for residential purposes, activities that affect five acres of land or less, or activities

having a negligible effect would be allowed. The Department would issue a special

rule to regulate activities if the cumulative adverse effect was significant.

The Congress could extend this flexibility to activities having negligible adverse

effect on endangered species as well.

The Act ciurently provides opportunities for minimizing impacts on larger land-

owners as well. The Department has also published several special rules (called

"4(d) rules" after the section that authorizes them), which allows development of pri-

vate lands to proceed while protecting threatened species. This is a tool which dem-

onstrates flexibility in the Act. A recent example is our proposed 4(d) rule for the

States of Washington and California which will generally exempt landowners with
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less than 80 acres of forest land from the Act's prohibitions on incidental take of

spotted owls.

Finally, with respect to all landowners, we are proposing the use of incentives to

encourage them to protect and conserve species on their land. Many landowners are

currently reluctant to manage their lands in ways that benefit listed species because

they are concerned that any subsequent reduction in quality or quantity of any im-

proved habitat would be subject to the "take" prohibitions of the Act. An excellent

example of our efforts in this regard is the proposed habitat conservation plan for

the Sandhills Area of North Carolina which we announced just last week. This

unique proposal would provide landowners who volunteer to improve the habitat for

the endangered red-cockaded woodpecker on their land with an ironclad guarantee

that they will not be subject to the Act's prohibitions in the future if they succeed

in attracting the bird to their land.

Enhance relationship with States, tribes and local governments

Mr. Chairman, the Federal Government cannot implement the Endangered Spe-

cies Act alone. In addition to private citizens, we will need the help and cooperation

of the States, tribes, and local governments. That is why our package identifies

ways in which the Congress could establish a new Federal-State relationship to

achieve the goal's of the Act. We believe that building new partnerships and

strengthening existing ones with State, tribal, and local governments is essential to

achieving the goals of the Endangered Species Act. While we have issued policy di-

rectives to enhance the participation of State fish and wildlife agencies in implemen-

tation of the Act, for example, the Congress could provide the States with opportuni-

ties and incentives to retain jurisdiction over management of a threatened or endan-

gered species in their jurisdiction. Specifically, if a State entered into a conservation

agreement with Federal agencies that would remove the threats to a species and

promote its recovery in that State, the consequences of the listing of that species

could be suspended in that State.

Congress could also provide States the opportunity to assume the lead for develop-

ing recovery plans and to assume responsibility for issuing permits under section

10 of the Act for areas within the State included in a approved recovery plan or

for which there is an approved comprehensive, habitat-based State program.

Our package also directs that State expertise and information be used in the list-

ing, consultation, recovery, and conservation planning processes. We recognize that

States have substantial expertise concerning species within their jurisdiction and we
have identified a process which Congress could establish to give special consider-

ation to this State expertise.

Our package also points out that the Congress could stimulate more effective co-

operation with State, local and tribal governments by providing the exemption in

section 201 of S. 1 fi"om the Federal Advisory Committee Act for cooperative actions

between those governments and Federal agencies in csirrying out the Endangered

Species Act through the.

Base Decisions on Sound and Objective Science

Much has been said about the quality of decisions made under the Act and wheth-

er they have always been objective or based on the best scientific information. Our
program will toughen the standards for listing; require scientific peer review for

both listing and recovery; and enhance the State role in listing and critical habitat

decisions.

I also hasten to add that the listing problem is overstated. Our review of actions

on listing petitions revealed that for 1990-1994, the Fish and Wildlife Service re-

jected 68 percent of the petitions either at the 90-day or 12-month stage in the proc-

ess. We believe that this demonstrates the care with which we are examining peti-

tions to list. Moreover, we are increasingly looking for other ways to provide the
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necessary protection for a declining species and their habitat to foreclose the need

for listing. A recent example of this is the Alexander Archipelago wolf, a species that

occurs almost exclusively in Alaska on Federal land. We were able to make a not-

warranted finding based largely on commitments by the Forest Service to provide

for the conservation of the species in the management of their lands.

Improve Recovery of Species

Finally, our package addresses the goal of the Act to bring species back to the

point at which they will no longer require the Act's protection. We propose that all

stakeholders be provided the opportunity to participate in the development and im-

plementation of the recovery plan. Additionally, recovery could be enhanced by Con-

gress requiring that designations of critical habitat occur concurrently with recovery

plan approval, rather than at the time of listing. This would assure that only one

decision on measures needed for recovery, not two, would be required and that af-

fected parties would be involved in the decision. This would be made even more
meaningful if the appropriate State and Federal agencies were required to develop

agreements to implement recovery plans and those agreements were legally binding

and incorporated into the recovery plan.

Conclusion

This is a brief summary of the major points in our 10-point plan. We are commit-

ted—and have demonstrated our commitment—to making the Endangered species

Act work better for species and for landowners. We stand ready and willing to work
with the committee to address problems with the Act. Although a moratorium may
seem like a quick, easy fix, it is not a substitute for addressing the real problems.

Furthermore, we believe that it will actually worsen those problems.

Mr. Chairman, we have demonstrated with our 10-point plan a willingness to step

to the plate and get to work. We look forward to assisting the committee in its reau-

thorization efforts and again, I thank you for the opportunity to be here this morn-

ing.
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PROTECTING AMERICA'S LIVING HE3UTAGE:
A FAIR, COOPERATIVE AND SCIENTIFICALLY SOUND APPROACH

TO IMPROVING THE ENDANGERED SPECIES ACT

INTRODUCTION

The Clinton Administration is announcing a package of improvements to carry out the

Endangered Species Act (ESA) in a £air, efficient and scientifically sound manner. These

improvements build on the existing law to provide effective conservation of threatened and

endangered species and fairness to people through iimovative, cooperative, and comprehensive

approaches.

The Administration believes that this nation needs to maintain its commitment to conserve

imperiled species for the benefit of future generations as well as our own. The Endangered

Species Act is a landmark environmental law enacted 20 years ago to preserve the ecosystems

upon which endangered and threatened species and people dq>end. The law has been responsible

for improving populations of declining species throughout the United States and has served as

a model for international conservation efforts. The bald eagle, grizzly bear, and Aleutian

Canada goose have been recovered from the brink of extinction and are approaching recovery.

California condors and red wolves have been returned to the wild and are improving

dramatically. American alligators, Arctic per^rine falcons, gray whales, and brown pelicans

no longer need the Act's protection and have been removed from the list of threatened and

endangered species. Overall, nearly 40 percent of the plants and animals protected under the

Endangered Species Act are now stable or improving as a direct result of recovery efforts.

Although this nation has made considerable progress with endangered species conservation over

the past twenty years, the task is not complete. To ensure that threatened and endangered

species are protected and recovered, the Administration believes that the ESA needs to remain

a strong, effective conservation tool.

At the same time, the Administration recognizes that implementation of the ESA should be

improved by building stronger partnerships with States, local governments, private industry, and

individuals; by exercising greater administrative flexibility to minimize socio-economic effects

and assure fair treatment for landowners; and by reducing delay and uncertainty for States, local

governments, private industry, and individuals.

The ESA provides a number of mechanisms—seldom used in the past—to resolve or avoid

apparent conflicts between the needs of ^)ecies threatened with extinction and the short-term

demands of our society. In the last year, the Administration, working with non-Federal

partners, has launched a scries of initiatives to improve the ESA's effectiveness while

minimizing its impact on people and their livelihoods. There will be other similar initiatives

which together mark the beginning of a new approach to preserving ecosystem health and

sustainability, one that looks to the future with comprehensive efforts to avoid crisis management

and unpredictable piecemeal approaches.
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For example. President Ointon convened a Forest Conference in Portland, Or^on, to address

environmental and economic issues associated with management of Federal forest lands in

California, Oregcm, and Washington. In the 18 months following that conference, the

Administration developed and has b^un to implement a balanced Forest Plan which will

preserve the northern spotted owl and the sustain the economy of timber communities in the

Pacific Northwest. The Forest Plan will help prevent other species that dq)end on late-

successional forests, including salmon and related fish speaes, from declining to the point where

they need the protection of the ESA.

In another example, the Dqartment of the Interior has published several special rules (called

'4(d) rules' after the section of the ESA that authorizes them), which; allow development of

private lands to proceed while protecting threatened species. A special 4(d) rule developed for

the coastal California gnatcatcher defers ESA requirements to a State planning process because

this process will conserve the gnatcatcher and all other ^)ecies that dqiend on the same habitat

while allowing residential development to continue. In the States of Washington and California

we have proposed a 4(d) rule which will generally exempt landowners with less than 80 acres

of forestland from the Act's prohibitioas on incidental take of spotted owls.

The Dqxutments of die Interior and Commerce have joined with other Federal agencies to be^
prevent species from becoming threatened or endangered as a result of actions by these agencies.

For example, on January 25, 1994, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Bureau of Land

Management, National Park, National Marine Fisheries Service entered into a Memorandum of

Understanding (MOU) initiated by the U.S. Forest Service to conserve candidate and proposed

species. The Forest Service and the Fish and Wildlife Service quickly applied this MOU by

signing a cooperative agreement to protect a rare species of salamander, which lives only on the

ridges of the Shenandoah Mountains of Virginia and West Virginia. The cooperative agreement

on the Miamanriw was ^i^gnfti to <^hiiiw and protect pc^mlatitms of the salamander on the

George Washington National Forest so that the Fish and WiMlife Service will never have to list

it as threatened or endangered.

The Dq>artment of the Intehor has entered into three cooperative agreements with private

industry to protect the red-cockaded woodpecker in the southeastern United States. These

agreements, which have been signed with Georgia-Pacific Corporation, Hancock Timber

Resource Group, and International Papa Company, make significant contributions toward the

recovery of the woodpecker and will also benefit all of the species occurring in the longleaf pine

ecosystem. Pfcwwr these cooperative agreements benefit both the woodpecker and the timber

companies, four other companies are in the initial stages of negotiating cooperative agreements

with the Interior Dqnrtment
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TEN PRINCIPLES FOR FEDERAL ENDANGERED SPECIES ACT POUCY

Ten principles guide the Administration's effort for reforming and implementing the Endangered

Species Act:

1. Base ESA decisions on sound and objective science.

Federal Endangered Species Act policy must be based objectively on the best scientific

information available.

2. MinhniTP socjal and economic impacts.

The ESA must be carried out in a manner that avoids unnecessary social and economic

impacts upon private property and the regulated public, and minimizes those impacts that

cannot be avoided, while providing effective protection and recovery of endangered and

threatened species.

3. Provide ouick. responsiyp anoFPrc ^nd certaintv to landowners.

The ESA must be carried out in an efficient, responsive and predictable manner to avoid

unnecessary social and economic impacts and to reduce delay and uncertainty for Thbal,

State and local governments, the private sector and individual citizens.

4. Treat landowners fairiv and with consideration.

The ESA must be administered in a manner that assures fair and considerate treatment

for those whose use of property is affected by its programs.

5. Create incentives for tolnJgwners to conserve species.

Cooperation with landowners in protecting and recovering species should be encouraged

through use of incentives.

6. Make effectiv*' n«a» of limited pubUc and private resources bv focusing on groups of

spedes dependent on the same habitat.

To make effective use of limited resources, priority should be given to multi-species

listings, recovery actions and conservation planning.

7. Prevent species from ly^^ming yn(iflngery«^ ifr ^ff>flt?"?^T

In carrying out its laws and regulations, the Federal Government should seek to prevent

species from declining to the point at which they must be protected under the ESA.
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8. Promptly rernvir and de-list threatened and endangered species.

The ESA's goal of bringing species back to the point at which they no longer require the

Act's protection should be achieved as expeditiously as practicable.

9. Promote efficiency and constetenrv.

The ESA should be administered efficiently and consistently within and between the

Departments of Commerce and the Interior.

10. Proyjde state , tribal and local goyermnents with opportanities to nlay a greater role

in carrying out the ESA.

Building new partnerships and strengthening existing ones with state, tribal, and local

governments is essential to each of the nine previous prindpies and to the conservation

of species under the ESA in a £air, predictable, efficient ami effiective manner.
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A PACKAGE OF REFORMS TO IMPROVE THE ENDANGERED SPECIES ACT

The Clinton Administration is announcing a package of reforms and proposed reforms that will

have an immediate and positive effect on how the ESA is implemented throughout the Nation.

This package builds on the ten principles set forth above. It describes administrative actions that

have been taken or will be taken in the near future by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (FWS)

and the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS). And the package identifies ways in which

implementation of the ESA could be improved through legislative action by the Congress.

1. Base ESA Decisions on Sound and Objective Science.

Issue DEFiNmoN : Concerns exist that decisions made under the ESA have not always

been objective or based on the best available scientific information.

Administration Position : Federal Endangered Species Act policy must be based

objectively on the best scientific information available. Therefore the Administration has

initiated the following reforms:

> Peer review and information standards. To ensure that Endangered Species Act policy

is based on the best scientific information available, the NMFS and the FWS have issued

a joint policy directive requiring independent scientific peer review of all proposals to

list sp)ecies and all draft plans to recover species within the timeframes required by the

ESA. A separate directive establishes more rigorous standards for the kinds of scientific

information used in making ESA decisions.

*^ Listing petition standards. The NMFS and the FWS have published draft guidelines

for public review and comment that would set tougher, uniform standards for the

scientific determination that there is 'substantial information' to propose a species for

listing and would place more burden on the petitioner to show that the action may be

warranted.

2. Minimize Social and Economic Impacts.

Issue Deftnition : The ESA has been criticized for not giving greater consideration to

the social and economic consequences of listing species under the Act.

Administration Position : The ESA must be carried out in a manner that avoids

unnecessary social and economic impacts upon private property and the regulated public,

and minimizes those impacts that cannot be avoided, while providing effective protection

and recovery of endangered and threatened species. Therefore, the Administration has

initiated or supports the following reforms:
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Recovery plan development and implementation. The FWS and the NMFS have issued

a policy directive on recovery planning that will require that any social or economic

impacts resulting from implementation of recovery plans be minimized. To help ensure

that this goal is achieved, this directive requires the NMFS and the FWS to scientifically

identify the recovery needs of a species and then involve representatives of affected

groups and provide stakeholders with an opportunity to participate in developing and

implementing approaches to achieve that recovery. It also will require that diverse areas

of expertise be rqjresented on recovery teams.

* Greater flexibility. Flexible and creative approaches are necessary to prevent

threatened species from becoming endangered and to provide die -impetus to recover

them. The CONGRESS should restore the distinction between a threatened species and

an endangered q)ecies, which was originally intended, by providing the Secretary with

flexibility to use, in consultation with the States, a wide range of administrative or

regulatory incentives, prohibitions and protections for threatened qiecies.

^Landownerprovisions. The policies outlined below to give landowners quick answers

and certainty and to treat landowners fairly wiU minimJTg social and ecoDomic impacts

to the private sector.

Provide Quick, ResponsiTe Answers and Certainty to L^ndowiias.

Issue DEFPJmoN : Concerns have been expressed by landowners and others that delay

and uncertainty in ESA decisions unnecessarily frustrate develc^nnent and land use.

Administration Position : The ESA must be earned out in an efficient, leqxmsive and

predictable manner to avoid unnecessary social and ecooomic inqacts and to reduce delay

and uncertainty for Tribal, State and local govenunents, the private sector and individual

citizens. Therefore, the Administration has initiated or supports the following reforms:

* Early identification of allowable activities. A joint FWS/NMFS policy directive has

been issued that requires die Services to identify, to the extent known at final listing,

specific activities that axe exempt from or that will not be affected by the secticm 9

profaibitiaas of the ESA concerning 'take' of listed q)ecies. In addition, this directive

requires the identification of a single point of contact in a region to assist the public in

determining whether a particular activity would be prohibited under the ESA. These

initiatives will help educate the affected pi^lics, as well as increase certainty n^arding

the effea of species listings on pn^x)sed or ongoing activities.

» Streamlining habitat conservation planning. The FWS and the NMFS have published

a draft habitat conservation planning handbook for public review and comment It is

intended to provide quicker and more consistent answers to applicants for incidental take

permits. These permits allow economic use of private land for those who develop a
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conservation plan under the requirements of section 10 of the ESA. The draft handbook

recognizes three categories of habitat conservation plans based on the level of impact to

the conservation of species (high, medium, or low impart). It reqtiires simplified

procedures and faster permitting for low and medium imp)act plans.

"No surprises". A policy of "No Surprises" has been issued by the FWS and the

NMFS in habitat conservation planning under section 10 of the ESA. Under the policy,

landowners who develop an approved habitat conservation plan for any endangered or

threatened species will not be subject to later demands for a larger land or financial

commitment if the plan is adhered to—even if the needs of any species covered by the

plan increase over time. A landowner who agrees to provide- for the long-term

conservation of listed species in accordance with an approved habitat conservation plan

is assured that activities on the land can proceed without having any additional mitigation

requirements imposed, except as may be provided under the terms of the plan itself.

Consequently, this policy provides the necessary assurances to landowners who are

engagoj in development activities over a period of many years that their habitat

conservation planning permits will remain v<did for the life of the permits.

* Certauity for muiti-speeies planning. The CONGRESS should provide additional

certainty to landowners who develop approved habitat conservation plans that protect

non-listed species as well as listed species. Landowners who have satisfactorily

demonstrated that they will protert candidate species or the significant habitat types

within the area covered by a habitat conservation plan should be assured that their land

use activities will not be disrupted if the candidate species or additional specific species

not covered by the plan but dependent upon the same protected hai)itat type are

subsequently listed under the ESA.

4. Treat Landowners Fairly and WHh Consideration.

Issue DEFiNrnoN : The ESA has been criticized for placing an unfair burden on

landowners, particularly small landowners.

Administration Position : The ESA must be administered in a manner that assures fair

and considerate treatment for those whose use of property is affected by its programs.

Therefore the Administration has initiated or supports the following reforms:

> Greater Federal responsibility. The Administration is emphasizing the importance of

having each Federal agency fully meet its responsibilities for conserving species in order

to reduce impacts to private lands. It is facilitating economic use of private land by

placing additional fednal lands in protection, by acquiring military lands when bases are

closed, by enrolling existing federal lands in habitat reserves, and by arranging for

purchases of RTC lands.
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• Presumptions infavor ofsmall landowners and low impact activities. For threatened

species we will propose r^ulations that allow land use activities by landowners that

result in incidenal take and individually or cumulatively have no lasting effect on the

likelihood of the survival and recovery of a q}ecies and, therefore, have only negligible

adverse effects. In particular, the following activities would not be regulated under this

proposal:

activities on tracts of land occupied by a single household and used solely

for residential purposes;

one-time activides that affect five acres of land .'or less of contiguous

property if that property was acquired prior to the date of listing; and

activities that are identified as negligible.

In cases in which the cumulative adverse effects of these exempted activities are likely

to be significant, the Secretary would be required to issue a special rule. The Secretary

also would be required to consider issuing a special rule to exempt activities on tracts

of land larger than 5 acres that are also likely to be negligible.

The CONGRESS should extend this flexibility to include activities that result in

incidental take ofendangered species and the CONGRESS should provide that incidental

take activities undertaken pursuant to an approved state conservation agreement (su

recommendations under point MIO) are not r^idated.

S. Create Incoitives for Landowners to Conserve Species.

Issue DEFPffnoN: Concern has been expressed that current implementation of the ESA
6uls to provide incentives for species conservation or even discourages such

conservation.

A^^pipi<ttT]fttion Position : Cooperation with landowners in protecting and recovering

spedes should be encouraged. Therefore, die Administration will support or has

already Jiwrianirf the following reforms:

t'lneenttpa for voluntary enhancement. The FWS and the NMFS will provide

incentives to landownen who voluntarily agree to enhance the habitat on their lands by

insulating them from restrictions if they later need to bring their land back to its previous

condition. Landowners often are interested in managing their lands in ways that have

as a by-product substantial benefit to Uueatened and endangered species. However,

landowners currently are reluctant to manage their lands in this manner because they are

concerned that any subsequent reduction in quantity or quality of the improved habitat

would result in a violation of the ESA. The proposed policy would apply only to those



97

A FAIR, COOPERATIVE AND SClENTinCALLY SOUND APPROACH TO IMPROVING
THE ENDANGERED SPECIES ACT

situations in which it is possible to measure a conservation benefit to a species fix)m

habitat improvements. In those cases, landowners would not be penalized for having

made those improvements.

> Incentives provided by other landowner provisions. In addition, the 'No Surprises'

policy and the proposed legislative action to encourage landowners to participate in

habitat conservation planning to protect multiple species will provide significant

incentives for landowners to conserve species.

Make EfTective Use of Limited Public and Private Resources by Focusing on Groups

of Species Dependent on the Same Habitat.

Issue DEnNmoN : The ESA has been criticized for placing too much emphasis on single

species and not enough emphasis on groups of species and habitats.

Administration Position : To make effective use of limited public and private resources,

priority should be given to multi-^>ecies listings, recovery acticms and conservaticm

planning. Therefore, the Administration has initiated or supports the following reforms:

>• Mutti'species conservation emphasis. The FWS and the NMFS have adopted a policy

that emphasizes cooperative approaches to conservation of groups of listed and candidate

species that are dependent on common habitats. It directs that multi-spedes

listing decisions should be made where possible and that recovery plans should be

developed and implemented for areas where multiple listed and candidate species occur.

The policy further emphasizes the importance of integrating federal, state, tribal, and

private efforts in cooperative multi-species efforts under the ESA.

> Habitat conservation and recovery planning. In addition, the habitat conservaticm

planning and recovery planning policies in this package encourage multi-species and

habitat-based conservation efforts.

7. Prevent Species From Becoming Endangered or Threatened.

Issue Defimtion : Federal land-managing agencies. States, and others have expressed

strong interest in having greater opportimities to put conservation measures in place that

would remove threats to species and make their listing unnecessary.

Administration Position : In carrying out its laws and regulations, the Federal

Government should seek to prevent species from declining to the point at which they

must be protected under the ESA. Therefore the Administration has initiated the

following reforms:
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•- Federal/State conservation of imperiled species. The Forest Service, BLM, Natioiul

Park Service, FWS and NMFS have signed an agreement with the International

Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies that establishes a federal-state framework to

cooperate in efforts to reduce, mitigate, and potentially eliminate the need to list species

under the ESA.

•Prt'tisting conservation agreements. The NMFS and the FWS have published draft

guidance for public review and comment that encourages and sets uniform standards for

the development of pre-listing conservation agreements with other parties to help make
the listing of species unnecessary. The guidance also is intended to clarify the role of

the FWS and h^fFS in conservation of candidate species and ensure that there is regular,

periodic review of the status of candidate species to help prevent their furtho- decline.

> Habitat conservation pUmningfor non-iisted spedes. Providing additional certainty,

as recommended above, to landowners who participate in habitat conservation plans that

protect non-listed species as well as listed species will he^ prevent species from

becoming threatened or endangered.

8. Promptly Recover and De-list Threatened and Endangered Species.

Issue Definition: Concerns have been expressed that too little emphasis is placed aa
recovering and de-listing q)ecies once they have been listed.

Administration Position : The goal of the ESA is to bring ^Kcies back to the point at

which they no longer require the Act's protection. Specifically, the Administration

supports the following reforms to promptly restore threatened and endangered species to

healthy status and then promptly de-list them:

> Bffectire recovery. Recovery should be die central focus of efforts under the ESA.
Plans for the recovery of listed q)ecies should be more than discreti(Riary blueprints.

They should be meaningful and provide for implementation agreements that are legally

binding on all parties. They should prescribe those measures necessary to achieve a

spedes' recovery in as comprehensive and definitive manner as possible in order to

provide greater certainty and quicker decisions in meeting the requiiements of the ESA.

The CONOIESS should ensure that recovery planning:

articulates definitive recovery objectives for pqnilations (including levels

that would initiate down-listing or de-listing) based on the best available

scientific information and the other requirements of the ESA;

provides all jurisdictional entities and stakdiolders an o{^x)rtunity to

participate in development and implementation of the plan;



99

A FAIR, COOPERATIVE AND SCIENTIFICALLY SOUfTO APPROACH TO IMPROVING 1

1

THE ENDANGERED SPECIES ACT

seeks to minimize any social or economic impacts that may result from

implementation;

emphasizes multi-species, habitat-based approaches;

is exempted from NEPA if the planning process is equivalent to that

required by NEPA;

facilitates integration of natural resource and land management programs

at all jurisdictional levels; and

identifies specific activities or geographic areas that are exempt from or

that will not be affected by the section 9 prohibitions of the ESA
concerning 'take* of species covered by a plan.

The CONGRESS should improve the recovery planning process under the ESA by
requiring all appropriate state and federal agencies to develop one or more specific

agreements to implement a recovery plan. Upon approval of an implementation

agreement by each of the appropriate state and federal agoicies, the agreement should

be legally binding and incorporated into the recovery plan. Recovery plans and

implementing agreements should be reviewed and updated on a regular basis. An
incentive should be created for federal agencies to approve implementation agreements

by providing an easier, quicker section 7 process. Such implementation agreements

should:

expedite and provide assurances concerning the outcome of interagency

consultations under section 7 and habitat conservation planning under

section 10 of the ESA;

ensure that actions taken pursuant to the agreement meet or exceed the

requirements of the ESA; and

require that each appropriate agency that signs an agreement comply with

its terms.

> More rational process for designating critical habitat. The CONGRESS should

modify the timing of critical habitat designations so that they result frx)m the recovery

planning process. Specifically:

Designation of critical habitat should be based on the current standards of

the ESA and the specific recommendations in recovery plans.
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Designation should occur concxirrently with recovery plan approval, rather

than the current requirement that it be designated at the time of listing.

» Prompt down-Usting and de-Usdng. Prompt down-listing and de-listing of species

when warranted are critical to the success of the ESA. The CONGRESS should give

these actions emphasis equal to that of listing. Specifically:

Down-listing or up-listing should be done administratively based on

criteria in a recovery plan that meet the standards of the ESA and should

not be subject to the cunent process required for listing, de-listing and

changes in status of a qjedes.

The de-listing process should be triggered when the criteria established by
a recovery plan are met

* Recovery planning deadlines. The FWS and the NMFS adopted a policy that requires

completion of a draft recovery plan within 18 months of listing and a final recovery plan

within 12 months of completion of the draft plan.

•Affinnative spedes conservation by Federal agencies. Fourteen federal agencies have

entered into an unprecedented agreement to improve efforts to recover listed species.

Each agency has agreed to identify affirmative opportunities to recover listed spedes and

to use its existing programs or authorities toward that end.

9. Promote Effldency and Consisteiicy.

Issue dehnition: The FWS and the NMFS have been criticized for carrying out the

ESA inconsistently and inefficiently.

Administration Position : The ESA should be administered efficiently and consistently

within and between the Dqnrtments of Commerce and the Interior. Therefore, tiw

Admisistratioa has initiated the following reforms:

>JointNMFS/FWS standards and procedures. The NMFS and the FWS are committed

to administeiing the ESA in an efficient and consistent maimer so that the public always

gets one answer firom the two agencies and fit)m different offices within the same

agency. The agencies will standardize their policies and procedures through issuance of

joint orders, guidance, regulations, and increased training. Consequendy, each policy

identified in this package is being implemented or proposed jointly by the FWS and the

NMFS.
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•Joint section 7 consultation policies and proceduns. The FWS and NMFS, for

example, have published a draft handbook for public review and comment that will

standardize the policies and procedures governing section 7 consultations between the

Services and other federal agencies concerning actions by those federal agencies that may

affect a listed species.

> National federal working groups. The agreement by 14 Federal agencies identified

above established a national interagency working group to identify and coordinate

improvements in Federal implementation of the ESA, including identification and

resolution of issues associated with interagency consultations undertaken pursuant to

section 7(a)(2) of the Act.

10. Provide State, Tribal, and Local Govemmeirts whh Opportunities to Play a Greater

Role in Carrying Out the ESA.

Issue DEFiNmoN: State, tribal, and local governments have expressed strong interest

in greater utilization of their expertise and in playing a greater role in the ESA's

implementation

.

Administration Position : Building new partnerships and strengthening existing ones with

state, thbal, and local governments is essential to achieving the ESA's goals in a fair,

predictable, efficiait and effective manner. Therefore, the Administration has initiated

and will support the following reforms to establish a new cooperative federal-state

relationship to achieve the goals of the ESA:

> Participation of Indian tribal governments. The Departments of the Interior and

Commerce will, in consultation with Indian tribal governments, propose a policy

directive to clarify the relationship of Indian tribal governments to the ESA and to

provide greater opportunities for the participation of these governments in carrying out

the Act.

Participation of Statefish and wildltfe agencies. The FWS and the NMFS have issued

a policy directive to their staff which recognizes that State fish and wildlife agencies

generally have authority and responsibility for protection and management of fish,

wildlife and their habitats, unless preempted by Federal authority, and that State

authorities, expertise and working relationships with local governments and landowners

are rs^''^^'*^ to achieving the goals of the ESA. The policy directive, therefore, requires

that State expertise and information be used in pre-listing, listing, consultation, recovery,

and conservation planning. It further requires that the Services encourage the

participation of State agencies in the development and implementation of recovery plans.
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> FadUtaU State efforts to retain managemetU authority. The CONGRESS should

provide a State with opportunities and incentives to retain its jurisdiction over management
of a threatened or endangered species within its jurisdiction. Specifically:

To encourage states to prevent the need to protect species under the ESA,
the ESA should explicitly encourage and recognize agreements to conserve

a species within a state among all appropriate jurisdictional state and
federal agencies. If a state has approved such a conservation agreement

and the Secretary determines that it will remove the threats to the species

and promote its recovery within the state, then the Secretary should be
required to concur with the agreement and sus{tend: the consequences

under the ESA that would otherwise result ftom a final decision to list a

species. The suspension should remain in place as long as the terms or

goals of the agreement are being met The Secretary should be authorized

to revoke a suspensirai of the consequences of listing if the Secretary finds

that a state conservation agreenwnt is not being carried out in accordance

with its terms.

Conservation agreements among all appropriate slate and federal agencies

within a state should be reviewed and iqidated on a r^ular basis.

Each i^>prt^)riate federal and state land management agency that signs a

conservation agreement to remove threats to a species and promote its

recovery should be required to ensure that its actions are consistent with

the terms of that agreement

Suspension of die consequences of listing a species pursuant to an
apfnoved state conservation agreement should be permitted at any point

b^bre or after a final listing decision.

> Special consideration of State scientific information. The CONGRESS should

recognize that the States have substantial expertise concerning species within their

jurisdiction by requiring diat qiedal consideration be given to State scientific knowledge
and infonnation on whether a species should be proposed for listing under dK standards

of die ESA, as described below:

Petitions should be sent to each a£fectBd State fish and wildlife agency.

If a State fish and wildlife agency recommends against proposing a qncies

for listing or de-listing, the Secretary should be reqtnred to accept that

recommendation unless the Secretary finds, after conducting independent

scientific peer review, that die listing is required under the provisions of

the ESA.
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*^Lead State role on recovery planning. The CONGRESS should provide States the

opportunity to assume the lead responsibility for developing recovery plans and any

component implementation agreements.

In those cases in which a species' range extends beyond the boundaries of
a single state, there should be a mechanism to ensure participation by and

coordination with each affected state in the development of the plan for

the species' recovery.

The Secretary should approve a state-developed recovery plan unless the

Secretary finds that it is not adequate to meet the stand^s of the ESA.

*Lead State role on non-federxd habitat conservation. Decisions concerning use of non-
federal lands should be made to the extent possible by state and local governments.

Therefore, the CONGRESS should:

Specifically authorize ^ypropriate State agencies, as well as the

Secretaries, to enter into voluntary pre-listing agreements with cooperating

landowners to provide assurances that further conservation measures

would not be required of the landowners should a species subsequently be
listed. Landowners who have satisfactorily demonstrated that they will

protect candidate species or the significant habitat types within the area

covered by a pre-listing agreement should be assured that they will not be
subjected to additional obligations to protect species if the candidate

species or additional specific species not covered by the agreemoit but

dqjendent upon the same protected habitat type are subsequently listed

under the ESA.

Provide a State with the opportunity to assume responsibility for issuing

permits under section 10(a)C2) for areas within the State which have be«i

identified for such assumption in an approved recovery plan or for which

there is otherwise an approved comprehensive, habitat-based state

program.

* Remove obstacles to Federal/State/Tribal cooperation. Federal, state, tribal and local

governments should be able to cooperate and fully coordinate their actions in carrying

out the ESA. Specifically, the Secretary should be exempt firom the provisions of the

Federal Advisory Committee Act in cooperating and coordinating with state, tribal or

local governments in carrying out the ESA.
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CONCLUSION

This reform package reflects the Administiation's strong commitment to cany out the ESA in

a fair, efficient and scientifically sound manner. The improvements that have been initiated and

the legislative action recommended build on the existing law to provide effective conservation

of threatened and endangered species and fairness to people through innovative, cooperative, and

comprehensive approaches.
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Statement of Rick Perry, Commissioner, Texas Department of Agriculture

Thank you Chairman Kempthome and committee members for the opportunity to

speak in support of S. 191, which would place a moratorium on the listing of endan-

gered and threatened species until Congress reauthorizes the Endangered Species

Act.

I could talk all day about the problems we've faced in Texas with the Endangered

Species Act and more specifically with the arbitrary enforcement of that Act by the

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. But I'll limit my remarks to why I agree there must

be a moratorium on listings. We have provided you supporting material which will

give more detail of the problems Texans are facing.

Texas has been hit harder by the Endangered Species Act than many States be-

cause 95 percent of Texas property is privately owned—and there's an awful lot of

property in our State. Because of our land mass, Texas has a variety of soils, cli-

mates and ground cover, which leads to a diversity of wildlife and habitat. Texas

currently has 67 species that are federally listed as endangered or threatened. We
have another 104 candidate species. Each listing brings more regulations and re-

strictions on what a person can do with the property he or she owns. Each restric-

tion creates animosity which hurts rather than helps promote species protection.

Just for reference, let me just show you a map of Texas. The colored counties on

this map are all home to at least one endangered species, which means the majority

of Texans have one in their neighborhood.

Texans have fought several battles over the Endangered Species Act recently and

know all too well what these restrictions can do. Central Texas has 33 counties af-

fected by the endangered golden-checked warbler. Individuals as well as developers

have been prevented from building homes on their land. Two weeks ago Time maga-

zine cited the example of 74-old Margaret Rector, who bought land in Centred Texas

as an investment for her retirement. It was once worth $1 million but now is worth

only $30,000 because it might contain golden-checked warbler habitat.

Farmers and ranchers face restrictions on simple day-to-day management deci-

sions such brush control and the number of cattle they can run on their land. In

1991, Margaret Rodgers received a letter from Fish and Wildlife that warn of fines

up to $50,000 or imprisonment. Her crime? A bulldozer cut a fence line across the

87-year old widow's Central Texas ranch. While Fish and Wildlife eventually admit-

ted it overreacted, they told her to check with them before clearing any more land.

All this for a bird that has lived on Texas ranches for generations.

The city of San Antonio and farmers in surrounding counties have had their water

supply threatened by a continuing Sierra Club lawsuit aimed to ensure there is ade-

quate water to protect two salamanders and two minnows that live in springs fed

by the Edwards Aquifer, {species are: Texas blind salamander, San Marcos sala-

mander, fountain darter, San Marcos gamhusia)

The Sierra Club has explicitly threatened to try to cut off water to military bases

in San Antonio, which would eliminate 150,000 jobs, and to cut off Federal funds

to farmers in a three-county area to protect these species.

These are just two examples but they should begin to give you an understanding

of why we are concerned about more listings.

We believe that habitat exists today because of good stewardship by farmers and

ranchers. Most farmers and ranchers take pride in having wildlife on their land and

are willing to do their part—if it makes any sense at all.

But it's a lack of common sense in the enforcement of the Endangered Species Act

that has Texans irate.

The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service wants to add the jaguar as an endangered spe-

cies under the Act, despite the fact it has not been sighted in South Texas since

1948. Even the petition to list notes that the jaguar was historically only an "occa-



106

sional wanderer" into Texas. Yet Fish and Wildlife pushes on for the listiftg, which
could restrict about 30 counties along the Rio Grande River.

The listing is being pushed by an environmental group from outside Texas that

has no stake or accountability for the outcome of its actions. The ease with which
anyone, anywhere can petition to add a species to the endangered list, without re-

gard for scientific data or the economic restrictions that listing causes, is an issue

that must be addressed as the Endangered Species Act is reauthorized.

In the Texas Panhandle, the Fish and Wildlife wants to add the swift fox to the

endangered list. This despite the fact that Texas Parks and Wildlife Department bi-

ologists tell the Fish and Wildlife that biological information does not support a list-

ing. Yet 40 counties face restrictions if the swift fox is listed.

The Arkansas River Shiner, a minnow that Fish and Wildlife wants to put on the

endangered list, also lives in the Panhandle. Once again, the Texas Parks and Wild-

life Department has told the Fish and Wildlife that biological information does not

support a listing.

This listing is especially scary because it would restrict access to the Ogallala Aq-

uifer, upon which 42 counties in the Panhandle rely for drinking and irrigation

water. The Panhandle is one of the most productive agricultural areas in the Na-
tion—generating over $10 billion in economic activity fi-om agriculture. Farmers de-

pend on water fi-om the Ogallala to produce food for consumers across the U.S.

Fish and Wildlife sent a letter to concerned citizens that said it didn't know if

ground water would be affected and didn't know how it was going to protect the

shiner. Now, tell me—how is anyone supposed to sign on to a deal like that?

You see, we know what can happen in a situation like this because we have as

an example the San Antonio/Edwards Aquifer situation I discussed earlier. From
the way things have gone there. West Texans can expect pumping limitations and
court fights.

And speaking of court battles, as you well know, the U.S. Supreme Court has

agreed to hear Sweet Home vs. Babbitt, which may render moot the Fish and Wild-

life rules on habitat modification. This in itself is a compelling reason to halt list-

ings pending the Court's decision.

I think you can see why Texans support this legislation, which will stop listings

until the major flaws in the Endangered Species Act can be addressed.

We support wildlife in Texas. Wildlife populations are flourishing in our State

—

because of the stewardship of farmers and ranchers who own the land. This didn't

come about because of legislation and regulations. This came about through positive,

cooperative efforts, not Federal coercion.

Give Texas farmers and ranchers valid scientific information that a species is en-

dangered. Tell them how to help conserve that species and still make a living, and

they will respond. We do not want to do away with protection of endangered species.

We do not want to destroy the environment. We do not want to kill all wildlife.

We do want information we can believe. We do want solutions that work and will

actually increase species populations. We do want to be able to make a living. None
of this is happening as the Endangered Species Act is written and enforced today.
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TEXAS BATTLES WITH THE ENDANGERED SPECIES ACT

This is a collection of stories which tell of battles Texans have had with the En-

dangered Species Act and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. These stories are col-

lected from publications, interviews and testimonies at various hearings and private

property rights meetings.

• In Austin, Margaret Rector invested in land 25 years ago to prepare for her re-

tirement. She's originally from Haskell in West Texas but she moved to Austin dur-

ing the Depression and worked for the State of Texas for 35 years. Miss Rector's

investment went through the boom and bust of Austin real estate during the 1980's,

but in 1990 she owned 15 acres worth $830,000. That year her property was des-

ignated golden-cheeked warbler habitat, and its value plunged to $30,000. Even at

that price nobody will buy it—not even preservationists, who say it is too small and

has too much development around it to be of value to the birds. As Miss Rector says,

"you can't use the land to shoot, you can't graze, you can't even have people out be-

cause you might harass the birds." All you can do—and it's what Miss Rector is

doing—is keep paying taxes on land you can't use and can't sell.

• Wayne Halbert, a farmer in San Benito and chairman of the Agriculture and

Wildlife Coexistence Committee in the lower Rio Grande Vedley, tried to be a good

guy and work with the system. In Cameron County, farmers cooperated with Fed-

eral bureaucrats to release Aplomado falcons on private property. Then they were

told by those same bureaucrats that they couldn't apply pesticides on their farm-

lands because of the presence of this endangered species.

• In February 1991, Margaret Rodgers received a letter from the U.S. Fish and

Wildlife Service that warned her she could be subject to fines of up to $50,000 or

imprisonment for up to 1 year, or both. Her crime? A bulldozer cut a fence line

across the 87-year-old widow's Central Texas ranch, which has been in her hus-

band's family for 80 years, and destroyed some juniper trees. The Fish and Wildlife

Service considered this destruction of habitat for the endangered golden-cheeked

warbler. Officials later admitted their letter had been sent in error but they re-

quested that Rodgers contact them before clearing any more land on her 3,100-acre

Sunset Ranch in northwest Travis County.

• Marj and Roger Krueger purchased a lot in a 10-year old Austin development

which already included all amenities. Other houses were already built near their lot.

After they bought this lot, the golden-cheeked warbler was added to the endangered

species list. They submitted a request to the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service to build

on the land. After 6 months of waiting, they were told to resubmit everything. Be-

cause they had exhausted their financial resources, the lot still stands vacant. Their

current home, which is 10 minutes fi*om downtown Austin, backs onto a greenbelt.

They report deer, rabbits, squirrels and birds fi-equent the unfenced yard, which

leads them to ask how not building on the other lot makes a difference to animals.

• In 1992, The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service toured the Maverick Ranch near

Boeme to discuss habitat management for two endangered specie^, (he golden-

cheeked warbler and the black-capped vireo. Quoting from an April 29, 1992, letter

from the USFWS Austin office to the ranch managers: "The Fish and Wildlife Serv-

ice has some concerns with the recommendations in the Maverick Ranch Habitat

management plan regarding the golden-cheeked warbler and the black-capped. . .

Not all Ashe juniper (regrowth) in an area should be removed." This directly con-

tradicts what USFWS said publicly—that only old-growth cedars, which are golden-

cheeked warbler habitat, should not be cut.

Another issue addressed in the letter
—"The buffer around golden-cheeked warbler

territories and unoccupied habitat should be 300 feet." Realize that this talks about

establishing a buffer zone around unoccupied habitat.

Yet another questionable comment—"If cattle must be stocked on the ranch, an

absolute minimum number should be allowed." If cattle must be stocked on the
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ranch? What Is the minimum—minimum to make a profit or minimum to impact

the unoccupied habitat?

• Harold Burris inherited 60 acres of wooded hillside near Austin. He planned

to build on one lot and sell the others. But the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service de-

creed that building in the area would threaten the habitat of two bird species and
five cave invertebrates. The ruling deprived Bums of the cash-flow he needed to

service his debt and he lost the property to foreclosure. Ironically, in 1978 he tried

to sell the land to the Audubon Society, which rejected the idea on the grounds that

milhons of acres of identical wildlife habitat nearby made the land worthless to

them.

After the Audubon Society turned down his offer, he turned to development. He
spent $7 million to build access roads and infrastructure and began to sell the lots

to home builders. But in 1990, he received a Federal injunction to stop. Two years

later, the bank foreclosed on the bulk of his remaining acreage, worth about $1.5

milUon.

• David Trotter and his partners had 1,102 acres they planned to develop into

residential housing. The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service said they could develop the

land if they gave 765 acres as habitat for the golden-cheeked warbler and cave bugs.

In exchange for allowing development on the remaining 339 acres, USFWS also said

the landowners would need to mitigate the harm they would cause by bujdng 873
acres of additional habitat. This meant the agency's idea of reasonable and prudent

regulation includes forcing the landowner to hand over 1,638 acres of land to the

government in order to develop 339 acres.

• In 1966, the city of Bastrop donated 1,145 acres to the Texas Parks and Wildlife

Department for a.state park. Part of the agreement was that the city could someday
expand its nine-hole golf course. Now that the city wants to expand the course, they

are battling the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service because the endangered Houston

toad lives in the park. USFWS has agreed to let the golf course expand if 3,000

acres of the 3,505-acre park is established as a toad preserve. The toad population

in Bastrop County is estimated to be 2,000, which gives the toads over an acre

apiece. Golfers will pay a $1.25 "toad fee" for each round of golf. This fee will be

used to buy an additional 1,000 acres of toad habitat near the park.

• Mary A. Davidson and her husband bought 1.45 acres of land near Austin and
eventually saved enough money to build a house. As they prepared to build their

house, they were told by their architect to get a document from U.S. Fish and Wild-

life Service stating that the land did not contain golden-cheeked warbler habitat.

After 16 weeks of waiting, USFWS denied their request, despite the fact it never

surveyed the property or that of neighbors. However, USFWS said the Davidsons

would need a section 10(a) permit to build on the land. They were told they could

purchase land elsewhere to mitigate for building on their 1.45 acres. They hired two

different biologists to survey the lot and the biologists determined that the land was
not good habitat for the golden-cheeked warbler. The Davidsons were told by

USFWS that it was irrelevant whether the species actually lived on their property.

Texas Parks and Wildufe Department,

Austin, Texas. September 30, 1994.

Ken Collins,

Ecological Services Field Office,

222 South Houston, Suite A, Tulsa, OK 74127.

Dear Mr. Collins: The Texas Parks and Wildlife Department would like to

record the following comments with respect to the proposed rule, published in the

Federal Register (Vol. 59, No. 148), to list the Arkansas River shiner (Notropis

girardi) as federally endangered. Our biological evidence does not warrant Usting
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the shiner as endangered in Texas. In 1983, our biologists collected 786 Arkansas

River shiners out of a total of 3,141 fish from 34 samples above Lake Merideth on

the Canadian River. In 1990, we recorded 309 individuals of this species from 3

samples on the Canadian River near the town of Canadian downstream from Lake
Merideth. From these data, we conclude that the Texas population of the Arkansas

River Shiner is neither threatened nor endangered.

In order to gain more information, we are about to initiate an effort to monitor

the species within the Canadian. We will be obtaining data on why the species is

doing well in Texas and assess the possible threats. Our biologists state that the

Ogallala Aquifer is too far below the surface to contribute to the flow in the Cana-

dian River. Therefore, pumping from the Aqxiifer does not pose a threat. We will,

of course, share the results of these efforts with your staff to further conserve the

species in other parts of its range.

There is a great deal of interest in this issue from Austin to the Panhandle. Sev-

eral other interested parties are in the process of developing a response to the pro-

posed rule. Consequently, we would support a request for an extension on the com-

mend period for this rule before public hearings begin.

Sincerely,

Larry McKinney,
Director, Resource Protection Division.

Texas Wildlife Department,
Austin, Texas, July 27, 1994.

Ms. Elizabeth McPhillips,

Acting Field Supervisor, Ecological Services,

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, 420 South Garfield Avenue, Suite 400, Pierre, SD.

Dear Ms. McPhillips, This is a letter to comment on the Notice of 90-Day Peti-

tion finding to federally list the swift fox (Vulpes velox) as endangered.

The status of the swift fox is currently unknown in Texas and is considered to

be a furbearer under State law. Our recent trapping reports indicate that the fur

returns on this species is too low for quantitative analysis, but this may be cor-

related with decreased trapping effort due to a declining trapper population rather

than a decline in the swift fox population. However, we do have several recent un-

documented verbal reports of the swift fox in the Panhandle and kit fox in West
Texas, but exact locations of these occurrences and whether the populations are in-

creasing, stable, or decreasing is unknown.
Because this species is listed as a Candidate Category 2 species, we have just

begun a campaign to gather more information concerning their status, as well as

the status of the Plains Spotted Skunk (also C2). The 3 steps in this 1-2 year

project that began in February 1994 include:

1) soliciting the cooperation of biologists, public land managers, and the general

public to report information on the occurrence of swift fox and spotted skunks,

whether live populations or road kills,

2) adding the swift fox/spotted skunk to the Texas Parks and Wildlife Depart-

ment's annual deer/furbearer spotlight survey, and

3) sending information to the 1993/94 licensed trapper on the proper identification

of these species and requesting their cooperation in providing trapping and/or occur-

rence records.

Only Step 1 has been completed and only 2 sightings of swift fox have been re-

ported in the last 6 months. However, informal discussions with TPWD and univer-

sity biologists have led me to believe that there are probably 'several' populations

in the Panhandle and that they may be locally abundant. Step 2 will begin in Au-

gust, and Step 3 will begin in late October/early November. The open fur season
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does not end until January 31, 1995, so results of our efforts described above are

not expected until Spring of 1995. At that time, we will assess the situation and

establish further goals.

The statement in the Notice of 90-Day Petition Finding (Fed. Reg. 59:104), states

that "Kansas, Texas, and Wyoming maintain localized populations with limited dis-

tributions." At this time, undocumented reports indicate that the swift fox popu-

lation in the Texas Panhandle may be localized, however, we have no biological data

to support the statement that the populations have limited distributions.

Until the above information is obtained and analyzed, we can not concur that the

swift fox is endangered in Texas. The biological evidence in Texas does not warrant

the listing of this species. However, we are interested in obtaining this information,

and with more time, we hope to be able to resolve some of these questions. There-

fore, we believe the current listing for the swift fox as a Candidate Category 2 spe-

cies is appropriate.

When we complete our campaign for information requests concerning this species,

we will provide you with a copy. If you have any further questions, please do not

hesitate to contact me at (512) 448-4311.

Sincerely,

Peggy Horner,

Endangered Resources Branch.

Testimony of Dale Artho, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Hearing, Amarillo,

TX, January 25, 1995

introduction

Mr. Chairman, I thank the members of this committee, for this opportunity to

meet today and to express my thoughts on such an important issue. My name is

Dale Artho. I farm and ranch in three counties in the Texas Panhandle (Deaf Smith,

Oldham, & Randall Counties). My current operations produce grain sorghum,

wheat, sugar beets, cattle, and occasional non-traditional crops. I also serve as a di-

rector on the Texas Grain Sorghum Producers Board.

PURPOSE

I am very concerned with the USF&WS attempts to classify the Arkansas River

shiner as an endangered species, but more so I'm very concerned about the implica-

tions of such a proposal. I would like to explain why this type of action taken by

a Federal agency would produce this type of fear within the agricultural community.

Idaho

Landowners and County Commissioners fought a strenuous legal battle against

the USF&WS over the Bruneau Hot Springs Snail. In this case the USF&WS ruled

that this snail as small as a pencil tip was endangered. When in fact it was clearly

not a case of endangerment, but a case of environmentalist manipulating an all to

willing government agency into implementing their hidden private agenda. Land-

owners were forced to fight again to retain title to their own land.

California

The USF&WS decided that the kangaroo rat was endangered. They blocked land-

owners from using normal management of brush on their own land. USF&WS re-

fused to grant permits to control hazardous brush, because detailed biological im-

pact studies have not been done. Landowners would have to prove, at great expense,

that the kangaroo rat does not exist in any proposed firebreak. Proving something

does not exist, and therefore does not need Federal protection, is unique in U.S.
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legal history. The regulators do not have to prove some creature does exist before

imposing strict controls on private property.

Texas

March 10, 1992 they raided a 76-year-old rancher on the pretext of killing eagles,

resulted in two confiscated pickups and no charges filed. They returned the trucks

December 26, 1992, but contents of one pickup were kept. The rancher has been ad-

vised by his attorney that fighting his case could lead to further harassment. The
ranch, some 56,000 acres, is owned by a foundation and leased by the rancher. The
family suspects that Federal authorities want the spread publicly acquired as a

game refuge.

RESULTS

This type of behavior by Federal agencies creates an environment of anxiety, fear,

and distrust. Back in the 1950-70's the Federal Government was a farmer-friendly

partner in conserving and preserving the environment.

Increasingly, landowners worry that environmental radicals are using law's such

as the Clean Water Act, Endangered Species Act, etc. as a legal tool for rendering

private land economically useless. The enviro-agenda, landowners fear, is really a

"re-wilding" of entire areas by getting rid of cultivation and cattle and making it

easier for public reacquisition of the land at taxpayer expense.

Nevertheless, when nonfarm environmental groups pushed through the Endan-

gered Species Act, landowners' perception of the Federal Government changed.

Today it is considered an eco-police taking command over private land for a particu-

lar conservation agenda. Resulting in many cases, of hostility between citizens and

government. It is an atmosphere that will drive out employees who seek cooperation

and attract those who lust for the power of gestapo tactics. Resulting in an increase

of lawsuits against the Federal Government.

All this litigation and rising enmity is a double tragedy: Few gains are made for

species protection and the struggle undermines the government's credibility to ad-

minister law "with the consent of the governed."

CONCLUSION

First: the USF&WS must quit misinterpreting the Endangered Species Act and

use this unique legislation for as it was intended. USF&WS present interpretation

of the Act is not about preserving the enviroimient. It is about accumulating power.

Especially power to control private land and personal decisions on that land. To that

end, government agencies are just a means to divide and intimidate private owners.

Second: Protect this Great State of Texas water rights as provided under the

Tenth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution, and protected by the Fourteenth

Amendment to the Texas Constitution.

Third: Assert the need for risk/benefit analysis in Federal policy on all effected

lands and rivers.

Fourth: Not only our elected officials, but also the citizens of this great Nation

must champion private property and constitutional rights.

Fifth: Accountability of all government agencies to its citizenry. This is probably

the simplest idea to carry out. Instead of government agencies operating under hid-

den private agendas, they must live and function under the laws of the Constitu-

tion!

Please, do not take this as chastisement, but I would encourage this committee

to act very carefully and prudently with the changes recommended throughout this

process. These changes will affect a small percentage of the United States popu-

lation, but in the end these decisions will influence the entire world population.
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I would like to thank the members of this committee for allowing me to offer my
opinion. Thank You.
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Austin American Statesman, Feb. 20, 199A

Habitat vs. Humanity
Different standards questioned

for projects in rare species areas
By Ralph K.M. Haurwitz
American-Statesman Statt

When Linda Fernandez pro-

posed building a house in

an area of Northwest Aus-
tin where an endangered species of

songbird is found, federal wildlife of-

ficials told her she would first have

to obtain a special permit.

She dropped the plan. Fewer than
20 such permits have been issued

nationwide in the history of the En-
dangered Species Act. Fernandez, a

free-lance writer and publicist,

couldn't afford thousands of dollars

in legal and consulting fees for an
uncertain outcome.

But when the City of Austin want-

ed to install a 3.800-foot overhead
electric utility line in the same area,

the U.S. Department of the Interi-

or's Fish and Wildlife Service gave

its blessing. Not only could the city

chop down trees and bring in heavy

equipment to erect poles and wires,

but it didn't have to obtain a permit.

Fernandez said that's not fair.

"The poles are a heck of a lot clos-

er (to the birds) than my house

would have been," she said "We lost

an awful lot of time and peace of

mind butting our heads against the

iron door of bureaucracy."

What's more, she and others are

questioning why the city would

spend $56,000 to install a utility line

to serve a subdivision where the de-

veloper has not obtained the neces-

sary wildlife permit or firmed up a

source of tap water. The owner of

the Westminster Glen subdivision,

Dallas-based Lantower Realty Inc.,

has applied to the Fish and Wildlife

Service for the permit.

Wildlife officials say Fernandez is

comparing apples and oranges

"What we have here is an urban

ization request vs. a utility line re-

quest," said Joseph Johnston, senior

staff biologist for the wildlife

service.

Johnson said a house, unlike a

utility line, permanently disrupts

the habitat of the golden-cheeked

warbler, a migratory songbird whose
prime nesting grounds are in west-

ern Travis County.

Construction of a house involves

removal of more vegetation, intro-

duces non-native grasses and other
plants and creates a permanent
source of noise, he said. In addition,

cats kept as pets may prey on the
warblers, as do bluejays attracted to

backyard feeders.

A utility line strung through the

woods, with minimal tree clearing

and pruning, generally does not
harm a warbler area, Johnston said.

With no damage expected, no per-

mit is required.

Some landowners, developers,

prospective homeowners and envi-

ronmentalists are skeptical of such
distinctions and contend that the

Fish and Wildlife Service exercises

too much discretion. The critics ar-

gue from two different points of

view. Developers and landowners
say the service is too restrictive,

while environmentalists say the
agency isn't rigorous enough.
To be sure, many of the service's

decisions concerning what would af-

fect a species are a matter of profes-

sional judgment, which is not easily

reduced to clearly drawn rules.

The standard that the service ap-

plies is whether construction of a

road, house, office or utility line

would result in a "taking" of the spe-

cies The term is broadly defined un-
der the species act to include killing

or harming any animal classified as

endangered or rendering its habitat

unusable.

"The question of whether any
particular activity is likely to result

in a taking is often a murky area, a

gray area, not a black-and-white

area," said Michael Bean, chairman
of the wildlife program of the Envi-

ronmental Defense Fund, a national

conservation group.

In response to pressure for clear

guidelines, the federal wildlife agen-

cy's Austin office pro\ ides a service

that it offers nowhere else in the

tountry. said Sam Hamilton, state

administrator for the agency. Since

May 1990. the service has issued

thousands of "bird letters" to pro-

spective homeowners, builders and
developers seeking permission to

build in or near the habitat of en
dantered species.
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A bird letter is an acknowledg-

ment from the service that it does

not regard the proposed project as a

threat to an endangered species.

Otherwise, the service advises the

landowner or developer to apply for

a permit.

Only two such permits have been

issued in the Austin area — one for

LakeLine Mall and one for the Can-

yon Ridge subdivision. As a condi-

tion of such permits, the service

requires developers to set aside spe-

cies preserves to "mitigate" habitat

damage. The service also requires

funding for preserve management.

The wildlife service turned down a

request by Fernandez for a bird let-

ter for a 15 acre tract of juniper and
oak trees along City Park Road in

April 1992. Jana Grote, assistant

field supervisor for the service,

write that the property is part of a

large, contiguous block of habitat

occupied by the warblers.

In response, Fernandez proposed

moving the house site to an existing

cleared area of the tract adjacent to

City Park Road, leaving the remain

der of the property undisturbed

The wildlife service's Johnston re-

plied in a letter that "it is the ser-

vice's determination that warblers

likely use the habitat located in the

area adjacent to City Park Road for

nesting and foraging purposes, in-

cluding the area proposed for con.

struction. - . We support our initial

determination that any construc-

tion occurring on the lot could con-

stitute a take of the species as

prohibited under Section 9 of the

act, thus requiring a permit."

Fernandez figured it would cost

tens of thousands of dollars, perhaps

more than $100,000, to obtain a per-

mit. "It's ludicrous to suggest that

an individual should get a permit of

this ilk," she said.

So she canceled plans to buy the

15-acre tract and bought a smaller

parcel at the nearby Glenlake subdi

vision, where she built a two-storv

Southwestern contemporary home
of stone and stucco.

A few weeks ago, Fernandez no.

ticed city utility crews working in

the area where she had sought ap-

proval That made her angry 'It

seems to ine that they're not playing

with the same rules." she said

Fernandez said the work also

raises quest ions about the Westmin-

ster Glen subdivision, which would

be served by the utility line Lan

lower Realty has applied to the wild

life service for a permit to build 74

house? C( ont inued

)
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The service says construction on
1 1 of the lots would not affect the

birds and therefore requires no per-

mit. Representatives of Lantower
and the service are negotiating the

terms of a permit that would allow

construction on the balance of the

lots at the 116-acre subdivision.

Fernandez said it makes no sense

to install a utility line to serve

bouses that haven't been built and
whose construction is dependent on
a permit that has not been issued.

Neal Graham, a spokesman for

the city's Electric Utility Depart-

ment, said the line was installed at

the request of the developer and to

provide lighting for four poles in ar-

eas where roads have dangerous
curv es. He said the city has an obli-

gation to provide utility servic .

City planning officials approved

the Westminster Glen development
several years ago, but tbe project

was dormant until recently, Graham
said.

Steve Lowder, a spokesman foi

Lantower Realty and president o
Lowder & Associates, a Dallas rea

estate services company, said th(

street lights are needed for public

safety.

"We are very sensitive to the envi-

ronmental needs," he said. Lan-
tower Realty acquired the property

last May.
Another wrinkle concerning the

development involves water supply.

Lowder said Lantower Realty

hopes to obtain water from the

Glenlake Water Supply Corp., which

serves the nearby Glenlake

subdivisioa

However, the chairman of the

nonprofit water system, which is

owned by residents of Glenlake, said

it has no interest in supplying West-

minster Glen, in part because of the

uncertain condition of Westminster

Glen's underground water lines,

which were installed several years

ago.

The chairman, Kevin Mac Don-
nell, said he didn't understand why
tbe city was installing utility lines

for a subdivision that had not

firmed up a source of water or ob-

tained a federal wildlife permit

"The city needs some chess play-

ers on their staff — somebody who
can think three steps ahead," Mac
Donnell said.

San Antonio Express News, Jan. 27, 1995

Another fish fight
Here comes Ihe U S Fish

and Wildlife Service again,

proposing to put a minnow on

the endangered species list

without adequate evidence

The fish IS the Arkansas

shiner, found in the Canadian

River m the Texas Panhandle

and other streams in the Ar-

kansas River basin

The Clinton administration

proposed putting the shiner

on the endangered list m Au-

gust Hearmgs are being held

in Texas, Oklahoma and Kan-

sas.

Texas leaders denounced

the proposal this week Gov
George W Bush, Lt Gov Bob
Bullock, House Speaker Pete

Laney and Agriculture Com-
missioner Rick Perry said

the little fish is doing ]ust

fine in Texas and that federal

intervention could harm agri-

culture

Perry and Larry McKinney
of the Texas Parks and Wild-

life Service said information

gathered by state biologists

show no reason to believe the

shinei" IS in trouble

Last September, three Okla-

homa congressmen wrote

Fish and Wildlife, asking the

agency whether it had consid-

ered aU available scientific

evidence and what effects the

ruluig would have on agricul-

ture. The agency hasn't deign-

ed to reply

South and Central Texans

are familiar with the costs of

the Endangered Species Act

The Sierra Club lawsuit over

species m the San Marcos and

Comal springs has jeopardiz-

ed the future of the 1.5 million

people who depend on the Ed-

wards aquifer Fish and Wild-

life also invoked the golden-

cheeked warbler to threaten

property rights in 33 counties.

The agency should pay at-

tention to questions and sci-

entific evidence about the Ar-

kansas shiner

It also should pay attention

to Bush, who said: "Leave us

alone We know what we are

doing We care about our

land We care about our wa-

ters And we know how to run

our own business."

18



116

ECONOMIC FOCUS

Rural Land Owners Say
Pain Goes Beyond Data

By Susan Warren
SlaJJ RepOTtrr o/ The Wall Streft Jo

Are endangered plants and animals
dangerous to rural property owners?
Choose a side.

According to a new study by the Texas
and Southwestern Cattle Raisers Associ-

ation, the answer is "yes, very." By ana-
lyzing property-tax rolls around the
state, the study attempts to show that

land values in 33 environmentally sensi-

tive counties have fallen much faster

than the state average over the past four
years, due in part to enforcement of the
federal Endangered Species Act.

Not surprisingly, the association's

conclusions are drawing fire from envi-

ronmentalists. And a professor at the
Massachusetts Institute of Technology
has weighed in to say that the study
actually proves the opposite of what
ranchers claim.

If nothing else, the flap about the

study shows just how tough it can be to

Looking Over the Land
Environmentally

sensitive counties

evaluated in land-

value study by the

Texas and South-

western Cattle

Raisers

Association

Going
Downhill
Percentage change in lariVvalues during

past tour years
Ljm niutt

l«1«93 %Cluii|e
(bi tlllloa) (ign ISM

Rural Teiat
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Austin American Statesma.i, Jan. 22 1995

Farmers hopeful,

wary as legislators

consider aquifer
By Ralph K.M. Haurwitz
AmencarvStatesman Statt

HONDO — When A.O. "Odie

"

Gilliam drilled a weU into the Ed-

wards Aquifer 27 years ago to ir-

rigate his com fields, he scrawled

important details into the con-

crete well pad. The diameter,

depth and date are still plainly

visible: IS'/, inches, 687 feet. 1968.

Gilliam wishes that his legal

right to pump from the aquifer

also could be carved into stone.

"You bet it's something to fight

over. It's a life's work." said Gil-

liam, who irrigates 500 acres of a

sprawling family-owned farm
and ranch in Medina County, 30

miles west of San Antonio.

The fight could come soon in

Austin, as state legislators con-

sider an issue they tried to settle

two years ago: management of

one of the nation's most impor-

tant ground-water resources. Not

only is the Edwards Aquifer the

lifeblood of irrigated agriculture

in Medina and Uvalde counties, it

also supplies San Antonio, small-

er towns, industrial users, mili-

tary bases and springs that

harbor endangered fish, salaman-

ders and plants.

But like a glass with too many
straws, there isn't enough water

to go around. Two years ago, a

federal judge ruled in a lawsuit

brought by the Sierra Club that

unrestricted pumping threatened

the rare species, in violation of

the Endangered Species Act.

U.S. District Judge Lucius D
Bunton 111 of Midland warned
that he might seize control of the

aquifer. In response, lawmjikers

passed a bill establishing an au-

thority to regulate pumping.

Nearly two years later, no
pumping limits are in place. Why
not? The U.S. Department of Jus
tice. prodded by the Mexican
American Legal Defense and Edu
cational Fimd. concluded that the

bill contamed a fatal flaw: It re

placed the elected Edwards Un-
derground Water District with an
appointed board, a violation of

the Voting Rights Act. Texas At

tomey General Dan Morales is

challenging that finding in court

but the Legislature is nonetheless

expected to revise the bill.

Irrigators want lawmakers to

address more than the voting

rights issue. Among other things,

they want fumer rights to pump
water, said Luana Buckner, gen-

eral manager of the Medina Un-

derground Water Conservation
District. She said the disputed bill

gave cities a considerable edge.

Although Gilliam is not among
them, some farmers and ranch-
ers, buoyed by a burgeoning proj)-

erty-rights movement, would like

to kill the bill entirely. However,
San Antonio, the Sierra Club and
many lawmakers don't want to

reopen issues that were thor-

oughly debated during the last

legislative session.

For Gilliam, 67, whose mud-
spattered cowboy hat and weath-
ered face testify to long hours
outdoors, the dispute isn't just

about water, it's about a way of

life

The aquifer gives farmers in

this semi-arid region confidence
that crops will succeed. They
don't pay a cent for the water.
Landowners in Texas traditional-

ly have been entitled to pump as

much as they want from beneath
their property. But diesel fuel or

electricity to run well pumps is a

major expense. So are the wells
themselves, the pipelines and oth-

er irrigation equipment.
Gilliam activated the latest in

watering technology recently by
touching buttons on a computer-
ized console. Water sprayed out of

335 nozzles dangling from a net

work of pipes mounted on 26 rub
ber tires. The 2.015-foot long
contraption, known as a pivot ir

rigation system, began to creep
around the field in a circle The
$68,000 system conserves water
by operating at low pressure and
spraying close to the soil to mini-
mize evaporation.
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A growing numl)er of irrigators

are installing such equipment,

some with low-interest loans

from the Texas Water Develop

ment Board.

"We're sitting on a wonderful

natural resource," Gilliam said

"It's a good life. I don't want it to

change."

But change seems inevitable.

The bill passed two years ago

would create a market for water

rights. Although Gilliam has no

plans to do so, other landowners

might find it more lucrative to

sell or lease water rights to mu-
nicipal users than to irrigate

crops. In other words, the role of

agriculture could decline.
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r»gel2 Livestock Weekly

Dear Sir:

Sixty years ago there was
o cedar problem in Central

or West Texas. There were
k)ts of goldencheeked war-

blers and lots of water in the

aquifer and in Barton Springs.

The blueberry juniper (alias

cedar tree) produces a toxin

that lulls all competitive plant

life. It also produces deep
shade, which kills any plant

life that manages to survive

the toxins. (Don't believe

me? Go look at a dense ce-

dar break.) By the way. the

birds only need one mature
cedar tree per 100 acres.

They use the bark, among
other things, to make nests.

Fish and Wildlife claims the

bird was in 41 counties, from
Tarrant to Del Rio, 50 years

ago. They were doing so well

when there wasn't severe ce-

dar infestation.

Cedar starves the wildlife.

They need grass and forbs,

plus the insects that live on
the grass and forbs, to sur-

vive. Cedar causes erosion.

August 11, 1994 springs exceeded the flow of

the spring in the year 1 900.

Grass catches water, puts it

back in the aquifer, filters it

on its way, and produces as

much oxygen as trees.

Somehow Fish and Wild-
life has gotten turned around.

Cedar hurts, not helps the

bird, the salamander, and the

aquifer.

When the City of Austin
became concerned about
these issues, they hired a con-

sultant. The consultant went
to SCS for advice. He was
given the facts about cedar
and grass. A cedai control

program, preserving hard-

woods and other plant species

where possible, was sug-
gested. Replanting of the old

prairie grasses and other na-

tive grasses was recom-
mended. This was rejected

by the consultant as not be-

ing politically correct. Why
couldn't the best, least expen-
sive solution be politically

correct? Why couldn't the

city ask the SCS these ques-

tions? Our SCS director is a

range specialist. THE SOLU-
TION: Bulldoze the cedar,

leaving molts of brush for

wildlife to hide in. Plant

grass, defer grazing until the

grass is established, usually

one growing season. Graze
carefully. Grass requires hoof
action to break the soil sur-

face to efficiently re-seed.

Most native grasses need to

re-seed at least once every
three to five years. Cattle,

goats and sheep replace the

buffalo in this necessary re-

newal.

because there's no other plant

life to slow down the rainfall

and soil loss. The water rjns

off, causes flooding, and is

wasted. The cedar tree uses

huge volumes of water.

Heavily cedar-infested areas

are classified by county tax

offices as wasteland. These
areas are agriculturally non-

productive, and devaluated

accordingly There is ranch

land in Hays County valued

at only $50.00 per acre.

When the tax base is reduced

in one area, the county must
make it up elsewhere, thus,

the city dweller pays the dif-

ference.

Fifteen or so years ago. Big

Spring, Texas had lost most of

the volume of their famous
springs. The ranchers in the

watershed-recharge area did a

brush control program,
planted grass, and deferred

grazing for a growing season.

Thereafter, livestock was
carefully rotated on and off of

the area. Within five years,

the volume of water in the

There is also a fallacy
about not using land and call-

ing it "habitat". Habitat
evolves, it isn't static. What
is habitat now will not be the

same habitat in five years.

Good range management pro-

vides more habitat than fal-

low land infested with cedar.

There is a balance of wildlife,

livestock and plant life that is

beneficial to all. Why can't

a simple solution be used,
rather than the extreme mea-
sures proposed? Tlie propos-

als won't work anyway if the

cedar isn't controlled. The
city dwellers will psay higher

taxes and farmers and ranch-

ers will be inhibited in their

ability to produce food. One
reason our country is so pros-

perous is its rich, relatively

inexpensive food supply.

Why does Fish and Wild-
life have so much power?
How can we permit an entity

supported by our tax dollars

to be so out of control?

Please call or write your
U.S. senators and congress-

men. They are the ones who
can change the laws they

made. The Fish and Wildlife

Service enforces the laws,

laws made with good inten-

tions, but without foresight

regarding implementration or

their impact on the human
population. No land or water

should be taken without just

compensation and complete

regard for the people whose
lives are affected.

Coni Ross
Blanco, Texas
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Lorenzo (Texas) Examiner, Feb. 10, 1995

A,pea Leaders Show Opposition To
Listing Of Shiner As Endangered

Texas' national, regional,

and local leadership stand

united in opposition to the U.S.

Fish and wildlife Service's

proposed listing of the

Arkansas River shiner 4f
endangered in the C^adiaii

River in Texas.

Governor George W. Bush,

Lt. Governor Bob Bullock,

House Speakec_E!£t£—i.aa£y.
Agriculture Commissioner

Rick Perry, and a host of State

Senators and House Members
conducted a news conference

in Austin on January 24, 1995,

to address the issue. Governor

Bush said, "We're people of

good judgement. We care

about our land. We care about

our water. We know how to

run our own business. I say to

the Federal government: leave

us alone. We know what we
are doing."

U.S. Senators Phil Gramm
and Kay Bailey Hutchison
introduced legislation to place

a moratorium on any further

listing of endangi^eo species

until Congress has an

opportunity to review the

Endangerwl Species Aa. High
Plains Congressmen Larry

, Combest and Mac Thornberry
,,introduced and/or co-sponsored
^imilar legislation.

_ Regional Councils of
Government, Commissioners
Cou(t, and City Councils
throughout the affected area
presented resolutions,

statements, or letters opposing
the listing.

A delegation from Austin
led by Senator Teel Bivins and
Representative David Swinford
tlew to Amarillo on January
25, 1995, to present
resolutions from the Texas
Senate and House opposing the
listing of the shiner, as well as

any future listing of
endangered species in Texas.
Representatives John Smithee
of Amarillo and Gary Walker
of Plains lent their suppon to
the effon. They were
accompanied by
representatives from the

Governor's office, Speaker's

office, Attorney" General's

office. Senator Bill Sims'

office. Representative Warren
Chisum's and Represenutive

Bob Turners' oftlces, plus

representatives from the Texas

Department of Agriculture, the

Texas Parks and Wildlife

Department, and the Texas
Water Development Board.

All elected officials made
statements, and those officials

who had staff members

-representing them haa

prepared statements read into

the recofd.

Over 400 people,packed the

U.S. Fish and W'ildlife Service

public hearing at the Texas

A&M Research Center in

Amarillo. Only 20 of those

attending were able to present

testimony due to time

constraints placed upon the

meeting by trie U.S. Fisjl) and

Wildlife Service. However,

many more presented written

testimony into the record.

Additionally, Senator pivins

and Representatives Swinford,

Smithee, and Walker received

testimony from approxipiately

30 concerned. .citizens,

producer groups, icities,

counties; .
• and d industry

representatives • earlkr, >ip the

day. Their, commenis '.were

videotaped, and the cassette

was entered into the record at

the U.S. Fish and Wildlife

Service hearing.

High Plains Water District

County Committee Members
and Board Members were well

represented at the hearing. At

the conclusion of the meeting.

Board President James P.

Mitchell of Wolfforth said that

he was extremely proud of the

united effort displayed by the

citizens of the region and our

elected officials from Austin

and Washington.
Testimony presented bv the

Texas Parks and Wildlife

Department. Southwestern

Public Service Company, and

the Water District disputed the

U S Fish and Wildlife

Service's claim that the

Arkansas River shiner is

endangered in the Canadian

River in Texas. Additionally,

geological and hydrologic

testimony presented by water

districts and the Texas Water

Development Board proved

false the allegation that

pumpage from > the Ogallala

Aquifer has reduced stream

flow in the Canadian River.

Texas Attorney General

Dan Morales has been

contacted regarding the

possibility of tiling a suit to

obtain a restraining order to

prevent the listmg until

Congress has time to revisit the

Endangered Species Act. The

U.S. Fish and .Wildlife Service

must make o,r- drop , the

endangered' species

determination within one year

of the publication of the

proposed rule, which will be

\August 5, 1995.
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Statement of William J. Snape III, Director, Legal Division,

Defenders of Wildlife

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good morning, ladies and gentlemen. My name is Wil-

liam Snape and I am counsel for Defenders of Wildlife (Defenders), a non-profit ad-

vocacy group with over 100,000 members, dedicated to protecting the diversity of

life in their natural habitats. I am honored to be here this morning to discuss the

Endangered Species Act (ESA) and in particular S. 191.

introduction: defenders opposed S. 191

Few pieces of environmental legislation evoke public emotion like the Endangered
Species Act (ESA). While its supporters tout its achievements in fully recovering

some species and stabilizing many more, opponents charge that it has placed wild-

life above humans and economic growth. What has been lost in the mix, unfortu-

nately, is that the ESA already possesses a number of underutilized mechanisms
to promote species recovery and regulatory flexibility. Still, almost all observers

—

including Defenders—agree the ESA can and should be improved. Consequently, the

104th Congress will almost certainly amend and reauthorize the ESA.
We strongly recommend Congress thoroughly examine the desired goals of the

ESA before it seeks to craft specific legal mechanisms for reauthorization. Quick and

easy answers to this countrjr's conservation challenges do not exist, and the Amer-
ican public deserves to be an active participant in the policy dialog. In recent weeks,

however, several Congressional bills have sought quick and easy answers, which we
vigorously oppose.

One example is the subject of this hearing, S. 191. This bill is a misguided at-

tempt at ESA reform that greatly overreaches on remedies to address problems the

Act might possess. Although its presumed purpose is to allow a regulatory "cooling

off' period on ESA implementation until Congress can analyze and reauthorize the

Act, S. 191 would actually make species conservation efforts more costly and ineffi-

cient in the long run. What the ESA needs now is a comprehensive examination of

its purpose and mandate, not haphazard snipping of its various provisions.

Entitled the "Farm, Ranch, and Homestead Protection Act of 1995," S. 191 would

place a moratorium on all listings, critical habitat designations, and interagency co-

operation under the ESA. While I will directly address the significant shortcomings

of each of these three specific provisions, it is useful to first step back and ask what

it is we want the ESA to accomplish in the coming century. If the Congress can

agree on the ultimate policy purpose of the ESA, Defenders believes actual reauthor-

ization of the Act will be easier to accomplish.

As written in 1973, the ESA's purposes are "to provide a means whereby the

ecosystems upon which endangered species and threatened species depend may be

conserved, to provide a program for the conservation of such endangered species and

threatened species, and to take such steps as may be appropriate to achieve the pur-

poses of the treaties and conventions set forth ... (in the Act)." ESA, 16 U.S.C.

§ 1531(b). If Congress still supports these purposes, and Defenders vigorously hopes

that it does, then it should endeavor to understand the degree to which ecosystems

and species in this country are imperilled, as well as how to stem the present tide

of decline.

The questions of ESA purpose and scope are not ones that can or should be ini-

tially answered by politicians, lawyers, accountants or developers—though Congress

and the American people certainly possess the final power to forge socially accept-

able answers. Rather, for reasoned debate, the question of ecosystem and species im-

perilment must be addressed by scientists who are accepted by their professional

peers and by both political parties. S. 191 should be rejected because it avoids the

tough questions and forges no solutions.
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EMBRACING SCIENCE

Defenders recommends that the President or Congress immediately convene a Na-

tional Commission on Species Extinction to conduct a scientific inquiry into the seri-

ousness of the endangered species issue. Such a commission would complement the

Bush Administration's 1990 E.P.A. Science Advisory Board that identified species

extinction and natural habitat loss as two of the planet's most pressing environ-

mental crises, as well as the upcoming National Academy of Sciences report ad-

dressing how well the ESA achieves its scientific mission. A National Commission

on Species Extinction would submit a thorough and objective evaluation of three

crucial questions:

1) To what extent ecosystem declines, species extinctions, and population extir-

pations are occurring;

2) If there exists a serious extinction problem, what is its implication for human
welfare; and

3) If there exists a serious extinction problem, how Congress might prioritize con-

servation actions given current temporal and budgetary constraints.

Only with such information in hand can Congress reasonably evtduate how to re-

authorize the ESA. And only then can we have a truly rational discussion about

what legal tools we should employ to achieve our desired ends.

LISTING MORATORIUM

At first blush, it might appear that an ESA listing moratorium would provide reg-

ulatory relief for a statutory program beleaguered by the number of proposed and

candidate arbitrary response to the much broader scientific and policy question

about what the ESA should be trying to accomplish. This country's list of threatened

and endangered species is designed to give us an accurate accounting of our natural

heritage. A moratorium would simply not address the regulatory safeguards trig-

gered by listing.

If the issue behind S. 191 is whether science should be the sole criterion for listing

decisions, then Congress should debate it openly. If the issue behind S. 191 is how
science is being applied during the listing process, then Congress should debate this

openly. And if the issue behind S. 191 is what regulations occur after listing, then

Congress should debate it openly. But to arbitrarily impose a moratorium on all list-

ings is not only a blatant attempt to place undue political pressure upon the ESA,

but also a concession by this Congress that it rejects the purposes of the Act.

Assuming that the Congress desires to continue conserving imperilled species and

their ecosystems, S. 191 will clearly make the process of doing so more inefficient

and costly. Once the moratorium was over, the Fish and Wildlife Service (FWS) and

National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) would face an even bigger listing backlog

than they do now. And because S. 191 implicitly instructs the FWS and NMFS not

to protect unlisted species in peril, more species will eventually be added to the list

once the moratorium is over.

Two presently unlisted species illustrate the bureaucratic difficulties that would

be created by S. 191: the Florida black bear and the swift; fox of the Great Plains.

Both species are in need of listing and both are key biological species for the

ecosystems on which they depend. With or without S. 191, the American people will

demand that these two creatures, and the landscapes of which they are a part, be

protected. S. 191, however, would deny protection for these species without address-

ing one single ecological threat or resolving one single economic conflict.

CRITICAL HABITAT MORATORIUM

Defenders' objections to a critical habitat moratorium mirror many of the reasons

proffered in our analysis of a listing moratorium. Whatever its intention, a morato-

rium on designating critical habitat would not eliminate the need to protect habitat,
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woiald not make the Federal Government's role in conserving species any easier, and

would not solve one problem associated with wildlife protection under the ESA or

other legal authorities. Of all the present threats to wildlife species, conservation

biologists agree that habitat degradation and destruction is the most serious. Yet,

a moratorium on critical habitat designations would rob the Federal Government of

one of its major tools in combatting this problem.

The ESA explicitly allows economic factors to be considered during the process of

designating critical habitat. If the issue behind S. 191 is how science and economics

are applied during this process, then Congress should debate it openly. If the issue

behind S. 191 is what regulations occur after critical habitat is designated, then

Congress should debate this openly. But to arbitrarily impose a moratorium on all

critical habitat designations is not only a blatant attempt to place undue political

pressure upon the ESA, but also a concession by this Congress that it rejects the

purposes of the Act.

The notion that critical habitat intrudes upon private property rights is a mjrth.

Again, economic considerations are explicitly allowed to be considered during critical

habitat designation. In addition, critical habitat plays no formal role in determining

whether a private action constitutes a section 9 take.

A good example of the importance of critical habitat is in Louisiana, home to

Theodore Roosevelt's (or "Teddy's") black bear. There, despite some initial mis-

givings, most private landowners are working extraordinarily well with the ESA
even though 85 percent of the bear's habitat is on private land. S. 191 would pre-

vent the Federal Government from designating critical habitat for the Louisiana

black bear, and impede the flexibility created by a section 4(d) rule created for that

species and its ecosystem.

CONSULTATION MORATORIUM

Once again, one must ask what a moratorium on consultations would actually ac-

complish in the way of ecological or economic benefits. Section 7 consultations are

an invaluable tool in enabling Federal agencies to avoid needless harm to species.

For instance, under the auspices of ESA consultation, four Federal agencies and the

State of California reached a historic agreement on water use in late 1994 regarding

the San Francisco Bay and Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta Estuary. This agreement

established limits on fresh water diversion for agricultural and municipal uses, as

well as protections for the threatened delta smelt and other fish—all of which had

been unresolvable for years. S. 191 would not only place a moratorium on these

t5rpes of solutions, but even upon informal conferences for candidate species. This

would deny the Federal Government the opportunity to practice preventive medi-

cine.

Furthermore, the ESA consultation process is extraordinarily elastic. The vast

majority of interagency consultations result in either no change in the proposed ac-

tion or the adoption of a reasonable alternative. According to a recent World Wildlife

Fund study, the FWS performed 94,113 informal and 2,719 formal consultations be-

tween 1987 and 1992. Of these consultations, the Service issued only 352 jeopardy

Biological Opinions, almost half of which were related to a single program by the

E.P.A. to register pesticides. Only 54 of these jeopardy opinions resulted in the ter-

mination of the proposed activity; the remainder continued after acceptable alter-

natives were found. In other words, over 99 percent of all consultations have re-

sulted in the completion of the project or action in question. And in the rare cases

where no reasonable and prudent alternatives to a proposed action can be agreed

upon, the agency can petition for exemption from the constraints of the ESA.
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RECOMMENDATIONS FOR IMPROVING THE ESA

Instead of considering proposals that possess no identifiable long-term answers to

ESA implementation, like S. 191, Defenders suggests that Congress immediately

take a proactive approach to species conservation. Our recommendations are rel-

atively straight-forward:

1) Prevent the need for listings;

2) Provide incentives to private landowners; and

3) Expand the role of State governments.

1. PREVENT THE NEED FOR LISTINGS

Congress should encourage actions that prevent species from declining to levels

that require ESA listing. This can be done by promoting the implementation of man-

agement plans before a species requires listing pursuant to the scientific criteria in

section 4. In addition, section 5 of the ESA should be amended to explicitly author-

ize Federal agencies to work with each other and with the states to protect wildlife

species, to inventory species and habitats in the U.S., and to identify and protect

keystone and umbrella species that serve as indicators of broader ecosystem health.

Sections 2(c)(1) and 7(a)(1) could be similarly amended to place an affirmative con-

servation duty upon Federal agencies and States for candidate species.

The long-term research and monitoring conducted by scientists of the National Bi-

ological Service (NBS) is essential to the proper understanding and management of

all species, listed or otherwise. Defenders recognizes that the consolidation of the

separate DOI research units into the NBS was a monumental task designed to cut

costs and increase governmental efficiency. Minor setbacks in the first several years

should not be interpreted as failure or grounds for reducing funding. Defenders

urges full funding for the NBS during the FY96 Interior Appropriations process as

a vital tool for preventative species management.

Under no circumstances should species be allowed to decline on lands owned by

the American taxpayers, such as national forests, rangelands or wildlife reftiges.

Preventative action should focus on modem technological tools, such as those uti-

lized by the NBS, that provide valuable biological information. For example, the

Gap Analysis Program (GAP) uses satellite and land maps to identify the "gaps" in

habitat protection, thus encouraging appropriate conservation actions where they

are most needed. When proper precautions are taken in advance to protect wildlife

species. Defenders believes it is possible to avoid the ESA's most stringent regu-

latory safeguards.

2. PROVIDE INCENTIVES TO PRIVATE LANDOWNERS

Because roughly half of all listed species spend at least part of their existence on

private land. Congress should explicitly provide incentives for private landowners to

conserve species. One major complaint about the ESA revolves around the regu-

latory treatment of species on private lands. Some claim not only that there are not

enough incentives for endangered species stewardship on private lands, but also

that there exist major disincentives. Consequently, valuable habitats are plowed and

cleared out of fear of possible government regulation. This is certainly not what the

ESA intended. To understand the issue, we must visit the roots of the controversy:

the much-argued conflict between economic growth and ecological well-being.

Economics and ecology are disciplines grown from the same intellectual rootstock.

Realizing this, conservationist Aldo Leopold in his classic A Sand County Almanac

suggested that we "[e]xamine each question in terms of what is ethically and aes-

thetically right, as well as economically expedient. A thing is right when it tends

to preserve the integrity, stability and beauty of the biotic community. It is wrong
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when it tends otherwise." ^ With the overriding purpose of private landownership

being to produce economic return, it is essential that Congress heed Leopold's mes-

sage and develop mechanisms that preserve the biotic community and promote eco-

nomic expedience. Properly designed economic incentives would not reward private

landowners for doing what they are already required to do by law, but would offset

burdensome costs of private conservation efforts.

From our 1993 publication of selected papers. Building Economic Incentives into

the Endangered Species Act, to the series of working roundtables conducted cross

the Nation in 1994 and 1995, Defenders has been very active in the development

of workable economic incentives. The publication has served as a catalyst stimulat-

ing new ideas, and the roundtables have given representatives from the private, en-

vironmental, and government sectors an opportunity to collectively develop solutions

to private lands conflicts.

Federal legislation to amend the ESA introduced in the 103d Congress in the Sen-

ate (S. 921) by Senators Max Baucus (D-MT) and John Chafee (R-RI), and in the

House (H.R. 2043) by Reps. Gerry Studds (D-MA), Newt Gingrich (R-GA), James

Saxton (R-NJ), and John Dingell (D-MI) (H.R. 2043), each contained economic incen-

tives provisions. Perhaps the most promising proposal was the "Habitat Conserva-

tion Planning Pilot Project" contained in section 8(d) of H.R. 2043. That proposal

would instruct the Secretaries of the Interior and Commerce to seek and approve

a market-based conservation plan and report to Congress on its results. The prime

benefit of such a pilot approach is that it would grant the Federal Government sig-

nificant flexibility in testing incentives without unduly hindering the ability to

maintain a strong regulatory approach to species conservation. In other words,

through experimentation we could learn what actually works.

Incidental take permits for such a pilot program would be authorized in one of

two ways: under the existing section 10(a) habitat conservation plan (HCP) process

or pursuant to a new section. This new section would seek to prevent HCPs fi"om

being stymied by additional species listings in the affected habitat by not only au-

thorizing conservation plans for proposed and candidate species, but also establish-

ing a revolving and matching loan fund to finance future plans. The Clinton Admin-

istration's August 1994 "No Surprises" policy should similarly provide certainty to

private landowners. Both H.R. 2043 and S. 921 also proposed to grant Federal as-

sistance directly to private landholders who conserve listed, proposed, and candidate

species so long as there is no taking under ESA section 9 and the anticipated action

is consistent with other Federal law.

In sum, private landowners in the U.S. are becoming polarized over the ESA be-

cause they are concerned about government infringement on their property rights.

Many see only proposed regulations and no benefits in conserving threatened and

endangered species. Defenders strongly believes that solutions to these problems can

be found within the ESA reauthorization process and related legislation like the

1995 farm bill. The tax code also possesses opportunities for wildlife conservation

incentives. Having a unique or rare species on one's property should be an asset,

not a liability. However, Defenders strongly opposes any attempt to meddle with

many years of Constitutional jurisprudence in the area of Fifth Amendment
"takings."

3. EXPAND THE ROLE OF STATE GOVERNMENTS

State governments have traditionally been the chief stewards for managing wild-

life within their borders. The Federal Government has generally intervened only to

protect imperil led species, manage Federal lands, and enforce international agree-

ments. One way to encourage effective proactive Federal conservation strategies is

1 Aldo Leopold, A Sand County Almanac (New York: Oxford University Press, 1949).
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to encourage States to assume greater responsibility for threatened and endangered

species protection. States are often the greatest engines of governmental evolution,

particularly in the environmental arena.

At present, the ESA provides mechanisms for the transfer of authority from the

Federal Government to State wildlife agencies through section 6 cooperative agree-

ments. Although ESA authority transfers through such agreements have tended to

be limited to scientific research, recent efforts to increase State cooperation and par-

ticipation in more active species management have been successful. This effort has

been predicated upon the belief that State resource managers often have the best

scientific and political information to manage local habitat, particularly when they

possess adequate financial resources.

In order to address localized threats to listed species and their habitats, much of

the authority now vested in the Federal Government could be effectively transferred

or shared with State governments, providing appropriate safeguards are taken.

While many activities may be accomplished through section 6 of the ESA as now

written, cooperation with States should be reexamined and more specifically delin-

eated during reauthorization. Congress should make explicit the authorities of

States in implementing the ESA by authorizing cooperative agreements with broad-

er powers. When considering which actions are appropriate for State agencies, it is

important to remember that all States administering certain provisions of the ESA
must be held to the same Federal standards.

Examples of Transferable Authorities:

(1) Candidate Species Management. Although candidate species designation must

remain within the ^cope of the Federal Government, active candidate species man-

agement by States should be actively promoted. Positive actions at the State level

can prevent Federal listings in the first place.

(2) Recovery Planning. Under the ESA, State agencies are already heavily in-

volved in the preparation and implementation of recovery plans. Because recovery

plans recommend a range of actions to benefit a species, qualified State agencies

should also have the power to plan future recovery activities. However, it is crucial

that the Federal Government retain ultimate oversight over recovery plans.

(3) Take Permitting Authority. One existing authority that might be appropriate

for transfer is incidental take permitting and habitat conservation planning under

section 10. Particularly in those instances when small landowners must secure a

permit. State agencies might be better equipped to effectively address species con-

servation and appropriate land use.

REGIONAL ECOSYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLANS

In order to prevent ecosystem fragmentation and promote more rational

biodiversity protection, a formal planning mechanism under the ESA is needed to

address regional and interstate ecosystem management. The goals of such plans

would be to identify key habitats, protect those ecologically important areas, and

guide human development to the least sensitive areas. Under a regional ecosystem

management plan, general guidelines for habitat conservation and multi-species

management could be determined through a cooperative effort between area State

governments and the Federal Government. Once a regional ecosystem management

plan was established, individual States could administer the contents of the plan

through the authorities transferred by cooperative agreements. A regional ecosystem

management plan would maintain each State's wildlife program's flexibility while

guaranteeing that whole ecosystems and their species are protected. This type of re-

gional planning has already been explored by the State of California to manage

coastal sage brush habitat, and by western States to manage grizzly bears.

92-533 - 95 - 5
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CONCLUSION

Congress should refrain from engaging in ad hoc reform of the ESA. S. 191 is not

carefully crafted or considered, and should be rejected for the bureaucratic confu-

sion, added cost, and immense inefficiencies it would create. S. 191 would also need-

lessly harm species. During reauthorization. Congress should expressly examine the

benefits that the ESA provides to both humans and wildlife. With such an analysis,

Defenders believes it will become clear that the problems associated with the Act

are vastly overstated. Nonetheless, the environmental commvinity stands ready to

assist the 104th Congress in making improvements to the Act. Indeed, Defenders

urges this subcommittee to avoid making its objective to either strengthen or weak-
en the ESA—but to make it more effective for wildlife and humans alike.

Statement of David Wilcove, Senior Ecologist, Environmental Defense
Fund

I am pleased to present this testimony on behalf of the Environmental Defense

Fund and the Society for Conservation Biology. The Environmental Defense Fund
is a national nonprofit organization that links science, economics, and law to create

innovative, economically viable solutions to environmental problems. The Society for

Conservation Biology is a professional organization of scientists dedicated to devel-

oping and disseminating scientific and technical information pertaining to the pro-

tection, maintenance, and restoration of biological diversity.

A visitor to the Hawaiian island of Molokai at the turn of this century would have

surely encountered a tame, little red bird living in the island's lush forests. Native

Hawaiians referred to it as the "kakawahie"; scientists from the mainland called it

the Molokai creeper.^ Despite its unimpressive name, the Molokai creeper was a re-

markable bird, part of the magnificent assemblage of finches that diversified and
spread throughout the Hawaiian archipelago. Scientists regard them as an invalu-

able living resource, for they have been the source of inspiration and insight for gen-

erations of evolutionary biologists and ecologists.

Centuries of habitat destruction and the introduction of non-native species have

taken a toll on many of these birds, including the Molokai creeper. Common in the

1890's, it had declined to the point of endangerment by the 1930's; the last known
sighting was made in 1963. In 1970, however, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service

added this bird to the Federal endangered species list. It thus became one of the

17 or more animals that were added to the endangered species list after they had
become extinct. ^

I begin with this story because it should serve as a warning about the con-

sequences of adopting S. 191, the so-called 'Tarm, Ranch, and Homestead Protection

Act of 1995." Given what is currently known about the science of protecting wildlife,

one can reasonably describe this bill as a likely death sentence for some of our rar-

est plants and animals. By declaring a moratorium on the listing of additional spe-

cies and by eliminating the obUgation of Federal agencies to consult with the U.S.

Fish and Wildlife Service regarding actions affecting listed species, S. 191 will inflict

the greatest harm on precisely those species in greatest need of protection.

This conclusion seems from the fact that most species are not added to the endan-

gered species list until they are very close to extinction. In all too many cases their

populations at time of listing are so small that even their short-term survival is

problematic, much less their long-term recovery. In 1991, two colleagues and I initi-

^The Hawaiian name for this species meant "woodchopping" and was said to describe the

bird's chipping call.

2 McMillan, M. and D. Wilcove. 1994. "Grone but not forgotten: Why have species protected by

the Endangered Species Act become extinct?" Endangered Species Update 11(11): 5-6.



127

ated a study to determine the rarity of species at time of listing. We examined all

U.S. species added to the endangered species list from 1985-1991 and published our

findings in the peer-reviewed scientific journal Conservation Biology.^

In brief, we discovered that half of all vertebrate species (mammals, birds, rep-

tiles, amphibians, and fish) had total populations of fewer than 1,100 individuals

when they were listed. Half of all invertebrate species (including insects, mussels,

and crustaceans) listed had total populations of fewer than 1,000 individuals at time

of listing. The winged mapleleaf mussel, Quadrula fragosa, was down to a single,

nonreproducing population before it became an endangered species in 1991. Among
plants, the situation was even worse. Half of all plants added to the endangered

species list during this 7-year period had total known populations of fewer than 120

mature individuals at time of listing. Thirty-nine plants were listed with 10 or fewer

known individuals left. These numbers are far below the levels that most conserva-

tion biologists would consider even minimally safe in the short term. According to

Michael Soule a professor at the University of California Santa Cruz and a leading

authority on extinction threats facing small populations of animals, "We normally

think of the low thousands as an absolute minimum for most vertebrates." Dr. Eric

Menges, a plant ecologist at the Archbold Biological Station in Lake Placid, Florida,

considered our numbers for plants to be alarmingly low. "At that level, almost any

plant would already be extremely vulnerable to extinction." *

Because our published study only included listings through the end of 1991, we
have examined last year's listing decisions to see if plants and animals are still

being protected at the last possible moment. And indeed they are. In 1994, the U.S.

Fish and Wildlife Service added to the endangered species list no less than 17 spe-

cies of Hawaiian plants with populations of 10 or fewer mature individuals. The Pa-

cific pocket mouse, Perognathus longmembns pacificus, was added to the list on

September 29, 1994 with fewer than 40 known individuals. The St. Francis satyr

butterfly, Neonympha mitchellii francisci was accorded endangered status on April

18, 1994 on the basis of a dozen small colonies occupying a total area no larger than

a few square miles. Other examples of 1994 listings of extremely rare species are

presented in Table 1.

Even under the best of circumstances, the listing process is inherently slow. Citi-

zens can petition the Fish and Wildlife Service to list a species as threatened or en-

dangered. If the Service believes the species in question may be at risk of extinction,

the agency may take up to a year to prepare a proposal to list it. The proposal is

then released for public comment, and another year and a half can pass before the

Service reaches its final decision. In short, over two and a half years may pass be-

tween the time the Service receives a petition to list a species and when that species

is accorded protection under the Endangered Species Act. Our 1993 study and our

review of last year's listing decisions clearly demonstrate the grave risk associated

with imposing a moratorium on new listings. Some species could disappear com-

pletely if protection is delayed any longer. Others may become so rare that only an

expensive and risky program of captive propagation could save them, akin to the

efforts undertaken to rescue the California condor and black-footed ferret. Finally,

because rare species are likely to become even rarer due to the moratorium, we

stand to lose considerable flexibility in designing conservation plans that balance

the needs of the species with legitimate economic activities. When a plant or animal

species is down to one or two dwindling populations, there are very few "tradeoffs"

that can be made which will simultaneously meet the conservation needs of the spe-

cies and allow development to proceed.

3Wilcove, D., M. McMillan, and K. Winston. 1993. "What exactly is an endangered species?

An analysis of the U.S. endangered species list: 1985-1991." Conservation Biology 7(1): 87-93.

The comments of Drs. Soule and Menges are from: Luoma, J.R. 1993. "Listing of endangered

species said to come too late to help." New York Times, March 16.
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The moratorium on section 7 consultations in S. 191 is also an ill-conceived and
counterproductive idea. It would reduce the role of sound science in endangered spe-

cies protection by depriving Federal agencies of the benefits of consulting with the

fish and wildlife conservation experts of the Federal Government. Under the current

law, a request for a formal consultation with the Fish and Wildlife Service results

in a written Biological Opinion. If the Service determines that the proposed action

will not jeopardize the continued existence of a listed species, the project can go for-

ward, subject to any conditions the Service feels are necessary to minimize the inci-

dental take of listed species. On the other hand, if the Service determines that the

proposed action will jeopardize a listed species, it must provide the affected agency

with some "reasonable and prudent" alternatives that would enable the project to

go forward without violating the Act. In each case, the Fish and Wildlife Service

is providing its sister agencies with scientific information that can be used to rec-

oncile potential conflicts between endangered species conservation and other activi-

ties.

As a means of resolving potential conflicts, the section 7 process has been remark-

ably effective. According to a recent study, 2,719 Biological Opinions were prepared

by the Service from 1987-1992. Only 352 (13 percent) of these opinions resulted in

"jeopardy" decisions, and only 54 projects that received jeopardy decisions were ulti-

mately withdrawn or blocked due to section 7. The number of abandoned or blocked

projects amounts to less than 2 percent of the total number of Biological Opinions.^

In the other 98 percent of the cases, the Service either saw no conflict between the

proposed activities and endangered species or was able to suggest modifications to

the projects to avoid such conflicts. This beneficial interaction between Fish and
Wildlife Service scientists and other agencies would be reduced or eliminated com-

pletely under S. 191.

In summary, S. 191 could lead to the extinction of many rare species. It would

also complicate efforts to rescue endangered species, boost the costs of recovering

them, and eliminate numerous opportunities to reconcile endangered species protec-

tion with other activities. It would accomplish its intended goal of reducing the size

of the endangered species list, but it would do so by turning that list into an obitu-

ary page.

*The data on consultations are taken from: Hoskins, D., J. Aldy, K. Crocker, and C. Williams.

1994. For Conserving Listed Species, Talk is Cheaper than We Think: The Consultation Process

Under the Endangered Species Act. Report prepared by the World Wildlife Fund, Washington,

DC.
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Statement of James A. Kraft, Vice President,

Plum Creek Timber Company

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for the opportunity to appear today to testify on legis-

lation (S. 191) to impose a moratorium on certain activities under sections 4 and
7 of the Endangered Species Act, including a ban on new listings, designations of

critical habitat, consultations, and issuances of biological opinions.

Plum Creek Timber Company, L.P. is an integrated forest products company with

timberlands and mills located throughout the Pacific Northwest. As General Coun-
sel for Plum Creek, I have been intimately involved with the Endangered Species

Act and how it affects private landowners. Plum Creek owns 2.1 million acres of

forestland in Montana, Idaho and Washington, which is home to numerous listed

and candidate species including the northern spotted owl, grizzly bear and the bull

trout, to name a few. In fact. Plum Creek has the most grizzly bear habitat of any
private company and has nearly half of the 44 spotted owl nest sites that occur on
private lands in the State of Washington.

The subcommittee will hear today from a number of witnesses discussing pros and
cons of enacting a moratorium on listing of new species and other actions under the

Act before the ESA is reauthorized. I would like to take a step back from the ques-

tion of a moratorium to discuss the importance of ESA reform and the interrelation-

ship between a moratorium and reform.

First, let me emphasize the obvious. A moratorium is not the type of reform that

most would agree is needed. We are concerned a linkage of a moratoriiun with con-

gressional action to reform the Act could actuedly create a disincentive to actual re-

form. While a broad moratorium may be viewed as a positive short term remedy

—

and it would serve to relieve the pressure for adding more listings of such species

as the bull trout—it may have the unintended consequences of impeding positive ac-

tivities that are currently ongoing.

We support a thoughtful approach to making the Act work better for both species

and private landowners. Plum Creek supports the approach taken by the Endan-

gered Species Coordinating Council (ESCC), a coalition of more than 200 companies,

associations, individuals and labor unions involved in ranching, mining, forestry,

manufacturing, fishing and agriculture. The ESCC seeks to provide workable proce-

dures and positive incentives in the ESA. The goal is to promote conservation of

wildlife in a way that considers economic factors and respects the rights of private

property owners without impairing the fundamental commitment in the ESA to pro-

tect listed species.

Plum Creek today manages its lands under the Act as it is written. While the

ESA has many imperfections, we are trying to make it work. Today, I would like

to describe two major examples of what we are doing under the ESA that would

be affected adversely by S. 191.

Within the last year Plum Creek has worked with the Fish and Wildlife Service

and other Federal and State agencies to implement programs to manage our timber

resources and relieve the conflicts with listed species. Just last Thursday, the Fish

and Wildlife Service, the U. S. Forest Service, the Montana Department of State

Lands and Plum Creek announced a comprehensive agreement in principle for the

conservation of grizzly bears in the Swan Valley in Montana.

Major elements of the agreement include protection of bear "linkage zones" or mi-

gration corridors in the valley between the Bob Marshall Wilderness and Mission

Wilderness, rotation of and limitations on commercial timber harvest, protection of

streamside areas and road management. The agreement covers nearly 370,000 acres

of intermingled ownership and is based on state-of-the-art science. In addition, it

provides for on-going monitoring and research. The agreement outlines strategies for

Plum Creek, USFS and Department of State Lands, as the dominant landowners

in the valley, through which we can cooperatively manage our lands to enhance
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grizzly bear recovery while continuing some forestry activities. This landmark

agreement is designed to be implemented through the section 7 consultation process.

In addition to our grizzly bear agreement, Plum Creek is working to complete an

Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP) for spotted owls and other species in the 1-90 cor-

ridor in the Cascades region of Washington. This HCP would include nearly 170,000

acres owned by Plum Creek, a major component of our ownership in the State. Like

our lands in the Swan Valley, it is checkerboarded with Forest Service land which

is designated under the President's forest plan for various wildlife conservation pur-

poses. Also, like the Swan Valley project, our HCP will be ecosystem based and de-

pendent on state-of-the-art science and technology. Ultimately when this HCP is

complete we will need to go through the section 7 process.

If a moratorium on section 7 consultations were imposed these groundbreaking ef-

forts would be stymied. Projects such as the grizzly bear agreement and the Cas-

cades HCP are laboratories for all parties to test the effectiveness of the Endan-

gered Species Act. Plum Creek is committed to a leadership position in environ-

mentally sensitive resource management—we call it "Environmental Forestry." We
urge you not to pass stop gap legislation that halts these efforts but rather address

comprehensive ESA reauthorization and reforms.

The efforts by Plum Creek to comply with the ESA have not been without cost.

In fact, over the past year and a half, as Plum Creek has developed conservation

strategies with Federal agencies, the initial preparatory costs have been in the hun-

dreds of thousands of dollars. More importantly. Plum Creek will forego an as yet

uncalculated cost as a result of these negotiations and agreement.

Essential elements of any reform package and a moratorium must be certainty

and the creation of a level playing field. Small landowners as well as larger compa-

nies such as Plum Creek are dependent upon these elements, recognizing the impor-

tance of understanding and defining the roles of Federal lands and private land-

owners. There is widespread confusion regarding the obligations between public and

private landowners. Public land managers, under the ESA, are required to manage

public lands to further the recovery of listed species, while private owners are obli-

gated to avoid the "take" of species on their lands. In testimony before the Environ-

ment and Public Works Committee last summer in Ronan, Montana (a copy of

which is attached). Dr. Lorin Hicks, Plum Creek's Director of Fish and Wildlife Re-

sources, described Plum Creek's view of these roles in this way: "Our interpretation

of the ESA suggests to us that public and private landowners can share common
goals for conservation of federally listed species but have different roles in the man-

agement of these species."

A cornerstone of the ESA reauthorization effort must be application of the best

scientific principals. Plum Creek is committed to applying sound science—in manag-

ing our lands and in seeking solutions to the conflicts between species and

timberlands management. Today, Plum Creek's wildlife and fisheries biologists work

hand-in-hand with our foresters as we design and implement timber plans and har-

vests. Integrated science must be made a greater part of listings and enforcement.

Legislation must be structured to incorporate these principles. The government

agencies responsible for land and species management policies should respect and

enthusiastically endorse integrated science.

Congress has a unique opportunity this year to fully review and make needed re-

forms to the Act. As S. 191 moves forward, we urge Congress not to lose sight of

the bigger objective. A moratorium must be carefully crafted—particularly as it re-

lates to section 7—to take into consideration all of the objectives of ESA reform in-

cluding on-going activities for species conservation and compliance under the cur-

rent statute.

Mr. Chairman, you have stated your commitment to enact an ESA bill this year.

Plum Creek fully endorses these efforts and looks forward to working with you and
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other members of the subcommittee and the committee as you begin consideration

of substantive legislation.

I would ask that Dr. Hicks statement before the committee on July 23, 1994 in

Ronan, Montana and testimony I presented to the House Subcommittee on Environ-

ment and Natural Resources on October 13, 1993 be incorporated in the hearing

record as attachments to my statement.

Statement of Kenneth W. Peterson, Chairman, Board of Supervisors, Kern
County, California

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, thank you for the opportunity to

testify. I am Ken Peterson, Chairman of the Board of Supervisors of Kern County,

California. I would like to tell you about how a well-intended Act of Congress is

harming our economy and wasting public resources in Kern County, and why I sup-

port placing a temporary hold on the listing of endangered species.

Kern County is located in central California at the southern end of the San Joa-

quin Valley. The County embraces more than 8,000 square miles of desert, moun-
tain and valley terrain the size of Massachusetts which provides a bounty of food,

fiber and minerals for the people of the United States and the world. The county's

annual farm receipts of $1.5 billion rank third in the country, we are the No. 1 oil-

producing county and our total mineral receipts topped $3.8 billion last year. The
desert portion of the county contains two important military research, development,

test and evaluation facilities, Edwards Air Force Base and the Naval Air Warfare
Center at China Lake.

More than 600,000 people live in Kern County. Because we have such widely

varjring geography, we also have a lot of plant and animal species with small popu-

lations and limited ranges that exist nowhere else. Kern County is home to 16 spe-

cies listed as endangered or threatened under Federal law, and another 73 species

are candidates for Federal listing. Kern County is the Jurassic Park of endangered

species, an experiment gone awry. And like the dinosaurs in the movie, the many
creatures protected by the Endangered Species Act are beginning to run things in

Kern County.

The citizens of Kern County support the preservation of America's rich natural

heritage. But the Endangered Species Act is not achieving this aim. Instead, the

State and Federal Governments are using the Act to dictate the uses of private

land, to extort land and money fi-om property owners and to drive the cost of many
local public works to prohibitive extremes. The agencies which apply and enforce the

Act have almost become a law unto themselves, assuming powers never intended

by the Act and, in my view, never granted by the Constitution. In very few cases

are any endangered species recovering. Humans, however, are reeling fix)m the im-

pact.

There is wide agreement that the Act is broken and it needs to be fixed. Unless

Congress pulls this misguided vehicle off" the road by stopping fiirther listings until

we can agree how to repair it, this assault on our land, our rights and our liveli-

hoods will continue.

For example, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service recently listed the Southwestern

willow flycatcher as endangered. One of the ranges for this bird is a riparian area

created by the storage of Kern River water behind Isabella Dam, which was built

by the Corps of Engineers in 1954. The lake rises and falls seasonally as water is

stored and released for flood control, irrigation and municipal use in the valley

below. The dam has saved many millions of dollars in flood damage and has been

a valuable tool in timing the delivery of water when people need it. But armed with

the flycatcher listing, the Fish and Wildlife Service can force the Corps to release
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water to avoid flooding nesting areas behind the dam that humans created in the

first place.

California has been blessed with above average snowfall in the southern Sierra,

which will show up as floodwaters later this spring. Isabella Dam was designed to

catch these waters and deliver them later in the year, when they are most needed.

If the water level can't rise, however, the dam's purpose and its cost will have been

wasted.

A recent study estimated the economic cost of protecting the flycatcher at $26 mil-

lion per year and $617 million over the long term from lower groundwater levels,

higher water and electric costs and resulting farm and business unemployment.

The costs of a more widely known recent ESA listing, the fairy shrimp, are still

being reckoned. This tiny and hardy animal is found throughout the Central Valley,

Coast Range and Tehachapi Mountains of California and on four other continents.

It is so adaptive because it can survive long droughts, then spring to reproductive

life virtually any time and anywhere there is standing water.

In effect, the fairy shrimp is a "freeze-dried" species that is not in danger of ex-

tinction, but a paper published by a university graduate student more than 15 years

ago claimed that humans have destroyed most of the so-called "vernal pools" or mud
puddles that the shrimp calls home. So the shrimp was listed. An environmental

study firm recently found one million acres of mud puddles in California that con-

tain fairy shrimp. Even so, last September the Service put three kinds of fsiiry

shrimp on the endangered species list. It could cost citizens in the Sacramento area

an estimated $500 million in lowered property value over the next 10 years. The

fairy shrimp could also cost farmers and ranchers up and down the Central Valley

millions more if the Fish and Wildlife Service forces them to have their land bio-

logically surveyed to try and prove that no fairy shrimp live there before they can

farm it.

You cannot prove a negative hypothesis. It is like trying to convince some people

that Elvis is really dead. Under the Endangered Species Act, property owners may
be forced to spend a lot of money to try and prove the unprovable.

The Environmental Protection Agency recently issued a biological opinion prevent-

ing valley farmers from controlling rodents such as rabbits, squirrels and gophers

with chemicals since these rodenticides could also affect the San Joaquin kit fox and

the Tipton kangaroo rat. That means that farmers who may never have seen evi-

dence of a kit fox or a rat on their land must stand by aftd watch as more common
pests ravage their crops. One farmer lost $40,000 of melons last spring to rabbits

after that decision. The California Department of Food and Agriculture estimates

crop losses in Kern County alone will total $73 million each year. And foregoing

commonly used, low-risk rodenticides also increases the public health risk of rodent-

transmitted diseases.

The Semi-Tropic Water District near Wasco was recently ordered to construct a

$200,000 "lizard fence" to keep the endangered bluntnosed leopard lizard out of its

canal. Biologists cannot tell you whether a single lizard was saved fi*om a watery

death by this extravagance, but the farmers who use the water must tack that cost

onto their operating expenses, which will eventually show up in food prices. Com-

pared to other U.S. farmers, or their overseas competitors, California growers do not

have a level playing field. Why penalize California agriculture?

A local entrepreneur had a plan to treat and recycle oilfield wastes as a road sur-

facing material. His operation uses 20 acres of land that the State Department of

Fish and Game has determined is critical habitat for the kangaroo rat. The Depart-

ment required him to purchase 380 acres of habitat at a cost of $300,000—that's

19 acres of habitat for every acre of usable land—^before granting him a permit. This

kind of extortion has been repeated up and down the State.
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In other cases, decisions hundreds of miles away cause economic havoc to local

property owners. Kern County farmers who irrigate their crops with water pur-

chased from the State of California have seen their deliveries slashed—not by
drought, but by pumping restrictions due to the endangered listing of the winter run
Chinook salmon and the Delta smelt. As a result, farmers have had to idle much
of their land, which has plummeted in value. But they still must continue paying

the State's costs to build the delivery system they can no longer fully utilize. One
farmer has taken 1,300 acres out of production while paying $130,000 for water he

will never receive. His land is now worth about 20 percent of its value before the

listings.

In 1986, the State spent $32 million to buy 20,000 acres of farmland west of Ba-

kersfield to develop a water bank—and underground storage system that would aug-

ment the State Water Project's capacity in wet years. Much of the land was allowed

to return to nature, and State and Federal wildlife agencies now claim that the land

is home to several listed species including the kit fox and the kangaroo rat. They
are demanding that the project set aside some 7,000 acres for a wildlife preserve,

along with other burdensome requirements. Because of the huge added cost this rep-

resents, the State has all but abandoned any further development of the water

bank, and local farmers must repay every dollar of the initial cost.

The Act is adding immensely to the cost of public projects. The State Fish and
Game department required Kern County to stop grading a road shoulder that was
a public safety hazard. The reason? The shoulder was known habitat of the

bluntnosed leopard lizard and the Tipton kangaroo rat. Now the County may not

grade its roads, clean culverts or rebuild flood-damaged roads without permits from

the Department at a cost of $1,800 per mile.

Two years ago, building on a major State highway interchange in Bakersfield was
delayed for several months at great cost because a female kit fox, thought to be

pregnant, had set up housekeeping in a concrete pipe. Up and down the State, when
counties need to close a landfill, replace a bridge, or widen a road, they are being

hogtied by delays, restrictions, and added costs under the Endangered Species Act.

Kern County cannot afford to wait for fullscale reform of the Endangered Species

Act. We believe that Congress should declare a moratorium on the listing of species,

because listing is a powerful mechanism that triggers the virtual police powers of

State and Federal agencies who enforce the Act. And these agencies have made
clear that they support preservation of species above any other use of the land.

This fact is well understood by the interest groups who sued the Department of

the Interior and forced an out of court settlement in 1992 requiring the Fish and
Wildlife Service to list some 382 new species. The Service is required by legal con-

straints to push through listings without adequate scientific evidence or sound re-

covery plans. The result will be hundreds of millions more dollars in economic losses

and unemployment with no guarantee that any listed species will recover. In fact,

rushing into these listings without valid evidence and with no clear idea of how to

recover a species virtually guarantees the opposite outcome. Is that what Congress

intended when it passed the Endangered Species Act?

Why have the courts been so prominent in shaping endangered species law? Per-

haps it is because the original Act was not written clearly enough. There are no

clearcut scientific standards for reaching species and habitat decisions or evaluating

recovery plans. There aren't any deadlines for consultations or recovery plans. And
there is virtually no reckoning of the economic costs involved or any requirement

that the public should pay the costs of achieving public aims like preserving species.

In Kern County, many are asking, "How much is enough? When does it end?"

Mr. Chairman, it's been said that when you don't know where you're going, any

road will get you there. I don't think the government really knows where it wants

to go with the Endangered Species Act. As debate on ESA goes forward this year.
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I am confident that specific remedies for many of the problems with the Act will

be found. Until that is accomplished, it makes sense to me that Congress should

declare a hsdt to the slow strangulation of our economy by an Act that is spinning

out of control. I therefore respectfully request that the committee approve S. 191.

Thank you very much for allowing me to testify today.

Statement of Rob Gordon, Executive Director, National Wilderness
Institute

Mr. Chairman, my colleagues and I have spent a great deal of time studjdng the

implementation of the Endangered Species Act and appreciate the opportunity to

discuss some of that work with you today. The organization I represent, NWI, is a

private conservation organization that is dedicated to using sound, objective science

for the wise management of natural resources with members in all 50 States and
abroad. Our flagship publication is our joumtd, the NWI Resource, with a circula-

tion of over 14,000. Recently we produced an issue dedicated to endangered species

as well as a comprehensive study of the endangered species recovery program both

of which I would be happy to make available to members of the committee.

For several reasons, one of the many problems now plaguing implementation of

a responsible and effective endangered species program is the listing process.

First, under the current program the evidentiary standards for listing are, in a

word, BAD. I use the word BAD because it is apt acronym for the standards which

under Sec. 4(b)(1)(A) are ".
. . best scientific and commercial data available . .

."

The problem with best available data, or BAD, is that best is a comparative word.

Thus the data need not be reliable, conclusive, adequate, verifiable, accurate or even

good.

As the number of listed species now approaches 1,000, with thousands of official

candidates in the wings, we are finding that the current standards often lead to

mistakes. One of three grounds for removal fi-om the list is 'data error.' The fact

that this category even exists demonstrates that solid scientific information is not

required for a listing. A large number of the species which have been removed from

the endangered and threatened list were officially recognized as mistakes. At an es-

timated $60,000 per listing and $37,000 per delisting, not to mention potentially

enormous interim costs, these 'errors' add up. A look at some of these 'data errors'

makes a strong argument against the B.A.D. standard.

Regarding 'data error', the Federal Register states: "As a result of the Indian

flapshell turtle's inclusion on Appendix I of CITES [a United Nations endangered

species list] the Service subsequently listed the species as endangered." After listing,

rather than before, a ".
. . literature review was conducted to see if supporting evi-

dence justified its current endangered status. No such supporting data could be

found." In a further attempt to find supporting information, the Service then con-

tacted turtle experts such as Dr. E.O. Moll, who happened to be researching in India

at that time. Moll stated that it was "seemingly the most common and widespread

turtle in all of India . . . How it ever made Appendix I is a big mystery."

The story of another 'data error," the pine barrens tree frog, is similar. Only those

pine barrens tree frogs found in the frog's southern range were listed. After listing,

FWS worked with Florida officials to gather information about how many frogs actu-

ally existed. According to the Federal Register, "Data were presented which ex-

panded the species' known Florida distribution from 7 Okaloosa County sites to a

total of over 150 sites . .
." in 3 counties. Further studies including Alabama area

reveeiled a toted of 165 more sites than were believed to exist when a fraction of

this frog's population was listed—a pretty big 'error.'

The Mexican duck, another 'error', was determined to be essentially a "blue-eyed

version" [not literally] of a common duck, the mallard. Almost comically, the Federal
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Register states "all reports and observations of 'Mexican ducks' in the United States

and Northern Mexico must now be interpreted to be of only 'Mexican-like ducks.'"

The notice went on ' "Mexican ducks' . . . are only identifiable segments of the en-

tire population, just as brown-eyed and blue-eyed individuals are phenotypic seg-

ments of the human species."

The tumamoc globeberry, a vine which is the most recent 'data error,' was delisted

by FWS on June 18, 1993. After including this plant on the endangered species list

for 7 years, FWS determined, "surveys have shown Tumamoc to be more common
and much more evenly distributed across its range than previously believed. . .

."

Although never really endangered, during its 7 years on the list this plant soaked

up over $1.4 million in funds fi-om the Corps, BLM, DOD, NFS, USFS, and the Bu-

reaus of Indian Affairs, Mines and Reclamation and was the FWS to issue a jeop-

ardy opinion on the Tucson Aqueduct.

According to a recent planned budget, 40 species will soon be considered for

delisting. However, in many of these cases the most acceptable reason for delisting

is again BAD data. For example, in the case of the Maguire daisy, the Unita Basin

bookless cactus and the Wright fishhook cactus, FWS has discovered greater "spe-

cies abundance," "additional populations," greater "range distribution," and even

that a 'variation' formerly thought to be distinct was not distinct at all.

These are only a small sample of many BAD listings. Others are not even under

consideration for delisting. For instance, a National Audubon Society Blue Ribbon

Panel concluded in 1986 that "it is likely that there are between 4,000 and 6,000

individuals in the Pacific States." Since that time surveys have indicated much
greater numbers such as 6,849 owls in Washington and Oregon alone with an addi-

tional 3,234 owls in California—over 10,000 northern spotted owls not including the

thousands of Mexican and California spotted owls.

It is difficult to know just how many species have been listed on poor grounds

but there is evidence to suggest that the number is significant. In FWS's latest re-

port to Congress only qualitative information about species is included. One species

could increase from 5 individuals to 6 and it could be called 'improving.' Another

could go from a population of 1,000,000 to 999,999 and be called 'declining.' Clearly

this information is not too usefiil without also having quantitative data. But, accord-

ing to FWS, we do not even have a qualitative 'guesstimate' for about 27 percent

of the listed species. This is an increase of 7.6 percent from the previous report. Fur-

thermore, in a comprehensive review of 306 recovery plans many showed there was
little information about the status of listed species. Plans regularly call for "searches

for additional sites," 'searches for additional populations" and "surveying suitable

habitat for additional populations." Few recovery plans state that we reliably know
just how many of a particular federally regulated species exist. Following are a few

example drawn fi"om USFWS approved plans.

Alabama Lamp Pearly Mussel: 'Other aspects of the ecology of this species are to-

tally unknown.' and that 'The historically restricted distribution of L. virescens and

lack of information about changes in various stream populations prevents a more
precise determination of the reasons for the species decline.'

Atlantic Green Turtle: 'More information is needed before detailed distribution

maps or estimates of population number and structure can be made . .
.' The num-

ber of nests deposited in Florida appears to be increasing, but whether this number
is due to an increase in the number of nest or more thorough monitoring of the nest-

ing beeches is uncertain.'

Cave Crayfish: 'Sufficient data to estimate population size or trends is lacking.'

Higgins' Eye Mussel: 'The historical distribution of L. Higginsi is difficult to accu-

rately assess because of the taxonomic problems involving the species complex to

which it belongs.' The plan also states: 'Numerically L. higgensi may be less rare

today than previously thought, but in all probability this reflects a significantly
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greater collecting effort and the ability of a larger number of collectors to identify

it."

Hualapai Mexican Vole: '. . . the subspecies is considered poorly defined owing to

limited material available . .
.'

Kentucky Cave Shrimp: 'The very small estimated population size of the species

at the time of listing (approximately 500 individuals) made it stand out as being

extremely vulnerable to extinction. Since the time of listing, new populations have
been discovered . . . Population estimates . . . range from approximately 7,000 to

12,000 individuals.'

Knowlton Cactus: 'Because there is inadequate biological data for P. Knowltonii

and because there is only one viable population, downlisting and delisting criteria

cannot be established at this time.

Louisiana Pearlshell Mussel: "With practically no information on the life history,

population levels, and habitat requirements for this species, an estimate of the cost

of recovery to the point of downlisting is not possible.

Mono Iguana: 'The status of the Mona Iguana prior to . . . 1972 . . . only can

be inferred.'

Palos Verdes Blue Butterfly: 'The historical distribution of the butterfly is un-

known . .
.'

Red Hills Salamander: There is no evidence that the animal has occurred outside

its present range within historic times . .
.' and 'Compeu-ative data relating tem-

poral trends in population densities are unavailable. .
.'

Virgin Islands Tree Boa: 'Population trends cannot be determined because of lack

of data.' The plan also states 'lack of available information on this secretive, noc-

turnal snake precludes formulation of a quantitative level'

Painted Snake Coiled Forest Snail: 'Information on the snail's ecology and natural

history is almost completely lacking.'

In at least 79 of the 306 plans reviewed there was some degree of uncertainty

regarding the taxonomic classification of an endangered plant or animal.

Even many of the species which have been officially declared as recovered actually

were listed based upon inaccurate data. Three birds, the Palau dove, Palau owl and
Palau flycatcher, considered 'recoveries' and are limited to a small island nation of

Palau about 400 miles east of the Philippines. While FWS calls them 'recoveries,'

a GAO report states that "although officially designated as recovered, the three

Palau species owe their 'recovery* more to the discovery of additional birds than to

successful recovery efforts." Similarly, John Turner, former FWS director revealed

during a Senate hearing that the Rydberg milk-vetch, a plant which is one of the

only other supposed 'recoveries' was delisted because "further surveys turned up suf-

ficient healthy populations." In plain English, another mistake.

There are a few other species which some people cite as successes. One of these,

the American alligator, is thriving, but remains listed as threatened due to a tech-

nicality. However, like other officially 'recovered' species, the alligator probably

should never have been listed. Florida wildlife officials think the alligator's popu-

lation dynamics were misunderstood at the time of listing. Even the National Wild-

life Federation, which has been hypocritically promoting the alligator as a success

now that the Act is up for reauthorization, admitted in its magazine that the "famil-

iar and gratifying" recovery story of the alligator was "mostly wrong."

Second, the listing of species which may not merit Federal protection because of

the low standard of BAD is compounded by poor criteria for determining endangered

or threatened status. Sec. 4(a)(l)(A-E) lays forth that a species may be listed be-

cause of ".
. . threatened . . . modification of habitat or range . . .," ".

. .

overutilization . . .," "the inadequacy of existing regulatory mechanisms . . .," or

"other natural factors . . . affecting its continued existence ..." It could be argued

that almost nothing escapes the first criteria of threatened habitat modification. The
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meaning of the second criteria, "overutilization" is defined by the opinion of the reg-

ulatory The third mentioned criteria is not a reasonable justification for animals or

plants which may be otherwise doing fine. If there were no Federal authority to reg-

ulate earthworms is that a satisfactory rational to add them to the endangered spe-

cies list? And as regards the last mentioned criteria, it is a bit of an impossible

guideline for our current policy. For example, for one endangered invertebrate, the

Iowa Pleistocene snail, the current government plan calls for conserving its remain-

ing habitat until the next ice age.

A third problem with the current listing process is that decisions by the imple-

menting agency not to list a species may be subject to the challenge of a citizen suit

as outlined in Sec.4(b)(3)(C)(ii) but decisions to list cannot be challenged; and parties

successful in their challenges to not list a species may receive attorney fees in ac-

cordance with Sec.ll(g)(3)(B)(4). Because of this double standard, the incentive for

the implementing agency is to list species.

From USFWS's own reports and statements we know that a large number of the

species removed fi"om the list, as well as many others still lingering there, should

have probably never been on it in the first place. We know that many of the Act's

supposed 'recoveries' are really 'data errors'. We know that for most species we have
only qualitative estimates of questionable value. For over one quarter of the listed

species we do not even have that. For a great number of species we know little

—

as demonstrated by recovery plans which state basically that or which call for a pop-

ulation survey as one of the first steps. And we know that two of the most famous
or infamous endangered species, the northern spotted owl and the snail darter, were

both undercounted.

Today in Austin, Texas people's rights to use their own private property are being

effected by 'endangered' black-capped vireos. The information used to list this bird

came from surveys of Texas public property, but Texas is over 90 percent privately

owned. Not surprisingly, now that the vireo is listed, biologists are finding that the

B.A.D. may have been wrong because many more birds than predicted, borrowing

the former Director's words, 'turn up.' all these plants and animals were supposedly

listed on the basis of "best available data.' 'Best,' however, is comparative—it obvi-

ously does not mean good, reliable, conclusive, adequate or accurate. It means better

than something worse, which could be and obviously is sometimes—bad. The poor

standard is exacerbated by poor criteria and by a lopsided incentive to list species.

When this process is set in motion it can and has resulted in enormous costs to the

public through expenditures of tax dollars and adverse impact on properties and
businesses. Those who do care for responsible and effective endangered species pro-

grams have a serious obligation to honestly address this situation, as these 'errors'

cause conflict, drain resources and may plague the Act to the point where it comes

to be generally considered as another well-meaning government program gone bad.

Refi*aining from wrongly listing any more species which may increase conflict be-

tween society and the current program as well as expand a program that is already

performing poorly seems to be a logical step to take until the many problems inher-

ent in the Endangered Species Act can be addressed during the reauthorization

process.
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Endangered Species Listing Moratorium Act of 1995
Re: Comments Provided to the US Congress on S. 503

A Position of the Society of American Foresters*

SAF Position

The Society of American Foresters opposes any legislative initiatives that result

in a moratorium on listing threatened or cuuangered (T&E) species pursuant lo

the Endangered Species Act (ESA), as amended. The Society of American

Foresters believes that the most appropriate way to ensure that constitutionally

protected private property rights are not unduly infringed upon by listing T&E
species is through constructive discussion during the process of reauthorizing the

ESA. The Society urges Congress immediately to take up the reauthorization

issue, and to avoid delay as is represented by a moratorium on listing T&E
species.

Introduction

The Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended, is one of the nation's most important

environmental laws. It began as a comprehensive attempt to protect species in peril of extinction

and to consider habitat protection as an integral part of the effort. Its purposes are to conserve

ecosystems on which endangered species and threatened species depend, to provide a program

for the conservation of such species, and to achieve the purposes of certain international treaties

and conventions.

The Society of American Foresters has continually asserted that the conservation of species and

ecosystems as is provided for in the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended, is of great

importance to professional forestry. As well, the Society of American Foresters has long

articulated the significant role and responsibility that private property owners have in the

conservation of species and ecosystems. Pursuant to the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments of

the US Constitution, the Society believes that basic private property rights must be considered,

valued, and protected where private lands are necessary to conserve a listed species or habitat.

* Adopted by the Officers of the Society of American Foresters on March 20, 1995. This

position will expire March 20, 1996 unless, after thorough review, it is renewed by the SAF
Council.

Using the Scientific Knoivledge and Technical Skills of the Forestry Profession to Benefit Society
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Moratorium on The Endangered Species Act

SAF Position

ESA Reauthorization

The ESA is in need of and overdue for reauthorization. As a result of a two year review of the

ESA Reauthorization by the SAF ESA Reauthorization Task Force, comprised of professional

foresters, SAF made the following recommendations to the US Congress in 1993:

• Continue listing of species based solely on science.

• Provide for peer group review before completing the final listing process.

• Develop criteria and guidelines for listing below the species level and use

scientific techniques to answer questions on speciation, subspeciation, and distinct

populations.

• Mandate recovery plans that address physical and biological feasibility and

consequences, economic efficiency, economic impacts, social or cultural

acceptability, and operational or administrative practicality of recovery actions.

Include a range of recovery alternatives and risk analysis of each.

• Complete recovery plans within one year of listing using a core group of an

experienced recovery team, managers, planners, and scientists.

• Develop measurable and clearly defined recovery objectives and recovery

timefraines for each species at lowest feasible social and economic costs.

• Evolve toward ecosystem management as public policy for public land

management as scientific knowledge becomes available to support this approach.

• Prioritize species for recovery efforts to wisely allocate scarce financial resources.

• Change the composition of the Endangered Species committee ("God Squad") to

enhance involvement and knowledge of the issues by members.

• Recognize rights of private landowners and society's responsibility to mitigate

costs for species protection on private land.

• Develop a phased approach from voluntary landowner plans to acquisition of

property at fair market values for species protection.

• Delete citizen suit provisions against private landowners.

-2-
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Moratorium on The Endangered Species Act

SAF Position

A Moratorium on Determination of Endangered Species and hreatened Species

and Designation of Critical Habitat

S. S03 - Endangered Species Listing Moratorium Act of 1995, is not in concert with the spirit

of SAP's aforementioned recommendations of reauthorizing the ESA. A moratorium restricting

the determination that a species is endangered or threatened, and the designation of their habitat

to be "critical habitat" for six months commencing on March 7, 1995 is unwarranted. SAF
generally opposes moratorium language, irrespective of its legislative origin, that affects the full

application of the ESA to species determination and "critical habitat' designation. A moratorium

does little to facilitate a construciive debate tiiat will enhance or expedite the reauthorization of

the ESA. A moratorium as suggested in S. 503 may in fact become a disincentive for Congress

to address the issue, because it removes the urgency for dealing with the issue.

A moratorium does not equate to substantive reform. SAF is concerned that a debate concerning

the necessity and duration of a moratorium by members of Congress will divert their attention

away from the true issue at hand - reauthorization of the ESA. A broad moratorium of any

length would at best be a short term remedy of questionable worth. A moratorium would send

a mixed signal to private landowners and corporations who have worked in concert with the

Department of the Interior to develop creative, alternative methods of species and habitat

conservation.

Habitat Conservation Plans (HCP) have been developed by private entities in voluntary

cooperation with the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service that are effective in preserving and

providing habitat for endangered and threatened species. Plum Creek Timber Company has

established HCP's for boUi the Grizzly Bear and the Spotted Owl in the Cascades region of

Washington. In the Southeast, Georgia Pacific Corp., Hancock Timber and International Paper

Co. have developed HCP's for the Red-cockaded woodpecker. Pinehurst Country Club in North

Carolina has managed Longleaf pine to encourage the Red-cockaded woodpecker to inhabit their

property to facilitate recovery of the species. All of this has been accomplished under Section

7 consultations within the current law.

Realizing the potential for extreme adverse impacts to the private property rights of Pacific

Northwest landowners under Option 9 of the President's Northwest Forestry Plan, the US Fish

and Wildlife Service has exempted all private woodland owners whose property is eighty (80)

acres or less in size from the Spotted owl recovery program. Thus, the Interior Department is

utilizing significant administrative leeway provided under the ESA. This is the type of science-

based, common sense implementation of the ESA that is needed. More of this kind of

innovation and constructive reauthorization discussion is needed, not moratorium legislation.



145

Moraiorium on The Endangered Species Act

SAF Position

The Secretary of the Interior and Undersecretary of Commerce for Oceans and Atmospheres

released a lengthy set of documents on March 6, 1995, which describe ten principles to balance

endangered sp)ecies protection with economic development. Their implementation will bring

significant change to the way the Endangered Species Act is implemented. These principles are

strikingly similar to SAP's recommendations to Congress in 1993 concerning reauthorization of

the ESA. They are:

1. Base ESA decisions on sound and objective science.

2. Minimize social and economic impacts.

3. Provide quick, responsive answers and certainty to landowners.

4. Treat landowners fairly and with consideration.

5. Create incentives for landowners to conserve species.

6. Make effective use of limited public and private resources by focusing on groups

of species dependent on the same habitat.

7. Prevent species from becoming endangered or threatened.

8. Promptly recover and de-list threatened and endangered species.

9. Promote efficiency and consistency.

10. Provide state, tribal, and local governments with opportunities to play a greater

role in carrying out the ESA.

SAF urges Congress to immediately address the issue of reauthorizing the ESA, and avoid being

sidetracked by such potentially counterproductive issues as a listing moratorium. A moratorium

is not needed or desirable. What is needed and desirable is reauthorization of the ESA through

thoughtful discussion to devise legislation that is firmly grounded in science, and with due

consideration to economic and social factors.

-4
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SAF Position

ABOUT THE SOCIETY

The Society of American Foresters, with about IS.CXX) members, is the national organization that

represents all segments of the forestry profession in the United States. It includes public and private

practitioners, researchers, admioistrpfors, educators, and forestry £^Jdent3. Tha Society was established in

1900 by Gifford Pinchot and six other pioneer foresters.

The mission of the Society of American Foresters is to advance the science, education, technology,

and practice of forestry; to enhance the competency of its members; to establish professional excellence; and

to use the knowledge, skills, and conservation ethic of the profession to ensure the continued health and use

of forest ecosystems and the present and future availability of forest resources to benefit society.

The Society is the accreditation authority for professional forestry education in the United States.

The Society publishes the Journal of Forestry; the quarterlies. Forest Science, Southern Journal of Applied

Forestry, Northern Journal of Applied Forestry, and Western Journal of Applied Forestry: and the armual

Proceedings of the Society of American Foresters national convention.
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North American Equipment Dealers Association

Serving Farm, Industrial and Outdoor Powar Oaalara

John J. Mullenholz, Legislative Director

(202) 296-8000

March 13, 1995

Jimmy Powell, Counsel

Drinking Water, Fisheries and Wildlife Subcommittee

Senate Committee on Environment and Public Works
Washington, DC 20510

Dear Mr. Powell:

I am submitting the enclosed letter and article for the record on the Endangered Species

Act and Property Rights hearing which was held last week. The article was written by E.G.

Berchtold, a farm equipment dealer who is a member of the North American Equipment

Dealers Association.

If it is too late for last week's hearing record, will there be future hearings on the

Endangered Species Act for which we can submit the letter? Mr. Berchtold could also come
to Washington to testify.

Please let us know what the hearing schedule is, and if you think Mr. Berchtold can

testify. Thank you.

Sincerely,

Mary^oogan/

1150 Connecticut Avenue. N.W.. Suite 700. Washington. O.C. 20036



148

North American Equipment Dealers Association

Serving Farm, Industrial and Outdoor Power 0»a(«n

John J. Mullentiolz. Legislative Director

(202) 296-SaOO

March 10. 1995

The Honorable Dirk Kempthorne

Subcommittee on Drinking Water. Fisheries and Wildlife

Senate Committee on Environment and Public Works

406 Dirksen Senate Office Building

Washinuton. DC 20510

Dear Senator Kempthorne:

1 am ^vriting on behalf of the over 5.500 L' S members of the North American

Equipment Dealers .Association to urge your support of legislation to bring sense to the

Endangered Species .Act.

NAEDA's members are the farm, industrial and outdoor pouer equipment dealers

located throughout the nation. With an average of 17 employees per dealership, they are often

among the largest employers in their communities. Like most other small businesses, they are

burdened by a host of unfair laws and regulations. Some are absolutely nonsensical.

The Endangered Species .Act is a prime example of a law which has gone awr\'. A
California equipment dealer can attest to that fact. He sold a tractor to a Vietnamese

immigrant farmer who had worked and struggled to save enough to buy a farm. The farmer

wanted to be a productive citizen in his new countr>'. The dealer, believing in the fanner and

his dreams, financed the sale. When the unfortunate farmer unwittingly ran over a few

protected Kangaroo Rats (yes. RATS), he was arrested under the Endangered Species .Act and

the tractor was confiscated. After a flood of publicity the tractor was returned to the dealer.

Congress has an opportunity to redress such wrongs by revamping the Endangered

Species Act and similar laws to recognize that people have rights as well as animals.

1150 Connecticut Avenue, N.W., Suite 700, Washington, D.C. 20036
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A message from one of our own.,
by EG Berchtold, Berchtold Equipment Co, Bakersfield, CA

In previous issues of the Far West Bulletin and

in many otherforums you have heard about the

saga of Taung Kiing-Lin who had his new

tractor confiscated by thefederal government

because he allegedly killed three Tipton Kanga-

roo rats while disking his land near Bakersfield

Berchtold Equipment Company sold the tractor

which they werefinancingfor Mr. Lin. Follow-

ing is E.G. Berchtold 's story ofhow the incident

has profoundly affected him and his outrage at

the federal governments taking ofprivate

property under the guise of the Endangered

Species .Act and other extreme environmental

measures EG 's message thatfollows isfrom

the speech he gave at Far West 's 47ih .Annual

Convention in Tucson in Sovember of this year.

The Endangered Species Act

Less than a year ago. I had no knowledge or

interest in it I had not been affeaed by it so

consequently, I wasn't concerned Then some-

thing happened to another guy and to me

That changed everything

The other tellow, his name is Taung Ming-Lin,

who is a Taiwanese immigrant, speaks no En-

glish, moved here to this country and opened a

book-binding business in Los Angeles, then

decided he wanted to farm in our area He came

to Bakersfield, found some property, went to the

county offices to check zoning He was told the

property was zoned for agncuiture He asked

specifics He was told he could develop the land

by clearing and could drill a well for water,

which he did at a considerable cost.

He told me at a later date that in his country you

went to the head person in each community to

get permission to do anyihing If you got that

permission you could do it He felt that when the

county official told him he could farm his land,

that was exaaly what he could do

He contacted us, after he dnlled his well, to

purchase a $48,000 tractor He gave us S 1 2,000

down We decided to finance it in house for six

months We made a secunty agreement and

documented it with a L'CC instrument

After the tractor was delivered, he staned

working the farm Shonly thereafter, on a

Sunday afternoon, while he was disking the

ground, 22 to 24 uninformed, armed people

came on to his land

Some were even carrying automatic weapons

They stopped him ft'om using the traaor They

ordered him off the tractor They had a County

of Kem Fire Depanment transponation truck

come in and haul the tractor approximately 50

miles away on that Sunday afternoon The

tractor, by the way. was an unauthorized over-

sized load, putting the countv m jeopardy of a

liability lawsuit The dnver himself could have

lost his license for dnving that truck

.After the tractor was removed, they informed

Mr Lin that he was subject to be impnsoned,

that he was subject to about S300.000 in fines

for allegedly killing three rats The only evi-

dence they provided him was a frozen dead rat in

a plastic bag they claimed he had killed.

They left and there he was standing out there in

bewilderment. You can just imagine his own

thoughts, "What in the hell is going on here''"

And as someone said

"Welcometo Amenca" Mr Lin"

That was his introduction to the Endangered

Species Act. continued

FAR WEST BULLETIN Page 4
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Subsequemly, he suffered a stroke over this

matter

This government raid took place on February 20,

1 994 About Apnl 4th we received a document

in the mail from the United States Distria Coun

in Fresno which stated: "The United States of

Amenca vs One Ford Tractor and One Towner

disc"

I personally had never seen a document such as

this before, where a plaintiff or defendant hap-

pened to be an article rather than a person or an

entity In checking with our attorney this type of

thing is used in forfeiture cases, usually comes

from drug cases where the instrument of cnme

happens to be a boat, airplane or automobile

In any event, the wildlife people were treating

Mr Lin on the same level as a drug case and

they felt they had the right to confiscate his

property

A few days later we received another document,

which came from the U S Marshall's office

stating that he had arrested "one Ford Tractor
'

This was our introduction to the Endangered

Species Act Needles to say, we had some

concern about whether we were going to get our

money or the tractor if the payment wasn't made

on the due date.

Shortly afterward, I was interviewed by a young

lady from the Bakersfield Califomian regarding

the entire matter The following day, she wrote

a real great article which appeared on the front

page of the business section of the newspaper

and that's when the stuff hit the fan

Our phones started ringing off the hook. I got

calls from people I know, from people I don't

know, all expressing their outrage, offering help,

offering money You name it Local TV and

radio stations were in contact with me

And then the calls started coming in from all

over the country Connecticut. Michigan,

Tennessee, Alaska, New Mexico I was inter-

viewed on radio talk shows in Saginaw, Mem-
phis, San Francisco, Fresno, Los Angeles, over

on the coast and more I can't even remember

Then, Rush Limbaugh staned talking about it, at

first mispronouncing my name to 30 million

people He finally got it nght I don't know
how many times he had it on the radio, perhaps a

dozen or more I did see him once on rv

Gordon Liddy had it on his show I'd be inter-

rupted in the office when someone would come

to me and say "Associated Press is on the line",

or "Tony Snow from USA Today is calling from

Washington"

Articles and cartoons were appearing in the

Washington Post, the Chicago Tnbune, the

Detroit Free Press How many other places 1

don't know It even made the National Enquirer

magazine and Reader's Digest I was informed

that It has been featured in the press of some

foreign countnes

Articles staned coming to me through the mail

and by fax, descnbing some of the horror stones

taking place each and every day. everywhere

Then people staned telling me I should do

something about this I finally thought, if I

didn't do something, who wouW

I joined the very active local group, the Coalition

to Preserve and Protect Private Propeny Rights

It was formed about a year before to raise fiinds

to help local people who had been caught up by

the Endangered Species .^ct Since the Lin case,

however, this group has expanded and has

gained the support of industry organizations and

private property rights groups around the state

This group opposes the uncompensated taking

of land by the state and federal govenunents It

has come in contact with other grassroots

organizations around the country that are work-

ing to change, modify and reform the Endan

continued
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gered Species Act so that it is more fair to the

iixlividual American people who happens to own

land on which endangered species are found.

There's the case of Steve Jordon over in

Lompoc whose property goes out into a dry

riverbed It only fills up when there is a great

amount of rain The ciry of Lompoc was lening

water drain into it and some willows grew in

there A few birds showed up The fellow went

out there to clear the willows so his property

would not be flooded if it started to rain. The

wildlife people came along and said "You can't

do that or we'll imprison you" Why'' "It's

habitat protected under the Endangered Species

Aa"

After a long fight the situation remains the same

Now they are just sitting and waiting until they

get a wet winter and then it's going to flood his

farm. Its also going to go down and inundate

the city of Lompoc

There's another case of an elderly couple living

in Tulare on the Tula Vista Farms The wildlife

people came to them and said "You killed some

lizards " They had 160 acres of ground and

after fighting back and forth and getting no-

where, they just gave up and surrendered 60

acres of their ground to keep ft'om going to

court

Then there is the case of the families in River-

side, who were prevented by the wildlife people

from disking open lands around their homes to

guard against the all-too-common Southern

California wildfires The lands were habitat and

the weeds were habitat.

Consequently, when a fire did come, 29 homes

were destroyed. Ysmael Garcia, one of the

homeowners, said "I'm now among the home-

less The ESA is responsible for the loss of our

home and everything we own on this earth and

of the near loss of our lives"

The wildlife people back-peddled. Did not

apologize, did not admit any guilt but now agree

that people who live in open mountain areas can

disc around their homes to protect themselves

against wildfires

These cases are endless, each one reported in the

local newspaper but normally not heard about in

other areas No publicity, like the Lin case.

They have designated 33 counties, repeat 33

counties, in Texas as critical habitat so that the

Golden cheeked worbler can be proteaed This

is stopping development, bankrupting builders

and preventing people from building homes on

their lots

Farms in California's nch Central Valley are

losing their water supplies so that fish can be

proteaed in the Delta Efforts to protect under-

ground water supplies in the Valley are being

thwarted because endangered species live in

areas on which water officials want to flood

In Southern Arizona, they're spending millions

of taxpayer dollars reimporting quail now living

in Mexico that haven't been here for years and

years In the last repon they spent 5270,000 for

each quail and they don't even know if they

will survive

There are many cases where individuals are

being hampered, hurt and financially destroyed

by this law One more thing, they are teaching

our children to follow in their paths Children

these days are not seeing farm animals in the

classrooms. Animals like cows, horses, pigs and

chickens Instead they are seeing "endangered

rats and lizards" A fiiend of mine told me his

grandchild came home and said, "Papa don't run

over the poor little rat with your tractor"

The environmentalists groups that support this

law are extremely well organized and well

financed. I have a list for example that shows

that the top 25 environmental groups, led by

Green Peace, have a total annual operating

budget of $544 8 million continued
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Probably the biggest gun pushing all this is that

illustnous son of you Anzonans, Bruce Babbitt,

the Secretary of the Intenor Here's one way

Babbitt wants to spend your tax dollars. How
many plants, animals, squirrels, cockroaches,

share our homeland'' There are probably

500,000 species in the U S and there are easily

billions of living creatures. No one knows how

many Babbitt wants to survey and catalog

every non-human living organism in the US He

says It will make the environmental laws more

efficient What it really will do is it will make it

easier for the federal government to take away

the property rights from all landowners under

the guise of environmental protection Big

Brother has arnved'

This treaty was signed and strongly supported by

President Clinton Luckily, the Senate which has

the power to sign treaties took no aaion before

It recessed We, all of us. must let our Senators

know that they must not sign this treaty, cata-

logued as "103-20" Mark my words. It will

reappear in January when Congress reconvenes

In companng environmentalism to socialist

dictatorships, it is said that while socialism is the

redefintion of the relationship between man to

man, environmentalism is the redefirution of the

relationship between man and nature

Extreme environmentalism means the end of

religion and society as we know it

Here is one of the disasters that is just about to

happen This could be the worst scenano of ail.

I'm talking about the biodiversity treaty, which

the Senate was asked to sign this past year If

ratified, the national sovereignty of the United

States will be at stake It will be handing a blank

check to the world's extremist environmental

movements Repeat, exuemist environmental

movements The United States, its Congress

and the .American people will be legally bound to

implement any articles adopted by these non-

elected agencies The Docinne of Sustainable

Use demands that human existence will have no

more judicial rights than lesser species.

Most present day natural resource based activi-

ties, including farming, logging, fishing and

mining violate the tenants of the definition

Fenilizers, insecticides and pesticides would be

banned According to the fanatics who wrote

the treaty, present day consumption patterns and

outdoor activities are also considered

unsustainable

This treaty violates the Constitution and separa-

tion of church and state because biodiversity is

not a scientific theory It is a religious dogma

that espouses a believe that man has no rights

higher than those of animals and insects

Does this outrage you and make you mad'' It

should Bear in mind- activity is far more

effective than hostility

Why are we in this fix''

I call It the BS Syndrome One guy complains to

another guy and then they both complain to each

other And then they go on and complain to

someone else But nobody actually does any-

thing

You may not think any of this has anything to do

with you, but it does

For us at Berchtold Equipment Company, all the

publicity surrounding the Lin case got us back

our tractor Lin has lost his investor financing

and has no money to make the payments

We did, however, have to aiBrm to the govern-

mental that we had no control of what Lin was

going to do with the tractor That we had no

knowledge that he was going to disc land where

there were endangered species We also had to

supply affidavits from the people who made the

sale and who made the delivery

continued....
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This scared me because I didn't know what our

people had done. Had the driver seen this guy

run over any rats'' Did the salesman know that

federal agents considered the land habitat. even

though It was not designated hab'.tat''

This is something that all of you are going to

have to think about when you sell equipment.

You are going to have to make sure that it is not

being used on land that has been designated by

the federal government as critical habitat or you

could also be held liable for its destruaion

Doa't sell any equipment on an open

account basis. Don't loan equipment

Lf we had done so in this particular case, and had

not the publicity come about, I am sure the

government would have confiscated the tractor

and all we would have had was an account

receivable on which we never would have

collected .\n incident like this doesn't just

affect one landowner It affeas his lender, his

employees and everyone with whom he does

business

Regarding .Vlr Lin The feds have egg all over

iheir faces Because of ail the publicity they said

they would drop ail charges if he would sign a

release against them and the government

I know Babbin has harshly criticized his people

"Who was the idiot *ho picked on this guy''"

Lin said "No settlement" He'll see them in

court in December This could well be a land-

mark case

Why am I telling you ail this'' Why am 1 in-

volved?

An author once wrote "There is nothing more

Amencan than a traaor salesman."

I am an Amencan and so are you - I have been

very fortunate to have lived in the greatest era in

history - I was bom and raised in East Bakers-

field, the wrong side of the tracks, where there

were only 3 economic levels Your family was

either poor, real poor or super poor Most of us

were from ethnic parentage But out of the area

came doctors, heads of hospitals, attorneys,

judges, educators, military people who went all

the way to the top in every service.

My best friend was voted outstanding young

farmer of the year in California. Many became

very successfiil business people

Some even became giants

I never knew a bum
This same scenario took place all over the

country This is Amenca Or this was Amenca
But, we are losing it fast Amenca has been real

good to me But nobody goes to lunch forever

without picking up the check My marker has

been called

I feel It's my duty and my obligation to pay back

And I'm saying to you. it's your duty too The

usual remark is someone should do something

about this Who is someone'' Someone is you

and me Someone had damn well better start

doing something now Someone has to stop the

government from taking our land in the name of

environmental protection We have got to take

it back from the unelected bureaucrats and

regulators The environmental regulations they

are upholding are making cnminals of

hardworking .Amencan citizens doing ordinary

things

We've got to do this before it is too late We
have to fight for what is honorable, right and

constitutionally guaranteed Everything that we

and our children have is all on the line

We have to form tremendously large grassroots

organizations that can stand up and combat the

legislatures that are making these laws that abuse

our rights

1 suggest that we spend just an hour a week to

become informed on existing laws and what is

happening. 1 urge you to find a coalition in your

area and join it Or join the one I'm in Or form

one of your own. Our group is a member of a

nationwide fax network that sends out informa-

tion daily continued....
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We need to urge our representatives that when

they go back to Congress in January they must

support legislation to amend the Endangered

Species Act so that the nghts of mdividuals, of

landowners, or ordinary hardworking citizens

are taken into consideration

The few bills authored to amend the Act died

last month when Congress recessed We must

let our representatives know that when they

return in January they must tackle this issue

Their positions in Congress depends on it

Our individual way of life is too imponant not to

stand in defense of it

Wake up Amencans Get involved Perhaps it's

not too late to take back control of our propenv,

to use 11 in the way that our local governments

have designated it to be used Then maybe, just

maybe, landowners once again will be able to

comfortably look out their windows and sav to

themselves, "This is mv 'a.?d
"

EDITORS SOTE:
Mr Berchtold, since the Lin incideni. has be-

come very actively involved with the "Coalition

for Propenv Rights"{CPR), headquartered in

Bakersfield The Coalition was formed in 1992

because of an attempt by the government to take

40 acres from a local rancher in an effort to

mitigate for an endangered wildflower which had

cost the rancher over 5100,000 in legal fees

They are committed to assisting Mr Lin and his

light as well as other issues where pnvate prop-

erty is at nsk because of ESA Call 1-800-308-

FREE to find out more and to join this worthy

organization.

3 9999 05984 122 9

PRIVATE PROPERTY RIGHTS
ARE IMPORTANT

Susan Suttxjn, Family Water .AJIiance

The implementation of many of the environmen-

tal bills such as the Endangered Species Act, the

National Biological Survey and the Desert

Protection \cl have created an attack on tradi-

tional pnvate property nghts Those who are

not concerned with pnvate propenv nghts do
not feel that they must protect these nghts as the

loss of property does not afFea them either

socially or financially However, they are griev-

ously mistaken

The League of Pnvate Property Voters, of which

FWA is a supporter, has identified five reasons

•Ahy we must be vigilant in protectine these

nghts. not only tor the individual but for our

society and .\merican way of life The recap is

as follows

'Secure and enforceaole propenv nghts are

necessary for civil order When property owner-

ship becomes vague and unsettled, stnte and

social breakdown soon follow

•Our free market economy is based on secure

and enforceable property nghts Our prospenty

depends on property ownership

•Private property is what allows people to

pursue their own goals, independent of the state

and society Without the ability to own prop-

erty, the personal achievement of individuality is

put out of reach for all but a few

•Protecting the environment requires pnvate

property nghts WTien people own resources in

common, they take as much as they can as

quickly as they can. No one owned the buffalo

herds on the Great Plains, for example That is

why they are gone and have been replaced by

cattle herds. Many of the professional environ-

mental pressure groups often deny the crucial

continued on page 11..

P«go» FAR WEST BULLETIN

o



THE LRMfiR SOUTTER LIBRPRY

R0900724051

RO-JOO? EHQsi



RECEIVED

If !| o < /--"'NO

BOSto, rPUdDcngp . pY

ISBN 0-16-047711-5

9 780160"47711

90000


